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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of The Bank of East Asia, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (“the Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 17 to 177, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 27(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31
December 2023 amounted to HK$532,111 million,
with total expected credit losses (“ECL”) amounting
to HK$5,127 million as at 31 December 2023. Hong
Kong and Chinese Mainland Operations contributed
to 55.0% and 26.6% of the Group’s advances to
customers, and 48.2% and 40.8% of the Group’s
total ECL respectively.

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to
customers across the banking industry continues to
be an area of elevated focus due to ongoing
challenges in the China real estate sector and
tightening monetary policy by many central banks to
combat inflation. This has led to a more difficult
environment for borrowers and leads to challenges
in assessing impairment provisions.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the Group’s
impairment allowances on loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost with regards
to the methodology, data and assumptions used in
the estimate included the following:

Methodology

e understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls on the ECL model
monitoring and governance process and on the
controls around the final review and
determination of impairment allowances by
management;
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Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 27(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

The Group applies its ECL models to assess
impairment allowances of loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost. Loan
exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
classified as stage 1 on origination and a 12-month
ECL provision is recognised. Loan exposures will
remain in stage 1 until they are repaid, experience a
significant increase in credit risk (stage 2) or become
credit-impaired (stage 3), for which a lifetime ECL
provision is recognised.

The difficulty in identifying those loans which may
have significant increase in credit risk or impaired
has remained high. Past historical experience on
repayment may be less representative of the
borrowers’ financial conditions and therefore more
judgement is required.

Impairment allowances may be materially misstated
if the exposures with a significant increase in credit
risk are not properly identified and classified in the
appropriate stages.

The determination of impairment allowances using
the ECL models is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the
identification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default
and discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
infformation and other adjustment factors.
Management judgment is involved in the selection of
those parameters and the application of the
assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the impairment
allowances is heavily dependent on the external
macro environment. The expected credit losses are
derived from estimates including the historical
losses, internal and external credit grading and other
adjustment factors. The expected credit losses for
personal loans are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical
overdue data, the historical loss experience for
personal loans and other adjustment factors.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e involving credit risk specialists in assessing the
appropriateness of the methodology and
reliability of the ECL models used by
management in determining impairment
allowances; and

® in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL
calculation, calculating the amount of credit loss
allowance for 12-month and life-time credit
losses using the ECL models based on the
above parameters and assumptions for a
sample of loans and advances to customers
where the credit risk of the loan has not, or has,
increased significantly since initial recognition,
respectively and comparing to the results from
the Group;

Data

e understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls on financial reporting over
approval, recording and monitoring of loans
measured at amortised cost, including the
recording of key data elements used in the ECL
model;

e assessing the completeness and accuracy of
data used for the key parameters in the ECL

models, by comparing individual loan
information on a sample basis with the
underlying agreements and other related

documentation to assess the accuracy of the
loan information in the ECL models. For key
parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of
such data by comparing them with publicly
available sources; and

e for key parameters used in the ECL models
which were derived from system-generated
internal data, assessing the accuracy of input
data by comparing the input data with original
documents on a sample basis. We involved our
information technology specialists in assessing
the information systems controls critical to the
financial reporting process, such as the
compilation of the overdue reports for advances
to customers. We also assessed the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
relevant automated application controls within
these systems, as well as key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including
controls over access to these systems and
controls over data and change management;



KPMG

& PR ESRAT R E
FFE e e AN EE2(h) (Vi) ~ 27(a) 71743(a)(ix)

RS EETEH

H AR B HTAME BRI ARGl DA 8 A
ST EHVE P SRR AEZE G o [ R R A B
B BRI 5% iUk o B R 26— PR > M% IR AH
EH128 HATTEIME BHRA K AT R - B
RN ISR EEHWEE - ERRRAEEN
i CEREE) SRERM S REE (R=EE) -
HH IRt &% IR AR E 7 & 4UHIN Z FEHA S BHR AT
ERRERY ©

sl (5 6\ o] REREE WS AV B RCA RS B HYEE
s - &P REE SR HE > N REEAESE
BB TR R PV ESIR -

185 PERCAY 5 EER R BB 9 DA 1S B B R 53
8 FAE BB B E E A AL -

PR TR (5 S 1R SR Al e o ek (B 48 (A R R % e
B S SR B o BLEPTE AR R PR B - P flist
AV GMER - BOBRKE  BOEBRIENAEE
R SATHETEE AT ERYER B DL R HA SRR N R -
TEEEHURZ % S B B ) it s i I/ B e 1
Flg -

B BUE AR E AR E ERUAR SN 7R
BRI R SR Y P (S B e B R - FHIT(E
BHRRTTRE R SRK - Bl RSN E BRPaR
FEMEHERNR AR - EAERHTHIIE&EK
TrR A E R E T g - A SR
DR KSR DR HA SR N R M fE L e At -

Page 4

FETHR

* [ERESE b B ELE B A R E R
Pt FH N TEEA(E BRI AT SE Mt R

o FERHETHINIE BRI VAN T - fhEE(S
SE\b B PRt DA AR B I E T
INEYZE 5 BRI - [RIRHRIE D28k
Bl (8 FH FEIE IR > 2 RIETEZ R
AR 12 EH AN EERANSNHNNIER
BAETENEERIEFEH > Wiz TRER
B R B AS FUETTERE

g

o WERENGEVALELLL T IHE H A BRAY R S 5 e I ER
FERIEEGET « EHERIRIERGN - AR AT &
HYERRHR L ~ BCBRNIERE > Sk E &
FRIAEAY b (5 IR B SR R

o EBIEHIEIELEE EI LRI SRR B R ek
FHAARRESCRE - BFETRIHE BRI A P&
A AENE - DULEFS TR E BRI A
FIRR i S BT R BUER R S e B R RN TR
HYMNRBIRRHTRE S B B IPR AT 2R %
FRER AR TR EIR TR > DA%
FRORAVREREN: © K

o HNTHIHEERAERPATAN - JREZRFER
YN BB I RR s 28 > TEHIBREE b AL
15 B JFUA SRR AT B EL AR Al iy A2 B0y 2B T
P o PP R PIR BT B R AR B 75
HEE A EEPENENAGES > BiEEF
B A S R - RMTEFH L E L RS
R BB EREFRE RS > DUREIELEAH R %40
Ay EFRAIERZER (ERES A AR LR
BRI E TR (2T - EHEERE L
FIRREY. -



Page 5

Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 27(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

Management also exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss given default based
on a range of factors. These include available
remedies for recovery, the financial situation of the
borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
macroeconomic factors, the seniority of the claim
and the existence and cooperativeness of other
creditors. Management refers to valuation reports
issued by qualified third party valuers and considers
the influence of various factors including the market
price, location and use when assessing the value of
property held as collateral. The enforceability, timing
and means of realisation of collateral can also have
an impact on the recoverable amount from collateral
and, therefore, the amount of impairment allowances
as at the end of the reporting period. The
assessment of the recoverable amount of collateral
is particularly challenging in the Chinese Mainland
as the extent of judgement exercised by
management in the process of determining the
strategy of recovery and assessing the collateral
value of these exposures is high. As a result, the
impairment allowances of loans and advances to
customers in this particular part of business is
subject to a higher inherent risk of material
misstatements.

We identified the impairment allowances of loans
and advances to customers measured at amortised
cost as a key audit matter because of the complexity
of the inherent uncertainty and management
judgment involved and because of its significance to
the financial results and capital of the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Assumptions

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls on financial reporting over
the credit grading process;

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls on the monitoring and
governance process for the assumptions used in
the ECL models, including the assessment of
the internal credit grading applied to exposures;

evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of the loan
has, or has not, increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-
impaired by selecting samples for which we
checked loan overdue information, made
enquiries of the credit managers about the
borrowers’ business operations, checked
borrowers’ financial information and researched
market information about borrowers’
businesses. Our sample of loans and advances
to customers selected for credit review, including
in Chinese Mainland Operations, focused on
accounts with high risk characteristics, including
industries, features of loan arrangements, types
of collateral and credit quality of the accounts;

involving credit risk specialists in assessing the
appropriateness of the key assumptions in the
ECL models, including the criteria used by
management in determining loss stages, the
probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default, discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other
management adjustments;

for key parameters involving judgement,
critically assessing input parameters by seeking
evidence from external sources and comparing
it to the Group’s internal records including
historical loss experience and type of collateral.
As part of these procedures, we challenged the
reasons for modifications to estimates and input
parameters and considered the consistency of
judgement. We compared the economic factors
used in the models with market information to
assess whether they were aligned with market
and economic development;
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Impairment allowances of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 2(h)(vii), 27(a), 43(a)(ix) to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

for selected samples of loans and advances to
customers that are credit-impaired, evaluating
management’s assessment of the recoverable
amount of the exposure including evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any
property collateral held by comparison with
market prices based on the location and use of
the property and the prices of comparable
properties. We also evaluated the timing and
means of realisation of other collateral,
evaluated the forecast cash flows, challenged
the viability of the Group’s recovery plans and
evaluated other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contract terms; and

assessing the appropriateness of material
manual adjustments and overlays on ECL model
outputs.

Other audit procedures to assess the Group’s
impairment allowances on loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost included the
following:

in respect of evaluating the accounting
treatments of disposal of impaired loans during
the vyear, inspecting the loan disposal
agreements and documents, enquiring of
management and assessing whether the
transactions are recognised appropriately; and

evaluating whether the presentation and
disclosures on impairment allowances of loans
and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost meet the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Impairment assessment of an investment in associate, AFFIN Bank Berhad (* AFFIN™)

Refer to notes 2(r), 30 to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

The quoted market price of the Group’s investment
in AFFIN has been persistently below the carrying
amount for a period of time. This is considered an
indicator of potential impairment.

HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” requires
recognition of impairment loss when the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use (“VIU"). An impairment test was
performed by the Group using a VIU model to
estimate the investment’s value assuming the Group
continues to hold this investment.

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount
based on the VIU calculation was HK$3,012 million.
The carrying value was written down to the
recoverable amount and an additional impairment
charge of HK$726 million was recognised in 2023.

The VIU model is based on the requirements in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” and is dependent
on many assumptions, both short-term and long-
term in nature. These assumptions, which are
judgemental, are derived from a combination of
management estimates, forecasts and market data.
The assumptions considered the current levels of
uncertainty on the economy in Malaysia.

A number of key judgements were made by
management in determining the inputs for the VIU
calculation which included:

forecast cash flows;

forecast regulatory capital adjustments required;
growth rates and terminal values; and

discount rate applied to the forecast cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of the
Group's investment in AFFIN as a key audit matter
because of the increased uncertainty of the VIU
estimation and its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, and because assessing the key
assumptions involved a significant degree of
management judgement which may affect both the
carrying value of the Group’s investment in AFFIN at
year end and amount of impairment charge for the
year.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of
the Group’s investment in AFFIN with regards to
methodology, data and assumptions used in the
estimate included the following:

Methodology

e engaging our valuation specialists to evaluate
the methodology used in the VIU calculation;

Data

e comparing AFFIN’s budgeted income and profits
with the assumptions used by managementin its
discounted cash flow forecast; and

e comparing the actual results of AFFIN for the
past years to forecasts prepared by
management for the preceding years to assess
the accuracy of management’s forecasting
process;

Assumptions

e discussing with management, who sit on the
board of AFFIN, to understand business
performance and future business plans of
AFFIN;

e evaluating the assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in its discounted cash
flow forecast relating to growth rates, terminal
value and the discount rate used to derive the
recoverable amount of the Group’s investment in
AFFIN, with support of our valuation specialists,
through the following procedures:

e conducting research on the assumptions
and judgements relating to growth rates,
terminal value and the discount rate based
on available market information;

e performing an alternative calculation of the
discount rate and comparing this calculation
with the discount rate applied by
management to assess reasonableness of
the discount rate used by management;
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Impairment assessment of an investment in associate, AFFIN Bank Berhad (* AFFIN™)

Refer to notes 2(r), 30 to the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e evaluating the assumptions wused in
forecasting regulatory capital adjustments
required,;

e comparing AFFIN’s budgeted income and
profits with externally derived data, such as
analysts’ reports, to assess their
reasonableness;

e evaluating the sensitivity analyses prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast,
including growth rates applied, cash flow
forecast, and discount rate assumptions, and
considering any management bias in formulating
these assumptions; and

e evaluating the probabilities assigned by
management to the various economic scenarios
in the VIU calculation by assessing whether they
were aligned with market and economic
development.

In addition to the above audit procedures, we also
considered whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of the Group’s investment in
AFFIN reflected the risks inherent in the key
assumptions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong, Po Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 February 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

SFRElnE
For the year ended 315 December, 2023

Interest income
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method

Related interest income/(expense)
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Net trading profit

Net result on financial instruments at FVTPL

Net result on financial assets measured at
FVOCI

Net loss on sale of financial assets
measured at amortised cost

Net hedging profit

Other operating income

Non-interest income

Operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit before impairment losses

Impairment losses on financial instruments

Impairment losses on associate

Impairment losses on other assets

Impairment losses

Operating profit after impairment losses

Net profit on sale of assets held for sale

Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries/
associates

Net profit on disposal of fixed assets

Valuation losses on investment properties

Share of profits less losses of associates
and joint ventures

Profit for the year before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements. Details of
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Bank attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in Note 18.
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2023 2022
Notes HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Vi3 B EETT B EETT
FEUTA 5 39,685 24,848
AR AT EA R UL A 36,788 24,871
FHRAFIEUCA . (ZHD) 2,897 (23)
FE S H 6 (22,811) (11,340)
FFREUA 16,874 13,508
li5%5: 3= 95 iIEUL N 7 3,361 3,372
PR B R sz (721) (619)
Pk 2 B AR < WA 85 2,640 2,753
Nl 8 1,225 943
T RS DA B A S E (kT
B FRI 9 (262) (68)
T 308 WA LAt 2 TS i DARZ Bt S
(EET BB RS TR 10 (26) 175
IR AR R T R a2 R
IE518 (22) (6)
PR AR 11 30 201
HA LS A 12 287 448
JEFE A 3,872 4,446
LS UN 20,746 17,954
& 13 (9,432) (9,224)
AAFRIEIE R R G5 F] 11,314 8,730
SRt TEUR(EIBR 14 (5,483) (5,923)
=NV AIEi=EN 30 (726) -
HAE R (EBE (6) (3)
NERIERI=ES (6,215) (5,926)
SRR EIR R 1% 2 £ 5 F 5,099 2,804
HERAELEEE 0T 15 2 1,445
HEREATE, BrE AT 2 8 12) 1)
HEEEEE 2 F ] 16 14 17
BHEEYERER 32 (86) (179)
JEAG T e /A &) R A S8 FIRK
IE518 30 293 855
BRI AT A 5,310 4,941
Frisii 17 (1,174) (563)
RN EF] 4,136 4,378
T[RRI
ALEEREHR 42() 4,118 4,359
IR LS 18 19
FEREENEF] 4,136 4,378
HK$HH T HK$HHE T
R EF
BN 19 1.32 1.32
B 19 1.32 1.32
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SFEEEBIER
For the year ended 31°%' December, 2023

Net profit

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to
income statement:

Premises:

- unrealised surplus on revaluation
of premises

- deferred taxes
Fair value reserve (equity
instruments):

- net change in fair value
- deferred taxes

Liability credit reserve:
- net change in fair value
attributable to Group’s own
credit risk

- deferred taxes

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to income statement:

Fair value reserve (debt instruments):
- net change in fair value

- amount transferred to income
statement on disposal

- deferred taxes

Share of changes in equity of
associates and joint ventures

Exchange differences arising from
translation of accounts/disposal of
overseas, Macau and Taiwan
branches, subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LrEMEIRNR
As at 315 December, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with and advances to
banks

Trade bills

Trading assets

Derivative assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Fixed assets
- Investment properties
- Other properties and equipment
- Right-of-use assets

Goodwill and intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances of banks
- Designated at fair value through
profit or loss
- At amortised cost
Deposits from customers

- Demand deposits and current
accounts

- Savings deposits
- Time, call and notice deposits
Trading liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Certificates of deposit issued
- Designated at fair value through
profit or loss
- At amortised cost
Current taxation
Debt securities issued
- Designated at fair value through
profit or loss
- At amortised cost
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Loan capital — at amortised cost

Total Liabilities

Share capital

Reserves
Total equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Additional equity instruments
Non-controlling interests
Total Equity

Total Equity and Liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 215 February, 2024.
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Executive Chairman David LI Kwok-po

Co-Chief Executives Adrian David LI Man-kiu
Brian David LI Man-bun

Director Meocre LI Kwok-wing

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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2023 2022

Notes HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Vi3 BEEEIT BEEEHEIT
23 45,903 54,579
24 43,691 60,203
25 373 529
26 3,049 1,530
45(b)(ii) 9,056 11,092
27 526,984 542,394
28 167,270 147,007
30 8,384 9,061
32 13,493 13,476
5,105 5,166

7,603 7,593

785 717

31 1,852 1,870
35(h) 1,836 1,849
33 38,470 39,235
860,361 882,825

25,619 25,478

34 3,199 4,545
22,420 20,933

36 628,598 648,093
65,643 65,899

118,163 145,107

444,792 437,087

- 5

45(b)(ii) 4,007 4,145
27,618 32,662

34 9,415 19,001
18,203 13,661

35(a) 1,602 1,252
844 2,892

34 688 811
156 2,081

35(h) 468 226
37 47,312 49,799
38 15,967 11,927
752,035 776,479

40 41,915 41,856
42 56,058 54,131
97,973 95,987

41 10,090 10,090
263 269

108,326 106,346

860,361 882,825
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GonBER
For the year ended 31" December, 2023 BZE2023F 128 31H ILFE
Capital
reserve —
Revaluation staff share
reserve of Exchange options Liability Additional Non-
bank revaluation issued Fair value credit equity controlling
Share  General  premises Capital reserve HALHEF—-  reserve reserve Other Retained instruments  interests Total
capital reserve  {THLEEfL  reserve PEREML CETEE AFHEE AMfEE reserves? profits Total  #HIMEA Ele2iits equity
A —fiRfEE Gt ARG i TR i AT HCALEER 2 TR skl IR fEns  HELRAER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$Mn  HK$Mn HK$SMn HK$SMn HK$SMn HK$EMn HK$EMn HK$EMn  HK$ Mn HK$Mn  HK$Mn  HK$ Mn
BN EETT B EETT R ET BN EET BN EETT B EETT AT B EE T BN EETT B E AT B E AT B EE T BT A EETT
At 1% January, 2023
#2023%1H1H 41,856 13,658 2,255 895 (1,822) 150 510 15 5,105 33,365 _ 95,987 10,090 269 106,346
Changes in equity
HEZS 228
Profit for the year
LEFEN ] - - - - - - - - 4,118 4,118 - 18 4,136
Other comprehensive
income
HoAr A - - 15 (723) - 828 (11) 51 - 160 - - 160
Total comprehensive
income
LA LA - - 15 (723) - 828 (11) 51 4,118 4,278 - 18 4,296
Shares issued in lieu of
dividend (Note 40)
DU AE S THIR
(Hz40) 59 - - - - - - - - 59 - - 59
Equity settled share-
based transaction
(Note 42(f))
DARR () Ry B E 2 1
25 (hfEa2(f)) - - - - 24 - - - - 24 - - 24
Transfer
IR - - - - (35) - - ) 37 - - - -
Distribution/Dividends
declared or approved
during the year
FRENEIR R EEAR
BT - - - - - - - - (2,008)  (2,008) - (24) (2,032)
Share buy-back *
B el - - - - - - - - (367) (367) - - (367)
At 315 December, 2023
2023412 F31H 41,915 13,658 2,270 895 (2,545) 139 1,338 4 5,154 35,145 97,973 10,090 263 108,326

1. During the year, the Bank bought back 36 million issued shares on the Stock Exchange at
a total consideration of HK$366 million. Together with the direct transaction cost of
approximately HK$1 million, a total amount of HK$367 million was accounted for as a
deduction from retained profits. For details of the share buy-back, please refer to Note 40.

2. Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves.

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
SoRRgEHR (9)
For the year ended 31 December, 2022

At 1% January, 2022
#220224E1H1H

Changes in equity
fie s 520

Profit for the year

LEFEN R

Other comprehensive
income

Hftr e mes

Total comprehensive
income

Eaiifiensit ]

Shares issued in lieu of
dividend (Note 40)

DU AE S THIR

(Hz#40)

Equity settled share-
based transaction
(Note 42(f))

DARR 7y Ry B F 2 2
5 (hfEa2(f))

Transfer

R

Distribution/Dividends
declared or approved
during the year

FRENEIR B EEAR
SAEIRERLE

Share buy-back *

Al

Redemption of
additional equity
instruments 2

JIEAEY A T, 2

Change of ownership in
subsidiaries

Vi 4 ] A S )

At 315 December, 2022
#2022/E12 F31H

1. In 2022, the Bank bought back 262 million issued shares at a total consideration of

Revaluation

reserve of

bank

Share  General  premises
capital  reserve  TTHLEE(H
BeA —RRfh G4
HK$ Mn  HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

Capital
reserve
HAGh
HK$ Mn

Exchange
revaluation
reserve

Capital
reserve —
staff share
options
issued

B

HEREME E#TRA

(b
HK$ Mn

2R
HK$ Mn

IS ETT BT AT B ETT B ETT BT EDT B AT

41,645 13,658 1,905

895

1,058

152

B E20224E 125 311 IHAERE

Fair value
reserve
NPEE
i

HK$ Mn

Liability
credit
reserve Other  Retained
BfEEE  reserves? profits
GG FLAMEEG S TR
HK$ Mn  HK$Mn  HK$ Mn

Total
skl
HK$ Mn

N EETT B EETT BT AT B E T B EET

1,925

(46) 5,191 35,395

101,778

Additional
equity controlling
interests
I
fEas

HK$ Mn

instruments
HHNEA
IH

HK$ Mn
AlEEHET AEEHET

13,968

Page 21

Non-

304

Total
equity
RS HEEH
HK$ Mn
BN EETT

116,050

(2,880)

(1,415)

- - 4,359

61 54 -

4,359

(3,830)

19

4,378

(3,830)

(2,880)

(1,415)

61 54 4,359

529

19

548

211 - -

22

(24)

- - (3,455)

- - (3,051)

- - (7)

211

22

(3,455)

(3,051)

(47)

(3,878)

(48)

(6)

211

22

(3,503)

(3,051)

(3,925)

(6)

41,856 13,658 2,255

895

(1,822)

150

510

15 5,105 33,365

95,987

10,090

269

106,346

HK$3,038 million. Together with the direct transaction cost of HK$13 million, a total amount
of HK$3,051 million were accounted for as a deduction from retained profits. For details of
the share buy-back, please refer to Note 40.

2. In 2022, the Bank redeemed HK$3,878 million (US$500 million) undated non-cumulative
subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities issued in 2017.

3. Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves.

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
KEBERER
For the year ended 315 December, 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:

Charge for impairment losses on financial
instruments

Charge for impairment losses on
associate

Charge for impairment losses on other
assets

Share of profits less losses of associates
and joint ventures

Net loss on sale of financial assets
measured at amortised cost

Net loss/(profit) on sale of debt securities
measured at FVOCI

Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates

Net profit on sale of assets held for sale

Net profit on disposal of fixed assets

Interest expense on debt securities issued

Interest expense on loan capital issued

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Depreciation on bank premises, furniture,
fixtures and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Dividend income from equity securities
measured at FVOCI

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of premium/discount on debt
securities and loan capital issued

Revaluation losses/(gains) on debt
securities and loan capital issued

Valuation losses on investment properties

Equity settled share-based payment
expenses

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Cash and balances with banks with
original maturity beyond three months

Placements with and advances to banks
with original maturity beyond three
months

Trade bills

Trading assets

Derivative assets

Loans and advances to customers

Debt investment securities measured at
amortised cost

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

Debt investment securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Non-trading equity securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Other assets

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Deposits and balances of banks
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit issued
Trading liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities

Exchange adjustments

NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM
OPERATIONS

Income tax paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Outside Hong Kong profits tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Page

BE2023F12H 31H ILEE
2023 2022
Notes HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Vi3 B EETT EMEE T
LBEWEG
BRI AT A 5,310 4,941
Gk
et TE(E B 84 5,483 5,923
e AR EIER S 726 -
HAth & R E IR 6 3
JEAGTE A F] R B A R 15 (293) (855)
ST AR R T R A TS TR 22 6
HH B R L A AT R AR L 2 A
(BT EEBEHR I8 CGRFD 60 (142)
I ] R N E] 2 SRS TR 12 1
HERAELEEE 2 FimF] %) (1,445)
B [E A 2 05t (14) 17)
S THEGE S S 51 80
EETEEEAREZ S 949 454
FHE&EFESZH 29 28
TThk ~ R - B RGeS 32 547 567
S FAREEETE 32 260 295
T A At S T USRS DASZ B A S (B R
EREHREEUA 10 (34) (16)
fueft) 31(b) 13 13
BTG S RSB AR RE T
IS 11 7
B TBTEB SR MG EEAEE
(ZF] 201 (298)
BEEEYERER 32 86 179
DARS A3 R ES B E S (2 13, 42(f) 24 22
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

SHARESRER (B
For the year ended 31 December, 2023

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from associates and joint
ventures

Dividends received from equity securities
measured at FVOCI

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of other properties
and equipment

Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ordinary dividends paid

Distribution to Additional Tier 1 issue
holders

Payment for repurchase of shares

Issue of debt securities

Issue of loan capital

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Redemption of debt securities issued
Redemption of additional equity instruments
Interest paid on debt securities issued

Interest paid on loan capital

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 157
JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 3157
DECEMBER

Cash flows from operating activities included:
Interest received
Interest paid

Dividend received

The notes on pages 24 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %M

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FE#W%

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES EAE:BR

(@

(b)

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing
Rules. A summary of the material accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31%
December, 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

financial instruments classified as trading, designated or
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Note 2(h)(ii));

- derivative financial instruments (Notes 2(k) and 2(I)); and
- investment properties (Note 2(0)(ii)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Details of judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 52.

(@

(b)
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(c) Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated
position of the Bank and all subsidiaries unless otherwise stated and
the Group's interest in associates and joint ventures. For information
required to be reported in accordance with the Banking
(Disclosures) Rules, the basis of consolidation is set out in Note 1 in
the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information.

(i) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31%
December each year. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Bank, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the net profit and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and equity
shareholders of the Bank.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (Note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate and joint venture
(Note 2(c)(ii)), and is offset against the gain or loss on the loss
of control of that subsidiary.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses, if
any (Note 2(r)).

(©
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(i)

Associates and joint ventures

The consolidated financial statements include the attributable
share of the results and reserves of associates and joint
ventures based on financial statements prepared at dates not
earlier than three months prior to 31 December each year.

An associate is a company in which the Group or the Bank has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Bank and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless they are classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (Note
2(ac)). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the associate or joint
venture’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (Note
2(g) and 2(r)). Any excess of fair values of the investees’ net
identifiable assets over the cost of investment upon acquisition,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any
dividend income received from associates and joint ventures
reduces the carrying values of the investments in associates
and joint ventures, respectively.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate or a joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
these purposes, the Group's interest in the associate or the
joint venture is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except when unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(h)).

The Bank accounts for the results of associates and joint
ventures to the extent of dividends received. Investments in
associates and joint ventures are stated in the Bank's
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
losses (Note 2(r)).

(i)
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(d)

(e)

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currencies transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and derivative financial instruments are
included in gains less losses from trading securities or financial
instruments at FVTPL. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences arising from
translation of equity investments for which an election has been
made to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Items in the statement
of financial position, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 15 January, 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 15t January, 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Interest
Effective interest rate

Interest income for financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or amortised cost, and
interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments
other than credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but
not expected credit losses. For financial assets that were purchased
or originated as credit-impaired on initial recognition, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future
cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected credit
loss provision is required at initial recognition).

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction
costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The transaction costs include
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

(d)

(e)
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()

The Group adopts Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (the “Phase 2 amendments”), which allows a practical
expedient for changes to the basis for determining contractual cash
flows to be treated as changes to a floating rate of interest, provided
certain conditions are met. The conditions include that the change
is necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate benchmark
reform and that the transition takes place on an economically
equivalent basis.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the
amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss
allowance.

The “gross carrying amount of a financial asset” is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the
asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated as credit-
impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert
to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please
refer to Note 2(h)(vii).

Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the
effective interest rate on a financial asset or financial liability are
included in the effective interest rate calculation (Note 2(e)). Other
fee and commission income is recognised in the income statement
when the corresponding service is provided.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group which
result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred
and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If it is
uncertain that a loan commitment will result in draw-down of a loan,
then the related loan commitment fee is recognised as revenue on
a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction
and service fees, which are expensed when the services are
received.

Other Revenue Recognition

Other revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income statement as follows:

(i) Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL and net
trading income
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Net income from financial instruments designated at FVTPL,
net income from non-trading financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVTPL and net trading income comprises all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities,
together with foreign exchange differences and dividend
income attributable to these financial instruments. Coupon
interest from these financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL is accrued and presented as interest
income or interest expense.

Finance income from finance leases

Finance income implicit in finance leases is recognised as
interest income over the period of the lease so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return of the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
receivable are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established
unconditionally. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

(h) Financial Instruments

@

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group initially recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets at FVTPL, investment securities classified as
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, derivative transactions
or debts issued are recognised using trade date accounting.
Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
using settlement date accounting.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not measured at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset or issue of the financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL are expensed immediately.

Any gains and losses of the financial assets or financial liabilities
measured at fair value are recorded from the date of initial
recognition.

Accrued contractual interests from financial assets and liabilities
are presented as accrued interest receivables and payables
separately in the financial statements.

Classification

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

(i)

(iii)

(V)

(h)
@

(i)
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On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income (Note
2(n)). This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business
model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information
is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

¢ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the
operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether
management’'s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and
reported to the Group’s management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model
(and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed,;

¢ how managers of the business are compensated — e.g.
whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
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¢ the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods,
the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future
sales activity. However, information about sales activity is
not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash
flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at
FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell
financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as
the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
“Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount and timing
of cash flows;

e leverage features;
e prepayment and extension terms;

e terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements);
and

o features that modify consideration of the time value of
money (e.g. periodic reset of interest rates).

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets. When (and only
when) the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets in
accordance with the new business model. The reclassification
should be applied prospectively from the “reclassification date”,
which is defined as, “the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model that results in
reclassifying financial assets”. Accordingly, any previously
recognised gains, losses or interest will not be restated.

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the amortised cost
measurement category and into the FVTPL or FVOCI
measurement category, its fair value is measured at the
reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous amortised cost of the financial asset and
fair value is recognised in profit or loss (if reclassification as
FVTPL measurement category) or is recognised in other
comprehensive income (if reclassification as FVOCI
measurement category).
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(iii)

If afinancial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI measurement
category and into the amortised cost measurement category,
the financial asset is reclassified at its fair value at the
reclassification date. However, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the
financial asset at the reclassification date. As a result, the
financial asset is measured at the reclassification date as if it
had always been measured at amortised cost.

If afinancial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI measurement
category and into the FVTPL measurement category, the
financial asset continues to be measured at fair value. The
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss as areclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.

If afinancial asset is reclassified out of the FVTPL measurement
category and into the amortised cost measurement category, its
fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount.

If an entity reclassifies a financial asset out of the FVTPL
measurement category and into the FVOCI measurement
category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair
value and subsequent changes in fair value will be recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial
guarantees and loan commitments, as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a
financial liability as measured at FVTPL in either of the following
circumstances:

(i) When doing so results in more relevant information
because either:

e agroup of liabilities or a group of financial assets and
liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis; or

e the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases.

(i) If a liability contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives unless the embedded derivative(s) does not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be
required by the contract or if it is obvious that separation of
the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices, where available, at the end of the reporting period
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments or
if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques that provide a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

(iii)
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(V)

v

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or where the financial asset, together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, has been transferred, or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

On derecognition of afinancial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less
any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the income statement. Any cumulative gain/loss
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of equity
investment securities designated at FVOCI is not recognised in
the income statement on derecognition of such securities, as
explained in (Note 2(n)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Group uses the weighted average or first-in first-out
method, where appropriate, to determine realised gains and
losses to be recognised in the income statement on
derecognition.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially
different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the
original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case,
the original financial asset is derecognised (Note 2(h)(iv)) and a
new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost
are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the
Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the
gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the
income statement. If such a modification is carried out because
of financial difficulties of the borrower (Note 2(h)(vii)), then the
gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In
other cases, it is presented as interest income.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in the income statement.

In the context of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group’s
assessment of whether a change to an amortised cost financial
instrument is substantial is made after applying the practical
expedient introduced by the Phase 2 amendments. This
requires the transition from an interbank offered rate to a new
alternative benchmark rate to be treated as a change to a
floating interest rate as described in (Note 2(e)) above.

(V)

v
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(Vi)

The Group updates the effective interest rate of the financial
asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by
the interest rate benchmark reform if the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability
measured at amortised cost changes as a result of the reform.
A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following
conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the
reform; and

¢ the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis, i.e. the basis
immediately before the change.

If changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in
addition to changes to the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the
Group first updates the effective interest rate of the financial
asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by
interest rate benchmark reform. Subsequently, the Group
applies the policies on accounting for modifications set out
above to the additional changes.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position only
where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vii) Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

¢ financial assets that are debt instruments;

e leasereceivables;

¢ financial guarantee contracts issued,;

¢ loan commitments issued; and

e contract assets

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime
ECL using a 3-stage approach as follows:-
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The mapping between the Group’s Stage Allocation and the
HKMA's 5-Grade Asset Classification is as follows:-
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The criterion of “significant increase of credit risk” takes into
consideration of any one of the following key factors:-

1. The exposure has a significant deterioration of internal or
external rating as compared with the rating at the time when
the exposure was originated;

2. The exposure is classified as Special Mention;

3. Therating of the exposure falls out of the “Low-Credit Risk
Threshold” that is equivalent to the globally understood
definition of “investment grade”; or

4. Other events and indications that the credit risk of the
exposure has significantly increased since origination or
purchase.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses under
different economic scenarios. They are measured as:

Exposure at Default x Probability of Default x Loss
Given Default

Credit-impaired (non-performing) financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial
assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried
at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not
limited to the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on
terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
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e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for
90 days or more is considered impaired.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial
position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of
financial position as follows:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

e loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts:
generally, as a provision on the liabilities side; and

e debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is
presented in the statement of financial position because the
carrying amount of these assets is their fair value, inclusive
of any ECL. However, the loss allowance is disclosed
separately.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full)
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group'’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities which
are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing them in the near term, or are part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised
and subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

When revenue is recognised by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the consideration is received or before payment is
due, the Group presents the amount of revenue as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. A contract asset
is recognised in statement of financial position when there is a right
to consideration that is conditional on factors other than the passage
of time. The contract asset is transferred to receivables when the
right to consideration becomes unconditional. Impairment of a
contract asset is measured on the same basis as a financial asset
as (Note 2(h)(vii)) above. The Group includes the contract assets in
“Others” under “Other assets” in the statement of financial position.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays non-
refundable consideration or when the Group has a right to an
amount of non-refundable consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers a good or service to the customer. The
Group includes the contract liabilities in “Others” under “Other
liabilities” in the statement of financial position.
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As a practical expedient, the Group does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if the Group expects, at contract inception, that the
period between when the entity transfers a promised good or
service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less. The Group may recognise the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when
incurred if the amortisation period of the asset that the Group
otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on the income
statement of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument
and the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether
the financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues
prospectively hedge accounting when (i) the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; (ii) the hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or (iii) the Group revokes
the designation.

(i) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or
liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, or the foreign
currency risk of a committed future transaction, the effective
part of any gain or loss on remeasurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

If the hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-
financial asset or liability. If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a
financial liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to the income statement in the same period or periods
during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects the
income statement (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to the income statement in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction
affects the income statement. When a hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the Group
revokes designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged
forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss at that point remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and is recognised in accordance with the above policy.
If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to the income statement immediately.

(i) Fair value hedges

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair
value of recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair
value changes recognised in the income statement. The
carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount
of the changes in fair value of hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

(k)
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(iv)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective at the inception of the hedge
and throughout its life. Actual effectiveness (retrospective
effectiveness) is also demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will
depend on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regression analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies. For cash flow hedge
relationship, the Group utilises the change in variable cash flow
method or the cumulative dollar offset method using the
hypothetical derivative approach.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must
offset each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent for
the hedge to be deemed effective.

Specific policies for hedges affected by interest rate benchmark
reform

The Group applies Interest Rate Benchmark Reform:
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 (the “Phase
1 amendments”) reliefs to hedging relationships directly
affected by interest rate benchmark reform during the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark
with a new alternative benchmark rate.

The reliefs cease to apply once certain conditions are met.
These include when the uncertainty arising from interest rate
benchmark reform is no longer present with respect to the
timing and amount of the benchmark-based cash flows of the
hedged item when the hedging relationship is discontinued or
once amounts in the cash flow hedge reserve have been
released.

The Group also applies the Phase 2 amendments, which
provides temporary reliefs that allow the Group’s hedging
relationships to continue upon the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with a new alternative benchmark rate.

(i) The Phase 1 amendments

The Phase 1 amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform so that entities applying those hedge
accounting requirements assume that the interest rate
benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash
flows of the hedging instrument are based is not altered
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform. These
amendments replace the need for specific judgements to
determine whether certain hedge accounting relationships
that hedge the variability of cash flows or interest rate risk
exposures for periods after the interest rate benchmarks
are expected to be reformed or replaced continue to
qualify for hedge accounting.

(iii)

(V)
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(i) The Phase 2 amendments

The Phase 2 amendments provide a series of temporary
exemptions from certain hedge accounting requirements
when a change required by interest rate benchmark
reform occurs to a hedged item and/or hedging instrument
that permit the hedging relationship to be continued
without interruption. The Group applies the following relief
as and when uncertainty arising from interest rate
benchmark reform is no longer present with respect to the
timing and the amount of the interest rate benchmark-
based cash flows of the hedged item or hedging
instrument:

e the Group amends the designation of a hedging
relationship to reflect changes that are required by the
reform without discontinuing the hedging relationship;
and

e when a hedged item in a cash flow hedge is amended
to reflect the changes that are required by the reform,
the amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve is deemed to be based on the alternative
benchmark rate on which the hedged future cash
flows are determined.

While uncertainty persists in the timing or amount of the
interest rate benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged
item or hedging instrument, the Group continues to apply
the existing accounting policies.

Derivatives

Derivatives are recognised initially and are subsequently
remeasured, at fair value. Derivatives are classified as assets when
their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is
negative, this includes embedded derivatives which are bifurcated
from the host contract, when they meet the definition of a derivative
on a standalone basis.

Derivatives may be embedded in another contractual arrangement
(a host contract). The Group accounts for an embedded derivative
separately from the host contract when:

e the host contract is not an asset in the scope of HKFRS 9;

e the host contract is not itself carried at FVTPL;

e the terms of the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative if they were contained in a separate contract; and

e the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics
and risks of the host contract.

Separated embedded derivatives are measured at fair value, with all
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss unless they form
part of a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedging relationship.

Loans and Advances

Loans and advances mainly comprise placements with and
advances to banks, trade bills and loans and advances to
customers:

e loans and advances measured at amortised cost (Note 2(h)(ii));
they are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct
transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method,;
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e loans and advances mandatorily measured at FVTPL or
designated at FVTPL (Note 2(h)(ii)); these are measured at fair
value with changes recognised immediately in the income
statement;

e loans and advances measured at FVOCI (Note 2(h)(ii)); and

¢ finance lease receivables (Note 2(s)).

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously
enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar
asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock
borrowing), the arrangement is accounted for as a loan, and the
underlying asset is not recognised in the Group’s financial
statements.

Investment Securities

The “investment securities” caption in the statement of financial
position includes:

e debt investment securities measured at amortised cost (Note
2(h)(ii)); these are initialy measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their
amortised cost using the effective interest method,;

e debt and equity investment securities mandatorily measured at
FVTPL or designated at FVTPL (Note 2(h)(ii)); these are
measured at fair value with changes recognised immediately in
the income statement;

e debt securities measured at FVOCI (Note 2(h)(ii)); and

e equity investment securities designated at FVOCI (Note 2(h)(ii)).

For debt securities measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for the following,
which are recognised in the income statement in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortised cost:

e interest revenue using the effective interest method,;
e ECL and reversals; and
e foreign exchange gains and losses.

When a debt security measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the income
statement.

The Group elects to present changes in the fair value of certain
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in
other comprehensive income. The election is made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified
to the income statement and no impairment is recognised in the
income statement. Dividends are recognised in the income
statement unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, in which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in
other comprehensive income are transferred to retained earnings on
disposal of an investment.
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(o) Properties

@

(i)

(iii)

Bank premises are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost or at Directors’ valuation as of 1989, by reference to an
independent professional valuation, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (Note 2(r)).

In 1989, any deficit arising from revaluation was charged to the
income statement, to the extent that it exceeded the amount
held in the bank premises revaluation reserve in respect of that
same asset immediately prior to the revaluation. Any surplus
arising from revaluation was credited to the income statement,
to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to the income statement.

In preparing these financial statements, advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80AA of HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” issued by the HKICPA has
been taken, with the effect that bank premises have not been
revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Investment properties are properties which are held either to
earn rental income, for capital appreciation or for both.
Investment properties are stated at fair value. Investment
properties are valued semi-annually by external independent
valuation companies, having an appropriate recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. No allowance has been
made in the valuations for any charges, mortgages or amounts
owing on the properties nor any expenses or taxation which
may be incurred in effecting a sale.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is
recognised in the income statement. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in Note

2(g)(iii).

When a bank property is transferred to investment property
following a change in its use, any differences arising at the date
of transfer between the carrying amount of the bank property
immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is recognised as
a revaluation of bank premises as described in Note 2(0)(i).

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as bank premises and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting
purposes.

A property interest under a lease is classified and accounted
for as an investment property when the Group holds it to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Any such property
interest under a lease classified as an investment property is
carried at fair value. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in Note 2(s).

Profit or loss on disposal of bank premises and investment
properties is determined as the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement upon disposal. Any surplus
that is included in the bank premises revaluation reserve
related to the bank premises disposed is transferred to the
general reserve.

(o) ¥k
@

(i)

(iii)
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Amortisation and Depreciation
(i) Bank premises

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land held for own
use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease. Leasehold land is amortised on a
straight line basis over the remaining term of the lease.
Buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis at rates
calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each building over
its estimated useful life of 50 years or the remaining lease
period of the land on which it is situated, whichever is the
shorter.

Investment properties are not depreciated.
(i) Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, which is calculated on a straight line basis to write off
the assets over their estimated useful lives from 4 to 20 years.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (Note 2(r)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit and
loss on disposal.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
end of the reporting period to identify indications that any non-
financial assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwiill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, if
measurable, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income statement
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Leases (s)

Atinception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The
Group has this right when it has the decision-making rights that
are most relevant to directing how and for what purpose the
asset is used. In cases where the decision about how and for
what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group
has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

- the Group has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines
how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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As alessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note
2(r)), and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently at fair value, in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2(0)(ii).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost
on the lease liability and decreased by lease payment made.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprises the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
as appropriate, changes in the Group’s assessment of
whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably certain
to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

@
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(i)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) and is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exception is
any rent concession which arose as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such case, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in consideration
as if it were not a lease modification. The rent concessions are
recognised as a credit to variable lease expenses in profit or
loss.

In the situation that if a lease modification is required by interest
rate benchmark reform, the Phase 2 amendments allow the
Group to use a revised discount rate that reflects the change in
interest rate when remeasuring a lease liability.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term
for some lease contracts that include renewal options in which
it is a lessee. The assessment of whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease
terms, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets recognised.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property in “Fixed assets” (Note 32) and
lease liabilities in “Other liabilities” (Note 37) in the statement of
financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of
underlying assets with an approximate value of HK$0.04 million
or less (“low-value assets”). The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 13).

As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not,
then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease
is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group applied HKFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in
the contract.

The amounts due from lessees in respect of finance leases are
recorded in the statement of financial position as advances to
customers at the amounts of net investment which represent
the total rentals receivable under finance leases less unearned
income. Revenue arising from finance leases is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as
set out in Notes 2(g)(ii) and 2(e).

(i)
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The Group recognises lease payments received under
operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease period as part of “other operating income”, as set out in
Note 2(g)(iii).

Repossession of Assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of the collateral assets through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note 2(h)(vii),
impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are
maintained after taking into account the net realisable value of the
collateral assets, usually resulting in a partial write-off of the loans
and advances against impairment allowances. Repossessed assets
are reported as assets held for sale under other assets if the risks
and rewards of ownership of the relevant repossessed assets have
been substantially transferred to the Group and it is highly probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to the Group, their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the assets are available for sale in their
present condition. Related loans and advances are then written off.

Repossessed assets are recorded at the lower of the amount of the
related loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the
date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses subsequent to initial classification are recognised
in the income statement.

Income Tax
(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(ii) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

(iii)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
deductible temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(0)(ii),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities if the Bank or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Bank or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(v) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments

“Financial guarantees” are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss that it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. “Loan
commitments” are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-
specified terms and conditions.

Financial guarantees issued or commitments to provide a loan at a
below-market interest rate are initially measured at fair value and the
initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the
commitment. Subsequently, they are measured at the higher of this
amortised amount and the amount of loss allowance (Note 2(h)(vii)).

For other loan commitments, the Group recognises impairment loss
allowances (Note 2(h)(vii)).

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees and loan commitments
are included within other liabilities.

Employee Benefits
(i) Salaries, bonuses and leave benefits

Employee entitlements to salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-
monetary benefits are recognised when they accrue to
employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as aresult of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(i) Performance-related bonus plan

Liabilities for performance-related bonus plan, which are due
wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period, are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

(iii) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible staff of the Group.
Hong Kong employees enjoy retirement benefits under either
the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO Scheme
(“MPFEOS”) or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPFS”). Both are defined contribution schemes. The
employer’s monthly contributions to both schemes are at a
maximum of 10% of each employee’s monthly salary.

The pension schemes covering all the Group’s PRC, overseas,
Macau and Taiwan employees are defined contribution
schemes at various funding rates, and are in accordance with
local practices and regulations.

®)

Page 48

fis T RE AN B FE A A0 M 2 BN RE B e BHAE ] 5
st BRI AV E R - AR E T
HARA R - ABEERBVFEARTEGRE
—IHER S E AR A TEREE - BRIEAT OB a5
HIBEERRG - I ERB I U F R A IS -

M HER I SRR

TIBHER o RS TR (R e ROR LUE A Ry
AN ARG TE R A AE (5 TR kB I R S
MEELIHERER » TEF0RE | BAETEN G
TR T iR (5 SRR -

B THIHE IReRLUER TS RET B RURRE )40
HANPEERTE - WA HEEEYE fREURIH A
B o 1A% o RAHEOR BORER L I 8 FAR SR (
s 2(h)(vi)) - ZEZEEE AR -

S A SRR - AEERERDRE R ARG (5
2(h)(vi)) -

B ERN SRR E AN AR SR AED -

{i& B EF
() HFE -~ TEALRBYIER]

& BIEZ AR - AL ~ AR R - Bk
TS0 R At RIS 2 TR s M B R A L
IRpHfERE o ZE e IIAE R H E R A Rtk
BRITEH Z SRt A -

{8 RIES R HIR R b o3 el 33 AL e -

(i) RIS

e B ek i A B AR A e 8
BRHEER A% 12 (8 5 NHESBE %R
WAEETEALET SR R - BRI RE1F 7T 54k
5T AT LT R ALE -

(i) BRAEF]

AREEBHEERN A TIRCRMAEHN - 7
R TR G sR 5 Se A SRR (RaT B =am b
AR EIVORIE o LRI EE EE R E 8
FRGEHE] - (B EBMIEETEEVE A B0 BIR
L B H#HY 10% -

FEE TR TR - B RPTREER
T AR AR EIR ERR UGS - Rz
EHIEG RAETHIE -



(V)

The cost of all these schemes is charged to the income
statement for the period concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group. Under
the MPFEOS, the employer’s contribution is not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Under the
MPFS, the employer’s contribution is reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Share based payments

The Bank adopted equity-settled share based payment
arrangement under Staff Share Option Schemes to grant the
options to eligible employees of the Group.

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an expense in the income statement with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at the grant date using the trinomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
those share options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged or
credited to the income statement for the year of the review
unless the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Bank'’s shares.

The equity amount is recognised in capital reserve until either
the option is exercised and new shares allotted (when it is
transferred to share capital) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits). For Grantees who do not
meet the applicable vesting conditions, the unvested options
are forfeited, either in whole or in part. Forfeited share options
are cancelled. When the options are exercised, equity is
increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

(y) Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if:

@

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(&) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

)
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@

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group'’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(aa) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition including cash and balances with banks,
treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ab) Deposits, Debt Securities Issued and Capital Instruments

Deposits, debt securities issued and capital instruments are the
Group'’s sources of funding.

The Group classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual terms of the instruments.

The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification. A financial instrument is classified as a
liability where there is a contractual obligation to deliver either cash
or another financial asset to the holder of that instrument, regardless
of the manner in which the contractual obligation will be settled.

Subsequent to initial recognition deposits, debt securities issued and
capital instruments classified as financial liabilities are measured at
their amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
where the Group designates liabilities at FVTPL.

For those capital instruments classified as equity instruments, they
are not redeemable by holders and bear an entitlement to coupons
at the Bank’s sole discretion. Accordingly, they are presented within
equity. Distribution thereon are recognised in equity.

@

(a2)

(ab)
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(ac) Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups (including both the assets
and liabilities of the disposal groups) are classified as held for sale
and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell when: (a) their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through sale; (b) they are available for sale in their present
condition; and (c) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the
carrying amounts of the asset (or assets and liabilities in the disposal
group) are measured in accordance with applicable HKFRSs. On
subsequent remeasurement of a disposal group, the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities that are not within the scope of
the measurement requirements of HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with applicable HKFRSs before the fair value less costs
to sell of the disposal group is determined.

Income earned and expenses incurred on assets and liabilities of
disposal groups held for sale continue to be recognised in the
appropriate line items in the income statement until the transaction
is complete.

(ad) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, “Interim Financial
Reporting”, in respect of the first six months of the year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the year
(Note 2(h)(vii) and Note 2(r)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.

(ac)

(ad)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES €&t B> 88

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

None of these developments have had a material effect on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”)
gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect from 15 May, 2025
(the “Transition Date"”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect,
an employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory contributions to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”)
scheme to reduce the long service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an
employee’s service from the Transition Date (the abolition of the
“offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the service
before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the employee’s
monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date and the years of
service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that
provides accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and
the abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates that
entities may account for the accrued benefits derived from mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP
payable to an employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the LSP.

Applying this approach, upon the enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such
deemed contributions to be recognised as reduction of service cost
(negative service cost) in the period the contributions were made.
Instead, these deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of
service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit. The Amendment
Ordinance has no material impact on the Group’s LSP liability and staff
cost.
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ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks
Placements with and advances to banks
Trade bills
Trading assets
Derivative assets
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Fixed assets

- Investment properties

- Other properties and equipment

- Right-of-use assets
Goodwill and intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

- Assets held for sale

- Others

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances of banks
- Designated at fair value through profit or
loss
- At amortised cost
Deposits from customers
Trading liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Certificates of deposit issued
- Designated at fair value through profit or
loss
- At amortised cost
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Current taxation
Debt securities issued

- Designated at fair value through profit or
loss

- At amortised cost
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Loan capital - at amortised cost
Total Liabilities

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of the Bank
Additional equity instruments

Total Equity and Liabilities

4. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {78 > BisiRins
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
EEEHETT B EHETT
22,336 25,498
36,752 48,296
224 41

285 355
7,644 9,733
387,217 397,533
144,710 125,620
14,705 14,145
19,461 19,469
4,483 4,466
9,501 9,493
4,718 4,774
4,338 4,293
445 426
1,460 1,460
72 197
9,643 9,529
15 15
9,628 9,514
658,493 665,835
24,538 24,031
3,199 4,545
21,339 19,486
487,537 483,553
- 5

2,707 2,816
10,876 27,018
9,415 19,001
1,461 8,017
1,561 1,777
1,444 1,255
844 2,892

688 811

156 2,081

420 185
16,979 18,299
14,318 10,232
561,224 572,063
41,915 41,856
45,264 41,826
87,179 83,682
10,090 10,090
97,269 93,772
658,493 665,835
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Executive Chairman David LI Kwok-po HITERE B
Co-Chief Executives Adrian David LI Man-kiu T FE T AAE, FERIE
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Director Meocre LI Kwok-wing HE LS



INTEREST INCOME  FE A
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R E T R E T
Loans, placements with banks, and trade SERK -~ AEIRITAVTERK ~ &
bills O EE 31,179 20,624
Investment securities e —tieez
- PR B A
A T Wi DA R it
- measured at amortised cost or FVOCI AEEERR 8,269 4,076
- sedfilfim e s DL
- mandatorily measured at FVTPL AHEER = 141 120
Trading assets T HHRERE 96 28
39,685 24,848

For the transactions where interest rate risk is hedged, the periodic
payments and receipts arising from interest rate contracts which are
qualifying hedging instruments for, or individually managed in
conjunction with, interest bearing financial assets are first netted
together and then combined with the interest income from the
corresponding financial assets.

The above included interest income of HK$36,788 million (2022:

HK$24,871 million), before hedging effect, for financial assets that are
not recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

INTEREST EXPENSE  FEH

FREBDPHIRERRIIA S - WA S M EEN &
A S TR B {8 1 st B BN B e R S R
BT A QIR L B E I S R A E SR8y
R HANRE R A F B U A& B

A BRI R - KA JEE A PEEREELE
B < i 7 2 FI RS By 3 5 367,88 T (2022
L BNg248.71FOT) -

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R EE T R EE T
Customer deposits and deposits of banks B PR SRAT AR
- at amortised cost - FEHARATE 19,914 9,713
- i E Ryl i tE 4 DS
- designated at FVTPL AFEEERE 202 84
Certificates of deposit and debt securities issued TS R (B o5
- at amortised cost - FEHARATE 581 511
- i E Ryl it PE 4 DS
- designated at FVTPL AFEEERE 914 485
Subordinated notes carried at amortised cost F R AR ST RV 1E 960 460
Lease liabilities HEAMRK 29 28
Other borrowings HoAfER 211 59
22,811 11,340

For the transactions where interest rate risk is hedged, the periodic
payments and receipts arising from interest rate contracts which are
qualifying hedging instruments for, or individually managed in
conjunction with, interest bearing financial liabilities are first netted
together and then combined with the interest expense from the
corresponding financial liabilities.

The above included interest expense of HK$21,491 million (2022:
HK$10,782 million), before hedging effect, for financial liabilities that
are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
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FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME g% AR & A

Fee and commission income is disaggregated by services:

Loans, overdrafts and guarantees
Credit cards

Sale of third party insurance policies
Other retail banking services

Trust and other fiduciary activities
Investment products

Securities brokerage

Trade finance

Others

Total fee and commission income

Net fee income on financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at FVTPL
(other than those included in determining the
effective interest rate)

Fee income
Fee expenses

NET TRADING PROFIT 35S FS54H

Profit on dealing in foreign currencies and
funding swaps

Profit/(loss) on trading securities

Net gain on derivatives

Loss on other dealing activities

Dividend income from trading equity securities

NET RESULT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FVTPL  30EBiES DU LA EEE SR T BASSEH

Net (loss)/gain from financial instruments
designated at FVTPL

Net gain/(loss) from financial instruments
mandatorily measured at FVTPL (other than
those included in net trading profit)
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEEIT
888 846
759 692
528 484
208 197
177 224
162 195
141 203

96 92

402 439
3,361 3,372
2,648 2,762
3,361 3,372
(713) (610)
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
382 501

22 (124)

811 549

- )

10 18
1,225 943
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEEIT
(263) 292

1 (360)

(262) (68)




10.

11.

12.
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NET RESULT ON FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVOC| il 2 ml2s DU RN P EES B LT RS 5=

Net (loss)/profit on sale of debt securities HEEGEZZF (BB ]

A>3

Dividend income from equity securities e dlpceai tdSUN TN

NET HEDGING PROFIT ¥ 2SFS548

Fair value hedges ANHEE S
- Net gain/(loss) on hedged items - T R Y I H R
attributable to the hedged risk brEARFEA] (B5HR)
- AfEEER TEAE (58
- Net (loss)/gain on hedging instruments =l

OTHER OPERATING INCOME HAm&BULA

Net insurance profit IRk RS Al

Rental from safe deposit boxes IRbgFEHE U A

Rental income on properties (Note 32(ii)) EEME A (1EE32(0) )

Government subsidy — Employment Support ) e
Scheme BURHIRE — T Orate ) 51E

Others HAh

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
(60) 159

34 16

(26) 175

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEEIT BEEEIT
1,735 (8,541)
(1,705) 8,742

30 201

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
- 158

117 120

129 133

- 8

41 29

287 448




13.

14.

OPERATING EXPENSES #&&H

Contributions to defined contribution plan*
- Hong Kong
- Outside Hong Kong

Equity settled share-based payment expenses
(Note 42(f))

Salaries and other staff costs
Total staff costs

Premises and equipment expenses excluding
depreciation

- Expenses relating to short-term leases
- Expenses relating to low value assets

- Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities**

- Maintenance, repairs and others

Total premises and equipment expenses
excluding depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation

Other operating expenses
- Internet platform charges
- Legal and professional fees
- Communications, stationery and printing
- Advertising and business promotion
expenses
- Others
Total other operating expenses
Total operating expenses***
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R E T R E T
TE R A RS e
- & 191 170
- wHELISN 223 223
DARGAS R EEBEE SOV EE R (et
42(f)) 24 22
e R HEHAM B TR 5,007 5,078
B TR AL 5,445 5,493
N EFEHT YIS R
- HARREEIHE T 8 15
- ARMEEEEEHE S 10 6
- FPEfEsFEHEEAEN ]
S S R 1 )
- PRE -~ HEE A 739 702
NEIFEHTEE Y3 R sk th =2 HH 4
% 758 721
HTES B 820 875
Hihae
- HE4FEEEH 560 460
- EERBERGE 457 423
- iEER -~ SCEURETR 295 294
- BEEEREHERE SN 294 208
- HAth 803 660
H e S H4aE 2,409 2,135
B A 9,432 9,224

*  Forfeited contributions totalling HK$27 million (2022: HK$36
million) were utilised to reduce the Group’s contribution during
the year. There were no forfeited contributions available for
reducing future contributions at the year end (2022: Nil).

**  For the year ended 31st December, 2022, there were a credit
of HK$2 million of COVID-19-related rent concessions and a
credit of HK$1 million of rent concession for the purpose of
entering into a new lease. There was no such rental concession
during the year.

*** |ncluded direct operating expenses of HK$10 million (2022:
HK$7 million) in respect of investment properties which
generated rental income during the year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  £®t T Ek{EEL

Loans and advances to customers -GSV 05&e
Debt securities B
Others HoAth

*

*k

A JE PR Z AR B 2,700 B T
(202247 : ##3,600# 7c ) C#/HIF D
FIEEFHIPE o PR AFE I T HOL YT
B FTEIR IR Z 3 (20224F - i) -

720224712 31 H L 4E/E - 201950 % 2
AT £ 5 73,8 1200 BT R NG T 14 e
B B 2 0050 « AE LTIl
FEME L -

KLESEPT E 7T BRI 2 Y s 1 B3 74
Y B E T 2 8 48 71,000 2 or
(20224F : JBEH7005 77 ) -

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
5,164 5,416

211 345

108 162

5,483 5,923




15.

16.

17.

NET PROFIT ON SALE OF ASSETS HELD FOR SALE i e B> iHsF
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BWEEE T B EE T
Net loss on sale of properties HEYIEZ FE1R @) €))
Net profit on sale of disposal groups e B AH R 5 4 1,446
2 1,445
NET PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS W E&EEEE ZFF
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BWEEE T B EHETT
Net profit on disposal of bank premises, furniture, tHETTAE ~ Kl ~ 2B Rk 2
fixtures and equipment bl 14 18
Net loss on termination of lease RS 2 Es1R - (€))
14 17
INCOME TAX /B
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) FEUERRANIFRIE R |
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EE T B EHETT
Current tax — Hong Kong KERIA - T
Tax for the year ARAEERTIH 482 485
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA RSB [B] 55 (63) (57)
419 428
Current tax — outside Hong Kong AREMIA - FAELSH
Tax for the year ARAEERTIA 693 325
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA RSB RIE[B] 5 a7 (16)
676 309
Deferred tax PRFERIH
Origination and reversal of temporary i B 2R R ]
differences (Note 35(b)) (Hfz# 35(b) ) 79 (174)
1,174 563
The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% T RS FR I S DU RS T ST SR 58 Rl e it R

(2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for

overseas, Macau and Taiwan branches and

subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the relevant countries.

16.5% (20224 : 16.5%) & -

TGI ~ P e B IE AT R A B RO
KB AR TR -



17.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) FE#2 (%)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

Profit before tax

Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at
the rates applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Write back of over-provision in respect of
prior years
Others

Actual tax expense charged to income
statement

FREE AT A

PR T B
B BT R
ER

AR R

U
R AR
REERHITR IR IR

TEAESE BRI [ 5%
At

Nl eSS SR
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(b)  FIESTH B A B R S BT SR

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
5,310 4,941
1,000 730
484 273
(234) (385)
3 8
(80) (73)
1 10
1,174 563




18. Distribution/Dividends 43/ HEE.
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(a) Dividends payable to equity owners of the parent attributable to (a) & B & > AN 1 i FE (P AN S B R R YR 2.

the year
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT BEEETT
EEMIRE SR ET
Interim dividend declared and paid of 26'58{’3"5&5%%%03/87&
HK$0.36 per share on 2,658 million shares (2022£E_. 26-891‘%5&45&4
(2022: HK$0.16 per share on 2,689 million AWE0.167T ) (HEFA2())
shares) (Note 42(j)) 957 430
EEAMIRE SRR
Special dividend declared and paid (2022: ‘< %2225_: 26'95{%’;5&5&
HK$0.48 per share on 2,695 million HNE0.487T)  (HTEA2())
shares) (Note 42(j)) - 1,294
Second interim dividend of HK$0.18 per e -
share on 2,650 million shares (2022: %2?\11%%%_‘%26'50{55&
HK$0.17 per share on 2,680 million R AE50.187C (ZQZZE .
shares) 26.80(F e HERE0.175T ) 477 456
1,434 2,180

The total dividends attributable to the year is HK$0.54 per
share (2022: HK$0.81 per share). The second interim dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

JEREAE LR S R BB E0.547T (20224 - fgi
BWE0.81IT) o FRERE IR - BEE R PR
WARTER Ry AL

(b) Dividends payable to equity owners of the parent attributable (b) B K ERERE N0l ER EEEENS TR
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the EER RS A

year
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT BEEETT
2 T 26.77(8 K
Second interim dividend in respect of the EEZ\]K Ef}iﬁf { HX.
; h ] . R ARRL0.1757 (20224 ¢
previous financial year, approved and paid T L
during the year, of HK$0.17 per share on 2_9'23{"3"HXH§;%jj3'35 "
2,677 million shares (2022: HK$0.35 per TC) MY AR R
share on 2,923 million shares) (Note 42(j)) B (rEEs2() ) 455 1,023
(c) Distribution to holders of Additional Tier 1 capital () DIRTHEI—RERTEFAA
instruments
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT B EETT
Distribution paid on the Additional Tier 1 S A TRETR
capital instruments (Note 42(j)) (Hza2() ) 596 708




19. EARNINGS PER SHARE 4gi&F

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent of HK$3,522 million (2022: HK$3,651 million) after
accounting for the distribution of HK$596 million (2022:
HK$708 million) to Additional Tier 1 issue holders, and on the
weighted average of 2,668 million ordinary shares outstanding
during the year (2022: 2,759 million), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(@
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BREAENHZRED IR T EIN—SEAR TEF
ANHENES.96(8 7T (20224 : JEIE7.08(87T) 1R
] i A 7 A 2 1 e R A1) R 35.22 {8 T (12022
£ 1 36518 TC ) AR NE ST M0
FEPH94526.68{8 i (20224 : 27.59(8k ) 515

(T HI A P38

2023 2022

Number of Number of

shares shares

B8 E B E

Million Million

HE HE

Issued ordinary shares at 1% January PLHLIH T T8 2,680 2,923
Effect of shares issued in lieu of dividends DABER S S T Y 52 2 2 11
Effect of share buy-back REfr (el s (14) (175)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares UNPISIINER ST B

at 31 December hfE 8 2,668 2,759

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is the same as the
calculation of basic earnings per share, except that the
weighted average of ordinary shares is adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential shares. For the year ended 31
December, 2023, the weighted average of ordinary shares
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares was 2,668
million (2022: 2,759 million).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b)

R

RS B AT R R A B AR R E
PR A P 3 BT IR S S AR B P B (A VR A
PRI ETTIHE - B2 2023512 31H 1E4F
[ > BRATA S RV S R A M R U L AT
LR 2 e 7 B9 IR 135 90 26.68 {8 e ( 20224
27.59(8 /) FHE -

e ER Y B AIRE 599 (%

2023 2022
Number of Number of
shares shares
dlrid=| dlrie=|
Million Million
HE HE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 H31 H % i 7y 1y
at 31 December TR % 2,668 2,759
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares EadaaR st BT
under the Bank’s share option schemes s SR (< 5 2 - -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 H 31 H % iR {7y 1y
(diluted) at 315 December hoRESEEa s () 2,668 2,759
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION EZEf{4

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the R (AEIEET) 5E383(1) A (AE (HFEEEF|
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Bk A E2E 2 EIEEENESAT -

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind Discretionary Share contributions 2023
fees i - R bonuses ~ options (Nete) BIRETE] Total
s KB BOVSiCar  sRRLhE HEER HEER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEHET  BREET BEEHET B EET BEEET  BNEET

Executive Chairman

PITERE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po
ZEHEEL 0.7 11.8 3.8 2.7 1.1 20.1
Co-Chief Executives
BERETTBRE S,
Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
FRENE 0.5 8.0 7.0 5.2 0.7 21.4
Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
FERHSE 05 8.0 7.0 5.2 0.7 21.4
Non-executive Directors
JEPTEE
Prof. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung
FEEE 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing
FEESE 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai
ARG 0.5 - - - - 05
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze
RS 05 - - - - 0.5
Dr. Daryl NG Win-kong
EviSALER 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Mr. Masayuki OKU
BIEZ ek 05 - - - - 0.5
Dr. Francisco Javier SERRADO

TREPAT
Francisco Javier SERRADO

TREPATI{# - 0.5 - - - - 0.5

Independent Non-executive
Directors

FIEITEE

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun

L 1.0 - - - - 1.0
Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai

SUTRRER L 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing

BESRSEE 0.9 - - - - 0.9
Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen

[EILAE A 1.1 - - - - 11
Dr. Delman LEE

BRI L 1.0 - - - - 1.0

Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO

FE5 B 0.9 - - - - 0.9

Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung

SESEt 0.7 - - - - 0.7
11.7 27.8 17.8 13.1 2.5 72.9

Note: The share options were granted to Executive Directors under the 77 #E7/7& B E2RIELITHIIE S0 1 Z1ERS 370

Bank’s Staff Share Option Schemes. The values of share options J o ZH S BRI 2 S 2023 £E J 1 4E
represented the fair values of the share options granted in 2023 FET U BB A B S i
and prior years amortised over the respective vesting periods BELS o B E B s SR B i

without actual cash payment. The details of these benefits in kind
are disclosed under the paragraph “Information on Share Options”
in the Report of the Directors and Note 39.

EET | R IEEN ) R34



20. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) EIEFi& (4)
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Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind Discretionary Share contributions 2022
fees i - R bonuses ~ options (Nete) BIRETE] Total
e KB BURSTEAr  sRREhE Y BEEK HEER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEHET  BREET BEHET BN EET BiEHET  BNEET

Executive Chairman

PITERE

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

ZEHEEL 0.6 11.8

Co-Chief Executives

BERETTBES,

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu

FRENE 0.5 7.7
Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun

FERHSE 0.5 7.7

Non-executive Directors
JEPTEE
Prof. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung
TR 0.6 -
Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing
ZERRE 0.6 -
Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai
ARG 0.4 B
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze
FESE 0.4 -
Dr. Daryl NG Win-kong
EviSALER 0.6 -
Mr. Masayuki OKU
B4t 0.5 -
Dr. Francisco Javier SERRADO

TREPAT
Francisco Javier SERRADO

TREPAT{#E 05 .

Independent Non-executive

Directors
B IEITEE
Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun
L 0.9 -
Dr. the Hon. Rita FAN HSU Lai-tai
SiRER L 0.6 -
Mr. Meocre LI Kwok-wing
FE S E 1.2 -
Dr. the Hon. Henry TANG Ying-yen
ESELAE L 1.0 -
Dr. Delman LEE
BRI L 0.9 -
Mr. William Junior Guilherme DOO
HFESEE 0.8 -
Dr. David MONG Tak-yeung
EL RN 0.6 -

3.6 2.9 11 20.0

6.4 4.7 0.7 20.0

6.4 4.6 0.7 19.9

11.2 27.2

16.4 12.2 25 69.5

Note: The share options were granted to Executive Directors under the
Bank’s Staff Share Option Schemes. The values of share options
represented the fair values of the share options granted in 2022
and prior years amortised over the respective vesting periods
without actual cash payment. The details of these benefits in kind
are disclosed under the paragraph “Information on Share Options”
in the Report of the Directors and Note 39.

B THFEIRIEATTHIE B8R 7T H 151 Ta8 %
T# o ZEIREL SR A5 7 Fat IR EF 2022 FE R TF 47
PETILTEEF BRI AT B - T TR A
BN o BRILE B s A IS5 H
EEH R R0/ -



21.

22.

FIVE TOP-PAID EMPLOYEES S5&#FHMEEN{ER

Salaries and other emoluments e B A
Performance-related bonuses FKIRAHEAEAL
Share options PO

Pension contributions BIRE R

The remuneration of the five top-paid employees is within the
following bands:

HK$ e

11,000,001 — 11,500,000
12,000,001 — 12,500,000
19,500,001 — 20,000,000
20,000,001 — 20,500,000
21,000,001 — 21,500,000

Included in the emoluments of the five top-paid employees were the
emoluments of 3 (2022: 3) Directors and 2 (2022: 2) senior
management members. Their director’'s emoluments have been
included in Note 20 above.

SEGMENT REPORTING 4r&(#s

(a) Business segments

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s Senior Management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following eight reportable
segments.

Hong Kong operations divided into the following five
reportable segments.

Personal banking includes branch operations, personal
internet banking, consumer finance, property loans, MPF
business, and credit card business.

Wholesale banking includes corporate lending and loan
syndication, asset based lending, commercial lending,
securities lending and trade financing activities with
correspondent banks and corporates.
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2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AW EE T AW EE T
41 39

26 24

17 16

3 3

87 82

5 e =y RS RHERE AT ¢

2023 2022
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
(VN (VN

- 2

2 -

- 2

1

S = Y 8 A LR 3L (20224 + 3(ir) &
B2 (20224 : 2fir) HEEHAA - IIHVE
Ei e TR EAHEE2004 -

(@) B

AR B EIERS Ty A SRS R
Ml R A AR o S ED B SRR L L PR T
AEESREHEAQE RER i R
IR TR — B o AEEBIERELT )\ AT EE
HorHs -

BB B LUT L E TR R 26 -

B ASRAT ELFE 178 ~ (B AEE A4 ERIT -
HEEHL ~ VISRER - SR ATRE R (s
FIARSER -

HEBERAT LIS SR RRE AL - B R
B~ PR s BRI E R RYIRTT R
BT R b FEH R BT o



22. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4y&#k#es (48)

(@

Business segments (continued)

Treasury markets include treasury operations and securities
dealing.

Wealth management includes private banking business,
investment products & advisory and securities & futures broking.

Others mainly include trust business carried out by subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong and other supporting units of Hong
Kong operations.

Chinese Mainland operations mainly include the back office
unit for Chinese Mainland operations in Hong Kong, all
subsidiaries and associates operating in Chinese Mainland,
except those subsidiaries carrying out data processing and
other back office operations for Hong Kong operations in
Chinese Mainland.

Overseas, Macau and Taiwan operations mainly include the
back office unit for Overseas, Macau and Taiwan operations in
Hong Kong, Macau Branch, Taiwan Branch and all branches,
subsidiaries and associates operating overseas.

Corporate management absorbs the regulatory capital cost of
loan capital issued by the Bank and receives, from Hong Kong
operations, the interest income on business activities funded by
capital instruments issued by the Bank.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources among segments, the Group’s Senior
Management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interests
in associates and joint ventures and assets held for sale.
Segment liabilities include deposits, financial liabilities and other
liabilities attributable to the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to interest and fee and commission
income generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

(@
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BEIH (F)
MBS EEY EEF SR -

M EEECOELASYTER - EELE
BN SRR RIS B AT ST

HASER X Z eSS B ATLEZE
SEETS S HAM SR RS AR B B -

o B PSR - S B R AE A SR P A
IRENRAL ~ FrA S BN EH R E A
H] R A E] (B B T B A B
FREN-ENIRET ISR Tipi e S ] VAT

BRE ~ BPIR G EEH OEE TSR -
PR EERFNREEA - FrAEEIMNEE
AT RIE P R 508 ~ IR S =] BB B
EJ °

EEEERERTRITHEERANEEESRK
KRR E BB ER A TRTEATAMRE
Bh 2 SER TSR WA -

FERTAS 3 BRI R 5y e o3 Y B0 - SR
HmEEEHE SRR L N AR v B
— R A BN AR

PREFE N E A EREZ SRR ELER
S  THEERSTAEE - oM ARaRE
TR~ szl 2 15 e v Bl 181 o S O At 25
f5 -

WA B S %A R o3 A EE 2R A B R IR 155
PRI - e EARE 7 #0582 HY m]
B B Iy T S 2 AT B AR o i T ]
HE o HL -
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22. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4y&fshds (48)

(a) Business segments (continued) (a) = (&)
2023
Hong Kong operations 75355
Overseas,
Macau and Inter-
Chinese Taiwan segment
Personal Wholesale Treasury Wealth Mainland operations Corporate elimination
banking banking markets  management Others Total operations  EF% - P9 management ag-iibd Total
{8 A SR1T HEERER1T it W e R oAt W TPEINRETS BB fSEEH ptis ] “EEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHET AEEHET AEEHET AREEHET AEEHET AEEHET AEEHET BEEHET BEEHET BEEHET AEEHET
Net interest income/(expense) FFEUA () 5,653 2,888 1,352 387 (251) 10,029 4,082 2,637 126 - 16,874
Non-interest income/(expense) JEFEUA (FZH) 1,189 676 (42) 554 345 2,722 978 202 - (30) 3,872
Operating income LBUA 6,842 3,564 1,310 941 94 12,751 5,060 2,839 126 (30) 20,746
Operating expenses FEe =Sl (1,792) (485) (194) (399) (2,378) (5,248) (3,409) (805) - 30 (9,432)
Operating profit/(loss) before *Tw S &8
impairment losses W (58D 5,050 3,079 1,116 542 (2,284) 7,503 1,651 2,034 126 - 11,314
(Charge for)/write back of e
impairment losses on financial BT HRBME (%)
instruments /| Iﬂl#?& (128) (3,652) 95 (261) (3) (3,949) (1,657) 123 - - (5,483)
Impairment losses on associate = FAIDEG - - - - - - - (726) - - (726)
Impairment losses on other assets A - - - - - - (6) - - - (6)
Operating profit/(loss) after F
impairment losses w51 4,922 (573) 1,211 281 (2,287) 3,554 12) 1,431 126 - 5,099
Net profit/(loss) on sale of assets HERA RN ERE
held for sale il (tﬁ?ﬁ) - - - - 4 4 @) - - - 2
Net profit/(loss) on disposal of i \W%L‘“ /B AE
subsidiaries/associates 3 'ﬂ/ (fE5t8) - - - - 1 1 - 13) - - 12)
Net profit/(loss) on disposal of
fixed assets (fE5t8) 4) - - - 1 (3) 17 - - - 14
Valuation losses on investment ot e
properties E{ﬁ&ﬁ#’ﬁémé - - - - (84) (84) - ) - - (86)
Share of profits less losses of B R EHE R
associates and joint ventures ktﬁ?ﬁ - - - - 9 9 51 251 - - 293
Profit/(loss) before taxation 4,918 (573) 1,211 281 (2,374) 3,463 54 1,667 126 - 5,310
Depreciation for the year NI (207) (19) 12) 9 (206) (453) (295) (59) - - (807)
Segment assets Pan: 5y 124,381 150,293 233,644 17,488 11,299 537,105 231,335 128,647 - (45,125) 851,962
Investments in associates and ) )
joint ventures g AN R B I - - - - 48 48 3,843 4,493 - - 8,384
Other assets — Assets held for
sale 15 15 - 15
Total assets 124,381 150,293 233,644 17,488 11,362 537,168 235,178 133,140 - (45,125) 860,361
Total liabilities 358,753 41,148 37,547 33,026 3,139 473,613 206,654 116,422 - (44,654) 752,035
Capital expenditure incurred .
during the year FENE AL 225 26 12 11 245 519 457 32 - - 1,008




22. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4y&#fsis (48)

(@

Business segments (continued)

Net interest income/(expense)

Non-interest income
Operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss) before

impairment losses

Impairment losses on financial

instruments

Impairment losses on other assets

Operating profit/(loss) after
impairment losses

Net profit/(loss) on sale of assets

held for sale

Net loss on disposal of
subsidiaries/associates

Net profit/(loss) on disposal of

fixed assets

Valuation losses on investment

properties

Share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Depreciation for the year

Segment assets

Investments in associates and

joint ventures

Other assets — Assets held for

sale
Total assets

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure incurred

during the year

Note: The financials of Hong Kong operations have been restated to conform to the current year's presentation that reflected the
organisational restructure during the year. The restructure includes regrouping MPF business from “Others” segment to “Personal
banking” segment, regrouping merchant acquiring business from “Personal banking” segment to “Wholesale banking” segment, and
combining previous “Centralised operations” segment and “Others” segment into one single “Others” segment under Hong Kong

operations.

FFEWA (G2
FEFIEHA
KA

KBS
ARABRIRE RS 2 408
L (R5RD

HERAFHEREZS
it VN o))
HEEAE BEAE
LR
HEEEEE R,
(E5$8)

B REYIHEE
FEASERE A E R EE R
5 1E

WL (R5R)

Al

FENHTE

FERENEABL

(@ &7 (8
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2022
Hong Kong operations (Restated) Note 3% (E#H) ©
Overseas,

Macau and Inter-

Chinese Taiwan segment

Personal Wholesale Treasury Wealth Mainland operations Corporate elimination
banking banking markets management Others Total operations I ~ HFIK  management ag-iibd Total
{8 A SR1T HEERER1T it W e R HoAth W TPEINRETS BB fSEEH sl ksl
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R ETT R ETT TSR R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT
4,007 2,859 (19) 367 (106) 7,108 3,997 2,177 226 - 13,508
1,249 657 373 565 592 3,436 860 179 - (29) 4,446
5,256 3,516 354 932 486 10,544 4,857 2,356 226 (29) 17,954
(1,713) (500) (168) (358) (2,401) (5,140) (3,374) (739) - 29 (9,224)
3,543 3,016 186 574 (1,915) 5,404 1,483 1,617 226 - 8,730
@27 (3,258) (70) (40) - (3,495) (2,088) (340) - - (5,923)
- - - - - - (©)] - - - (©)]
3,416 (242) 116 534 (1,915) 1,909 (608) 1,277 226 - 2,804
- - - - 1,446 1,446 @ - - - 1,445
- - - - (€] (€] - - - - (€]
(16) - - - - (16) 34 @ - - 17
- - - - a7 a7 - @ - - 179)
- - - - ©) ©) 221 643 - - 855
3,400 (242) 116 534 (656) 3,152 (354) 1,917 226 B 4,941
(239) 16) 12) @ (246) (520) (286) (56) - - (862)
120,111 163,414 231,299 22,679 11,560 549,063 245,349 126,730 - (47,405) 873,737
- - - - 56 56 3,893 5,112 - - 9,061
- - - - 15 15 12 - - - 27
120,111 163,414 231,299 22,679 11,631 549,134 249,254 131,842 - (47,405) 882,825
342,982 54,275 51,773 35,141 2,940 487,111 220,008 116,307 - (46,947) 776,479
108 33 63 9 114 327 442 28 - - 797

it BB B E

I+ LU SRR 2 BT AR RMAF NI AR - B TR

HMELFEEHEBE TR M) FEB B AT ) EBAE NG IEEBE AT ) #5
SPESE T T HERARTT ) B o WAFIRAHT TP SREE M B S O TR TR

2

— IRt FEEPE
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22. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4y&#k#es (45)

(b) Geographical segments (b) &S
The information concerning geographical analysis has been & o 2 BERHE IR A TS EEN R EE
classified by the location of the principal operations of the AR B e AT 7 ST B SRS P AE f B
entities and branches of the Bank responsible for reporting the BB B ) T T By 2 A T B
results or booking the assets or, by the location where the S FAE H B T DLy o

subsidiaries or business units with special risks associated with
operations originate.

2023
Other Asian Inter-
Countries segment
Chinese and Regions elimination
Hong Kong Mainland A EEMEISR Others Pax:iiiibd Total
i R et HoAt, p&ZEis | HEEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEHET BN EETT  BWEETT  BREET  BNEETT  BEHET

Operating income A UN 13,181 5,031 888 1,953 (307) 20,746
Profit/(loss) before  BREZATAA],
taxation (58D 3,512 83 (188) 1,903 - 5,310
Total assets HENTH 537,607 234,486 48,322 84,781 (44,835) 860,361
Total liabilities p=tERkh 473,670 206,304 40,901 75,525 (44,365) 752,035
Contingent liabilities ZARMK
and commitments HKYE 90,012 270,752 7,795 6,533 - 375,092
Capital expenditure FRENE
during the year B~z 521 456 20 11 - 1,008
2022
Other Asian Inter-
Countries segment
Chinese and Regions elimination
Hong Kong Mainland A EEMEISR Others Pax:iiiibd Total
i R pr&iint HAth &L HEER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BiEEET  OBWHS T BEWMEEIT  BWEETT  BRHET  BEHET

Operating income LA UN 11,081 4,832 770 1,590 (319) 17,954
Profit/(loss) before  FREEATER I

taxation (58D 3,167 (179) 938 1,015 - 4,941
Total assets HENTH 549,662 248,570 51,427 80,336 (47,170) 882,825

Total liabilities AELEE 487,253 219,631 43,686 72,621 (46,712) 776,479
Contingent liabilities ZARMK
and commitments R 94,745 242,178 8,729 6,749 - 352,401

Capital expenditure  FENE
during the year Bfi=Z 327 442 24 4 - 797



23. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS (Note 47(a)(ii)) H& RAESITHIGEE (J/2247()(i) )

24.
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2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
EHEHETT BEEHEIT
Cash in hand N 1,417 1,465
Balances with central banks 1E R R TTIVESE 7 32,139 34,496
Balances with other banks TEHASRTTHVEE T 12,348 18,620
Gross carrying amount before impairment
allowances ARIUGRIRAE A 2 IR B AR EH 45,904 54,581
Less: Impairment allowances (Note 43(a)(ix)) & : JEUEZAER (472#43(a)(ix) ) 1) 2
45,903 54,579
PLACEMENTS WITH AND ADVANCES TO BANKS (Note 47(a)(il) fESRIFHIESK RS (f7:247(a)(i) )
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
Placements with and advances to banks TESRITHNAF RN R Bk
Maturing FIHAHAMR
- within one month - YEAW 40,885 52,337
- after one month but within one year - EHEIFRA 2,808 7,867
Gross carrying amount before impairment
allowances ARIGRIRAE A 2 IR B A5 EH 43,693 60,204
Less: Impairment allowances (Note 43(a)(ix)) i * JBEZER (472#43(a)(ix) ) 2 (€))
43,691 60,203
Of which: Hrp:
Placements with and advances to central
banks TE PSR THIA RO BR 2,142 495




25.

26.

27.

TRADE BILLS ¥ 5 Z=E#

Page 70

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEETT AEEEETT
Measured at amortised cost ST =
Gross carrying amount before impairment

allowances AABRIAE 2 (4 = AR A (B 4R 251 41

Less: Impairment allowances (Note 43(a)(ix)) J& * JB{E2EMH (HEE43(a)(ix)) - -
251 41
e immE A S TR U s DA S A S
Measured at FVOCI EEsE 122 488
373 529
TRADING ASSETS B fREE

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEE T AEEEE T

Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) BUFERS: (BIESMNERLETHE)

(Note 47(a)(ii) (HfzF4T(a)(ii) ) - 292
Debt securities (Note 47(a)(ii)) B (47@)(ii)) 2,764 983
Equity securities M8 77 285 255

3,049 1,530
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 2 E 55k K Sk
(a) Loans and advances to customers (a) B EFRRETR
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEETT AEEEETT
Gross carrying amount before impairment
allowances ARIUGRIRAE A 2 IR {E AR EH 532,111 549,014
Less: Impairment allowances (Note
43(a)(ix)) W OREZEER (fi143(a)(ix) ) (5,127) (6,620)
526,984 542,394
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27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) ZHFE&sxk#ak (4)

(b) Loans and advances to customers - by industry sectors (b) BEEEIREI — TS0

TSR R PR B RO R 7y
Eetz R 8 B TR B AE S -

The analysis of gross advances to customers and the percentage of
secured advances by industry sector is based on the categories and
definitions used by the HKMA.

2023 2022
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
covered by covered by
Gross collateral Gross collateral
advances  AIRIFHREK advances HIEFREGK
KA HYESIEL A HYESIEL
HK$ Mn % HK$ Mn %
EMEE T iR OBWEETT B3
Loans for use in Hong Kong EEBERNER
Industrial, commercial and financial TRl
- Property development - YEEBRE 28,590 59.39 36,872 59.19
- Property investment - PEESE 50,155 92.35 52,366 92.57
- Financial concerns - Rk 14,171 54.48 14,892 67.56
- Stockbrokers - REREL 1,218 91.77 708 99.54
- Wholesale and retail trade - it ESE 5,996 53.85 6,560 56.18
- Manufacturing - BlER 3,219 39.40 4,485 29.00
- Transport and transport equipment - ZEGER RS 4,106 50.05 5,495 42.22
- Recreational activities - IREETET) 108 99.41 347 93.76
- Information technology - EAREY 2,093 63.13 1,438 34.22
- Others - Hith 20,868 54.76 16,262 49.00
Sub-total /Nt 130,524 70.14 139,425 69.69
Individuals EA
- Loans for the purchase of flats in _—_ =
the Home Ownership Scheme, . E‘%ijl E%rﬁgsjﬁ
Private Sector Participation EJj ) *AJF\Z;%E
Scheme and Tenants Purchase ERET#], & AR
Scheme HEGE ) MFEK 1,081 99.10 1,200 99.97
- Loans for the purchase of other - MEHAEEYERI
residential properties E/e 96,147 99.53 91,944 99.95
- Credit card advances - [EHFEEK 4,740 0.00 4,115 0.00
- Others - HAt 20,555 58.71 24,367 55.23
Sub-total /NEF 122,523 88.83 121,626 87.61
Total loans for use in Hong Kong TET AS{ F Y S AE 253,047 79.19 261,051 78.07
Trade finance T 5,592 32.97 5,110 38.56
Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note) fE& A LIYMEAIVEK () 273,472 35.82 282,853 35.50
Total advances to customers BB ERE 532,111 56.41 549,014 55.75
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27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) ZEEEZ s (4)

(b) Loans and advances to customers - by industry sectors (continued)

Note: Loans for use outside Hong Kong include the following loans for use
in Chinese Mainland and loans for use outside Hong Kong and

Chinese Mainland.

Loans for use in Chinese Mainland

Industrial, commercial and financial

Property development

Property investment

Financial concerns

Stockbrokers

Wholesale and retail trade
Manufacturing

Transport and transport equipment
Information technology

Others

Sub-total

Individuals

Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties

Credit card advances
Others
Sub-total

TR ST

T RE<Fh

- P

- PIEERE

- R

- R

- flEEEEs
- Bhgg

- B
- EERHE

- At

/NEF

LA

- EE AT
%

- R

- Hft

gt

Total loans for use in Chinese Mainland £ H AV {5 FH 09 SRk 4R

Loans for use outside Hong Kong
and Chinese Mainland

Industrial, commercial and financial

Property development

Property investment

Financial concerns

Wholesale and retail trade
Manufacturing

Transport and transport equipment
Recreational activities

Information technology

Others

Sub-total

Individuals

Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties

Credit card advances
Others
Sub-total

EEBR R ERHMSMERER

£

TLRE xRl

- PR

- PIEERE

- R

- fitamEEeEs
- B

- LR
- AT

- EARHE

- HAt

/NEF

N

- ELEA T
%

- (RS

- 3t

At

Total loans for use outside Hong Kong  FEZ s Hf B St LAY MeE F Y
and Chinese Mainland

Total loans for use outside Hong Kong  TE& LAY ME FIAY S AR

273,472

(b) FFEGRREK — #1736 (8D

L AEBELIINE AT AL T A
JHHTEGARAT B AR B P 1 LASHE T &

ﬁ—

2023 2022
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
covered by covered by
Gross collateral Gross collateral
advances AR advances HIEFREGEK
KA =R KA =R
HK$ Mn % HK$ Mn %
B EET HA%E  B¥EET ERES
29,598 43.16 38,339 33.92
7,796 67.72 10,918 76.61
43,746 10.19 43,747 0.79
440 100.00 678 100.00
8,509 10.42 9,331 13.91
14,255 7.35 13,291 7.76
1,921 61.89 2,077 81.44
1,194 0.74 1,994 0.27
18,123 14.07 18,709 11.63
125,582 22.80 139,084 20.56
10,398 99.96 13,139 100.00
3,825 0.00 4,962 0.00
18,552 3.67 16,340 3.34
32,775 33.79 34,441 39.73
158,357 25.08 173,525 24.37
8,239 50.27 11,335 56.55
33,696 77.20 40,054 78.58
14,109 73.80 3,379 41.54
4,808 15.39 4,184 18.43
15,032 1.41 13,440 3.69
2,693 44,13 3,069 44,94
885 80.27 517 94.78
4,741 3.66 4,063 8.12
27,536 40.97 25,444 45.35
111,739 49.11 105,485 51.47
3,297 99.91 3,767 100.00
1 0.00 2 0.00
78 99.65 74 87.24
3,376 99.86 3,843 99.70
115115 50.60 109,328 53.16
35.82 282,853 35.50



27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) ZEEEZ s (4)

(b) Loans and advances to customers - by industry sectors (continued)

Individually impaired loans, as well as relevant information, in respect
of industry sectors which constitute 10% or more of total advances to

customers are as follows:

(i)

(iii)

Property development

a. Individually impaired loans

b. Specific provisions

c. Collective provisions

d. New provision charged to income statement
e. Written off

Property investment

a. Individually impaired loans

b. Specific provisions

c. Collective provisions

d. New provision charged to income statement
e. Written off

Loans for purchase of residential properties

a. Individually impaired loans

b. Specific provisions

c. Collective provisions

d. New provision charged to income statement
e. Written off

(iv) Financial concerns

The specific provisions represent lifetime expected credit loss
provisions for credit impaired (Stage 3) exposures and the collective
provisions represent the 12-month and lifetime expected credit loss
provisions for non-credit impaired (Stage 1 and Stage 2) exposures.

a. Individually impaired loans

b. Specific provisions

c. Collective provisions

d. New provision charged to income statement
e. Written off

(i)

(iii)

(V)

Vst

a. CERRAERY &K
b. FikAE

C. FEAGUER

d. FRUEs RS AR
e. i

YIRIE
a. EERIRIEN LK
b. KR

c. S Al

d. PSR S
e. fHii

PR AR (R B
. EERTRER SR

- IR

- BRRGE

Nl EnE & CliE

T O O T Q

SRl

a. CERR(ERY &K

- RERAERE

- BRRGE

Nl EnE & CliE

® o O T

A —

PEER R R

(b) & FECRRETK - 1517368 (D

5 P EGERER  53 2 e A _ERYTT S o EE A
TRAEEY R b HARB &t T

2023

HK$ Mn
AW EE T

7,581
2,162

404
2,157
3,934

4,094
441
67
227
910

359
12
25
17

640
50
121
140
45
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2022
HK$ Mn
AW EE T

8,114
2,643
502
2,949
659

3,325
956
286
589
605

318
13
40
34

43
27
118
107

FPRAE (R R E (B B R AL S SN E &
HE (B=REE) At BTSRRI EEE
JEBEAE L2 H e & &I BITRIN (5 B iEL (56—
PEER ) AR -
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27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) ZEEEZ s (4)

(c) Loans and advances to customers — by geographical areas (c) B EFA R — &8

The information concerning the breakdown of the gross amount of
advances to customers by geographical areas is derived according to
the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer
of risk in accordance with the requirements of Banking (Disclosure)
Rules. In general, such transfer of risk takes place if the claims are
guaranteed by a party in a country which is different from that of the
counterparty or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in another country. The location of a party
is determined by its residence which is the economic territory under
whose laws the party is incorporated or registered. This requirement is
different from the allocation under segment reporting in Note 22 which
is prepared in a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s Senior Management. The specific
provisions represent lifetime expected credit loss provisions for credit
impaired (Stage 3) exposures and the collective provisions represent
the 12-month and lifetime expected credit loss provisions for non-credit
impaired (Stage 1 and Stage 2) exposures.

REE GRITE (3FE) KA - &5 3Ky
& A S SURARIE A 2 B T PR £ > 0% i i
BB RE G - — KIS - AR E
FESES I IRAE 5 TP E Y B SR 6 — T %
S (AR BT H SR IR TR NI T > 1%
PRATHVR SRR TR 1Y A B 3 IR - Jl
W e R — R R R B 5 — R - —J5
YR AE S LSRR TE - TR S (e s G 4y
JiEE M S R R AT RUE YA £ o BEEOR
It E22 WS I RO A E > R EHVRELTTA
HAHE RS TR EEE A B TAR—
PR - FEIRAE( TE IRE (S SRR AL S 4TI HITH
WEERL (B=EE) AR BT IER
EE SRR L12{E H & & &5 TR (E S18%
(B PEE R ISR ) ARf -

2023
Advances
Total overdue for Impaired
advances to over three advances to
customers months customers Specific Collective
& PEEK HA3(E H BIEZF  provisions provisions
R DLy FAK FEURAEME R
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEHEEITT BEEHETT  OBYHET BYEEHET  BEHET
Hong Kong T 251,929 2,329 4,863 825 215
Chinese Mainland TR E A 174,954 5,393 8,567 2,648 1,072
Other Asian Countries and - HIEEHEIZR ke
Regions & 31,279 61 111 31 121
Others HoAth 73,949 297 793 32 183
Total HHEH 532,111 8,080 14,334 3,536 1,591
% of total advances to 1% P E
customers ESTEE 2.69%
2022
Advances
Total overdue for Impaired
advances to over three advances to
customers months customers Specific Collective
& PEEK EHA3E A BIEZF  provisions provisions
YaEE DRI FAK PR R
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHETT  ANMEET  BYEET BEAET  ANEET
Hong Kong T 270,332 552 1,924 813 450
Chinese Mainland TR E A 183,886 4,405 10,824 3,623 1,069
Other Asian Countries and FoA ST B B
Regions B2t 30,227 48 58 8 109
Others HoAth 64,569 - 339 74 474
Total HHEH 549,014 5,005 13,145 4518 2,102
% of total advances to 155 5 B
customers ESTEE

2.39%
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27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) ZEEEZ s (4)

(c) Loans and advances to customers — by geographical areas (c)
(continued)

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans with
objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis. The above
information by geographical areas is derived according to the location
of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer of risk.

(d) Loans and advances to customers — net investment in finance leases (d)

Loans and advances to customers include net investment in equipment
leased under finance leases. The total minimum lease payments
receivable under finance leases and their present values at the year
end are as follows:

EFERE - HEEE (8D

TR BERK R R {1 ) 4 R 2 Bk A e i 7
BIRFAEEYERK o LA EIS &R - BRI
X S FHIATAE G 27 BRI R N 2R -

FEEHEK — B ERF R
& F BRI B DR E i SR U T R

1 o TRIEBhE T S B S (A B (s -
HIREWT ¢

2023 2022
Present Interest Present Interest
value of the income Total value of the income Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments

RARTHE LiEERN RARTHE RARFHE lEERN RARTHE
frERE FILEHA (e C L frRERE FEULA e/ C L
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT  BEEET  OBWEETT  AYEET BN EET  AREET

Amounts receivable:  TEYIRRK -

Within one year LVEDIA 165 72 237 179 69 248
After one year but
within two years VLR T2 148 64 212 151 62 213
After two years but
within three years ~ 2F:-LMEZE3FN 138 58 196 141 56 197
After three years but
within four years LR E AN 130 52 182 124 51 175
After four years but
within five years AFE LR E SN 124 47 171 120 48 168
After five years SHELITR 1,463 312 1,775 1,614 336 1,950
2,168 605 2,773 2,329 622 2,951
Less: Impairment
allowances B ORE A 12) (10
Net investment in B SRR
finance leases B 2,156 2,319

The net investment in finance leases is carried on the statement of
financial position as loans and advances to customers. No accrual is
made for the interest income relating to future periods.

B S R U P SRR B AE
BRI P HIRR - AR A A S A st
K



28.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES &&#&%

Investment securities
measured at
amortised cost

Gross carrying amount
before impairment
allowances

Less: Impairment

allowances

Investment securities
measured at FVOCI

Investment securities
mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Investment securities
measured at
amortised cost

Gross carrying amount
before impairment
allowances

Less: Impairment

allowances

Investment securities
measured at FVOCI

Investment securities
mandatorily
measured at FVTPL
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2023
Treasury bills
(including
Exchange
Fund lel:ls) Certificates
B %5 of deposit Debt Equity Investment
(BLIESNE held securities securities funds Total
BEEEE) FAESGE [EeeEces Rty e85 EEe HEER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEETT BEEET BYEET BYEET BYEsET B¥EET
FHEERCR T &
e
ESESEAR
IR {E 4850 2,660 1,103 8,099 - - 11,862
B AE AR - - (672) - - (672)
2,660 1,103 7,427 - - 11,190
P amiB A A T
s DA BN
EERIEEE S 27,914 - 124,347 959 - 153,220
SR A TR A DL
FZB A E T
BIEEES - - 2,076 - 784 2,860
30,574 1,103 133,850 959 784 167,270
2022
Treasury bills
(including
Exchange
FundBills)  certificates
B %5 of deposit Debt Equity Investment
(BLIESNE held securities securities funds Total
RERR) FrA G EBES et 58 % REES HEER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEETT EREET BRaET BFaET AFaET B¥EET
ARG &
&
ESESEAR
IR E 4R 2,428 809 11,630 - - 14,867
R AE AR - - (405) - - (405)
2,428 809 11,225 - - 14,462
Fr B A A UL
s DA BN
EE ARG S 22,390 - 105,167 839 - 128,396
SR R 7 DL
FZB A TEAE(E T
BIEEES - - 3,270 37 842 4,149
24,818 809 119,662 876 842 147,007




28. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) &% (&)
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Equity securities designated at FVOCI  #5 5 &R H -2 s DU A S E B R 38 5%

Equity investments held for long-term %ﬁfﬁé%ﬁﬁiﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ
strategic purposes Rt &

2023 2022
Dividend Dividend
income income
recognised recognised
Fair value CHEY  Fair value R
AEEE B A AEEE R R U A
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEE T BWEEIT BWEET BEEETT

959 34 839 16

As at 31% December, 2023, equity securities designated at FVOCI
amounting to HK$959 million (2022: HK$839 million) were held for
long-term strategic purposes, of which HK$809 million (2022: HK$694
million) was attributable to the fair value of the Bank’s investment in
China UnionPay Co., Ltd. None of these strategic investments was
disposed of during 2023 and 2022, and there were no transfers of any
cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to these investments.

Jr2023512H31H - FrAERIRIS L 236 E R
208 8 At 4 T WA e DASZ I BB Y PR (7 56 2 <88
Fo /W 9.59(8 T (20224 « AHE8.39(IL) » H
AEWE8.09(B T (20224F 1 HBWE6.94(87T ) KATT
BRI (0 A TR A B Z S &1 A HEE - £2023
20225 FE N A B ERIBIGE - TRNH R
ERCEN Rt B RE RN A SR s IR -



29.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES B/ S %E

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary.

Details of these companies are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

and operation  |ssued and paid-up

Name of company BRI SE=¢ capital

AR G EETREUERA
Ample Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$#:#% 450,000,000
RIGHRAE T

Bank of East Asia HK$#:1150,000,0005T

Hong Kong
(Trustees) Limited T

RuilfT (F56) ARAE

BEA Union Investment Hong Kong HK$#:1374,580,0007T
Management Limited i

R on i SRR E EA TR A E]

BEA Union Investment PRC US$7,000,000E T
Management (Shenzhen) rhEE A RILAIET
Limited (Note 1)

RO EEE O A
FRAE (#1)

Central Town Limited Hong Kong HKS$H: #2757

E R A TR A E] s

Century Able Limited Hong Kong HK$#:#£929,752,8497T

P AR AE] s

Corona Light Limited BVI HK$#:12929,752,84951

R LS

Credit Gain Finance Company Hong Kong HK$3#:#4640,000,0007T
Limited s

HEMBARAE]

Crystal Gleaming Limited BVI HK$#:12929,752,84951

R LS

Dragon Jade Holdings Hong Kong HK$#:#51,127,510,0007T;
Company Limited AR

R AR A E]

East Asia Digital Information PRC US$3,000,000E 1
Services (Guangdong) rhEE A RILAIET

Limited (Note 1)
RuBEEERE (ER) A
RAE (#1)

UM 2 A B AR E A ES - BENAES

Page 78

EAFENINEAE - IR aE kel -

HEAFREEEAR
% Held by
The
Group
The (Note 3)
Bank £H
SRIT it
FifsfEaR  (&3)
100%
100%
51%
51%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Nature of business

RBEUE

Investment holding
B PR

Trustee service

(EE e

Asset management
HEET

Asset management/
Investment
management

HEEH EE

Property investment

LUESiEd

Investment holding
B PR

Investment holding
B PR

Money lenders

A

Investment holding
B PR

Investment holding
B PR

Servicing

likee
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) KfBAERE (4)

Name of company

NEBRE

East Asia Holding Company,
Inc. (Note 2)

East Asia Securities
Company Limited

REiEE - AIRAE

East Asia Services (Holdings)
Limited

i (k) AIRAE]

Skyray Holdings Limited

Speedfull Limited

The Bank of East Asia
(China) Limited (Note 1)
R T (P AIRAE
CHfEL)

Note:

Place of
incorporation
and operation

R
R

U.S.A.

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
BVI

Bl it
BVI

Bl it
PRC
e AR HEATE

Issued and paid-up
capital

ESTRBURRA

US$5ETT

HK$##%25,000,0007T

HK$}##210,0007T

HK$;##450,000,0007T

HK$;##450,000,00077

CNY ARR#
14,160,000,0007¢

1. Represents a wholly foreign owned enterprise registered under the

PRC laws.

2. Audited by auditors other than KPMG with total net assets and total
income constituting approximately 0.6% and less than 0.1%
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

3. Entities held by the Bank’s subsidiaries.
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% Held by
The
Group
The (Note 3)
Bank £H
T Fri&##2%  Nature of business
Fr it (#F3) EBHE
100% Investment holding
B PR
100% Securities broking
o EE
100% Holding company
PERAE]
100% Investment holding
B PR
100% Investment holding
B PR
100% Banking and related

financial services

PRAT B B s R

m

1. JERRIE P EEN RHRIENE DI LI9f & £ E A
LI

2. FEHIEG G AT EBIFEZITNE - B B

TR FHBRACA B I 7 & 48
H#570.6% {1654 0.1% -

3. BRI TS T AR
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES B8 AT REELELE
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2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

R E T R E T

Share of net assets JEASFEE 9,469 9,408
Goodwill SRS 440 452
9,909 9,860

Less: Impairment allowances W B R (1,525) (799)
8,384 9,061

The following list contains only the particulars of principal associates and

joint ventures.

Name of company

NEBRE

Associates B /A H]
Listed T
AFFIN Bank Berhad

Unlisted JE ETi

Brilliance-BEA Auto Finance Co., Ltd.
RN HERARAE

Dolford Property Holdings Limited

East Asia Qianhai Securities Company
Limited

R AR AR E A E

GUOTONG Trust Co., Ltd.

BlE(ELAREEAE

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Canada)

R LRRTT (InK) ARRAE

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(USA) N.A.
TR R R T (SEEDD

Million Fortune Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.
HWEFE CRYD BRAE]

Platinum Holdings Company Limited

Shanghai Ctrip Financial Information
Services Co., Ltd.
IR SRE RIRESAEIRAE

Note:

1. Entities held by the Bank’s subsidiaries.

3 -

% of ordinary shares Y@Ky
held by
Place of
incorporation
and operation The Bank

HEMRERR  IRITHGER

The Group
(Note 1)
EEPTSERE
(#F1)

Malaysia 23.93%

L% N

PRC 22.5%

e AR HEATE

BVI
FIBEE LTS

30%

PRC
FHEE AR

49%

PRC 15.38%

e AR ST

Canada 20%

IV

US.A.

20%

PRC
FHEEA RS

25%

Cayman Islands 30%
FSHS

PRC

e A RALAE]

9.6%

m

LIRSk R fE AR E ) EEHRE A E e R

Nature of business

RBEUE

Banking and related
financial business

PRAT B AR s R A

Auto finance and other
related financial
businesses

TRE ST R HA AT
ERIFETS

Property investment

LUESiEd

Securities business

SEIRIE

Trust and other
financial business
SRR A BRI

Banking services

PRITIRA

Banking services

PRITIRA

Property development

Vet

Investment holding
B PR

Financial services
B RS

1. ERAIR T LA
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) B& AR REBMLELE (4)

At 315 December, 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
AFFIN Bank Berhad (“AFFIN") based on the quoted market price had
been persistently below the carrying amount. As a result, the Group
performed an impairment test on the investment using a value-in-use
(“VIU") methodology and this demonstrated that the recoverable
amount of the investment was HK$3,012 million. The recoverable
amount was lower than the carrying value of HK$3,738 million, thus
an additional impairment charge of HK$726 million was recognised in
2023 (2022: no impairment charge). The VIU calculation uses
discounted cash flow projections based on AFFIN’s latest forecast of
financial results and estimates made by the Group’s management for
the next five years and extrapolating in perpetuity using a long-term
growth rate of 3% to derive a terminal value. Discount rate of 12.03%
(2022: 11.95%), which is based on a Capital Asset Pricing Model
calculation for AFFIN, is used in the VIU calculation.

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of reasonably
possible changes to key assumptions. This reflects the sensitivity of
the VIU to each key assumption on its own and it is possible that more
than one favourable and/or unfavourable change may occur at the
same time.

#2023 4 12 A 31 H - S EmEr AT EE
AREEHEET AFFIN Bank Berhad ( "AFFIN | ) >#%
BN EREERPIRAE - B REFEEEEE
& REEE I EETRERE - R
FRIEFEE I m U O] 48 S 30.12 (BT - FHFYHS
W AR A AR 37.38 BT ZARMEIE - WL
2023 HFHETDERSNANE 7.26 RUTHVEEESL (2022
A REREL) o (EREESRTERAT EEH
BRI AFFIN Sty 75 S TERI DR R
RAFERE TV IRIAER TR - WiEH 3% &
FRME ROk A MRS N8R EE - EEEES
VEREAER AFFIN (V& A& E EEHE RS
[ 12.03% (2022 4 : 11.95% ) TR -

TR £ L T B R T
WO - R RS PR I 5 R B R A S
WIS - RBA—TEAFI R SR FIBE A A
g -

Favourable change Unfavourable change
HHIEE) A FIEEG)
Decrease in
Increase in VIU VIU VIU VIU
(i P BB S0 { F{E(E { F BB B> i I {E(E
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EEC B EEC B EEC B EEC
IAt 315 December, 2023
7~20234F12H31H
Discount rate -50 bps +50 bps
BT Fmb 199 3,211 ] (177) 2,835
Long-term growth rate +50 bps -50 bps
R R FERE 2 3,014 FERE G 3,009
Expected cash flows
ERE e +10% 302 3,314 -10% (301) 2,711
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EET B EET
Aggregate information of associates and .
joint ventures that are not individually ERIAE AR E A RERBEZ
material HEFIE R
Aggregate carrying amount of individually .
immaterial associates and joint ventures (RIS B AN & N E] R R R FEAE
in the consolidated financial statements GRE AT R SR TAME 8,384 9,061
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of REEEZER &N E R EER R
those associates and joint ventures ZHERI R
Profit after tax MASEST gty 293 855
Other comprehensive income HoAth 4 g (217) (511)
Total comprehensive income Erlentt] 76 344
Reconciliation of carrying amounts to the .
Group's total interest in the associates SRIEEBA RN E A R &R
and joint ventures AT T R
Carrying amount of material associates and
joint ventures BABE AT REGEREZIREHE - -
Carrying amount of individually immaterial ERIAE A E A RERREZ
associates and joint ventures HRTAME 8,384 9,061
Interest in associates and joint ventures in SO BRR e AE R ERE
the consolidated financial statements ML 8,384 9,061




31. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS P58 R L

Goodwill and intangible assets include goodwill arising on business
combinations and acquired intangible assets. Acquired intangible assets
are amortised over their estimated economic useful life.

Goodwill 5]
Acquired intangible assets

(@

B

AP EE

Goodwill

MN1H1HK12H31H

At 15t January and 315 December

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU)
identified according to business segments as follows:

Personal banking EASRAT
Wholesale banking it aE R T
Treasury markets W&

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
business in which the CGU operates.

The discount rate used for value-in-use calculations is 9.62% (2022:
7.98%) and the long-term growth rate is 3% (2022: 3%).

Management determined the budgeted net profit based on past
performance and its expectation for market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the internal
forecasts.
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P R R B BRI & R AL IR R
WABIPAE - ARPEERHAAORE

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
1,460 1,460
392 410
1,852 1,870

L
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEHEIT
1,460 1,460

BB PR S A B R EAEE

SR SR oy H oy e P T I R A PR 2
FEBLALANT ¢

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
849 849

453 453

158 158

1,460 1,460

< A e B Y AT ] s AR B e P A (S T
F o SPRUARIREEEEKEDN 5 EHTH
RS R - i 5 FErIRE s
T ET R R IEHERT o R AR
SRR AT ESES R T RR -

AR ETEE RE AR 9.62% (2022
1 7.98%) REMPERRE 3% (2022 4 :
3%) -

BRI R R PR i S R LU E T
FUFEA] o FTER A B IIRE PR R AR P T
2
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31. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) E&REREE (&)

(b)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets consist of building naming rights only. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss (Note 2(r)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to
the income statement over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available to use and their estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Naming rights: Over the shorter of the lease period of building or land

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Cost B

At 1%t January W1H1H
Exchange adjustments PR SR 5%

At 315 December ®12H 31H
Accumulated amortisation RETHESS

At 1%t January W1H1H
Amortisation charge for the year A £
Exchange adjustments PRS2 E%E

At 315 December ®12H 31H
Impairment allowance B

At 1%t January ®1H1H
Charge for the year FEEN S #H
Exchange adjustments PRS2 E%E

As at 31% December ®12H 31H

Carrying amount at 315 December 12 H 31 HEREAME

(b)

mIvaERE (FERIN)

EIVAE R OfEERY A - BIP AR
AR R T 8 R (E 1R R IR I R
20) -

HIRTE ] I ERIE & s HAf T m] U
AN o DU AIRE i TIPS A
A (R RS DA Y il mT A -

AN RS L B Y S

/R b FLIOR B e U5 0%

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEHEIT
1,402 1,404

- 2

1,402 1,402
(336) (323)
(13) (13)
(349) (336)
(656) (656)

(5) -
(661) (656)
392 410




32. FIXED ASSETS EE&E

Cost or valuation BA i {E
At 1% January, 2023 1202315 1H
Additions WE
Revaluation deficit EfR5E
Disposals H&

Revaluation surplus on L
bank premises upon {ratE bR

transfer to investment [EYNiS(UE S

properties (Note 42(b)) (Hyz42(b) )
Transfer from bank - .

premises to investment  FHTTHEE AL

properties sk
Expiry/termination of FH U HE
lease contracts a4

Less: Elimination of
accumulated

depreciation on B AT

revalued bank EGHY R

premises HTeEs
Transfer to asset

classified as assets R A

held for sale TEHEAE
Exchange adjustments P 2 3

#2023F12H

At 31% December, 2023 31H

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment FEHTEE RORE

At 1* January, 2023 1202315 1H

Depreciation for the year ~ FEN#TE

Impairment for the year FEPYRIE

Expiry/termination of B2t i
lease contracts =i

Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation on

revalued bank RSP THEE LAY
premises REtTE
Written off on disposal BB
Transfer to asset I
classified as assets R A
held for sale TEHEAE
Exchange adjustments VB 2 3
122023F12H
At 31% December, 2023 31H
Net book value at WRTEDFHE
122023F12H
31% December, 2023 31H

The gross amounts of the LI MIERES]

above assets are stated: TRUE

At cost FEpA

At Directors’ valuation HEE R E
- 1989 - 1989 £

At professional valuation B (E
- 2023 - 2023 4
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2023
Right-of-use
assets
Right-of- - Furniture,
Furniture, use assets fixtures and
fixtures and -Bank  equipment
Investment Bank equipment premises {HFHfEEE
properties | premises ffl - 45 | Sub-total| (EARERE  — K- Sub-total Total
ey U 1Tt & INEF — fThE BB R INEF k|
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BIEETT BN EET BEETT | R EETT B EE T REET | BEET | sEEET
5,166 8,064 6,478 14,542 1,304 25 1,329 21,037
- 13 667 680 326 2 328 1,008
(86) - - - - - - (86)
- (24) (191) (215) - - - (215)
- 13 - 13 - - - 13
24 (24) - (24) - - - -
- - - - (199) @) (203) (203)
- ®3) - ®3) - - - ®3)
- (21) - (21) - - - (21)
1 (87) (44) (131) (3) - (3) (133)
5,105 7,931 6,910 14,841 1,428 23 1,451 21,397
- 2,289 4,660 6,949 598 14 612 7,561
- 134 413 547 255 5 260 807
- 1 - 1 - - - 1
- - - - (199) @) (203) (203)
- ®3) - ®3) - - - ®3)
- (13) (174) (187) - - - (187)
- (C)) - (C)) - - - (8
- (35) (26) (61) (€)] - (€)] (64)
- 2,365 4,873 7,238 651 15 666 7,904
5,105 5,566 2,037 7,603 777 8 785 13,493
- 7,183 6,910 14,093 1,428 23 1,451 15,544
- 748 - 748 - - - 748
5,105 - - - - - - 5,105
5,105 7,931 6,910 14,841 1,428 23 1,451 21,397




Page 85

32. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) BEE&E (49)

2022

Right-of-use

assets

Right-of-use - Furniture,

Furniture, assets fixtures and

fixtures and -Bank equipment

Investment Bank equipment premises {FFIMEEE
properties | premises {%ffl - $5E Sub-total| fEAIfERE  — &H - Sub-total Total
ey U 1Tt & INEF — fThE  HHE R INEF k|

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BNEETT B EETT EEEETT | BN EET| REETT R EEDT | BN EET | B E ST

Cost or valuation A {E

At 1% January, 2022 120221 H1E 4,992 8,529 6,448 14,977 1,507 23 1,530 21,499
Additions WME - 82 473 555 238 4 242 797
Revaluation deficit ER5HE (179) - - - - - - (179)
Disposals H& - (209) (270) (479) - - - (479)
Remeasurement EECiiap - - - - (15) - (15) (15)
Revaluation surplus on P

bank premises upon rh-E e

transfer to investment [EYNiS(UES

properties (Note 42(b)) (Hyz42(b) ) - 354 - 354 - - - 354

Transfer from bank - .
premises to investment  FI{THLE AL E

properties sk 493 (493) - (493) - - - -
Transfer from investment N

properties to bank VIR A

premises 174k (139) 139 - 139 - - - -
Expiry/termination of lease ~ EIH¥ /4 IEfHE

contracts a4 - - - - (367) 2 (369) (369)
Less: Elimination of NP,

accumulated L ARATTHE

depreciation on iifﬁ?ﬂ’ﬂ?!ﬁ'

revalued bank premises freg - (35) - (35) - - - (35)
Exchange adjustments P 52 3 (1) (303) (173) (476) (59) - (59) (536)

#2022412H

At 31% December, 2022 31H 5,166 8,064 6,478 14,542 1,304 25 1,329 21,037

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment FEHTEE RORE
At 1% January, 2022 12022 1H1E - 2,378 4,584 6,962 682 11 693 7,655
Depreciation for the year FENiTE - 139 428 567 290 5 295 862
Expiry/termination of lease ~ EUH¥ 4 IEfHE
contracts a4 - - - - (350) 2 (352) (352)
Elimination of accumulated i
depreciation on TRSHTHEE A
revalued bank premises REtrE - (35) - (35) - - - (35)
Written off on disposal BB - (83) (239) (322) - - - (322)
Exchange adjustments P 52 3 - (110) (113) (223) (24) - (24) (247)
20224E12H
At 31% December, 2022 31H - 2,289 4,660 6,949 598 14 612 7,561
Net book value at WRTEDFHE
20224E12H
31 December, 2022 31H 5,166 5,775 1,818 7,593 706 11 717 13,476

The gross amounts of the A AR

above assets are stated: TRUTE
At cost AR - 7,316 6,478 13,794 1,304 25 1,329 15,123
At Directors’ valuation PR {E

- 1989 - 1989 4 - 748 - 748 - - - 748
At professional valuation B (E

- 2022 - 2022 4 5,166 - - - - - - 5,166

5,166 8,064 6,478 14,542 1,304 25 1,329 21,037




32. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) EE&E (4)

Fair value measurement of properties

@

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,

categorised into the

three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the

observability and sig
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Recurring fair value
measurement

Investment properties

nificance of the inputs used in the valuation

Commercial - Hong

Kong

Commercial - Others

Recurring fair value
measurement

Investment properties
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Ve EEZ EEE

@

DHEE TR

R¥E CEEM B HREE) F+=98 THEL
EE ) =N HEES S BES » TRIPR
AER B s S AR B S AR B DU RE Y
ZAVEE - BT E S A HEEEER
RIS LU A R A B A E ARy 28 mTE R M R
B

I =2 ANY 4

Commercial - Hong

Kong

Commercial - Others

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs EMEE - BEAHEERRAS—H2H
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets BIFAEE H AR TS [F & AR
for identical assets or liabilities at the R SRR R
measurement date. e )
Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. B - EEA R EERE g S |
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, REFEE RS Mk
and not using significant unobservable inputs. PR RS IE T s 2 - JETTE
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which 7 il B3 ;é:;};; St .
market data are not available. REWRIRAANHAR IS
Far value measured using significant FEAMEE - BEAEEERHERNIEEZ
unobservable inputs. S8 o
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31st December, 31st December, 2023 categorised into
2023 72023412 A 31 H i & A EE 2 78
72023412 31H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZAEE F—ER AR F=ER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEHETT AEEEHETT AEEEHETT AEEEE T
ERBENAF
HEEE
&Y
P - wE 5,094 - - 5,094
e — HA 11 - - 11
5,105 - - 5,105
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31st December, 31st December, 2022 categorised into
2022 72022412 H 31 H i i AHEEZ 758
720224124 31H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZAHEE E 'l AR F=ER
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEHETT AEEEHETT AEEEHETT HBEEEHETT
ERBENAF
HEEE
&Y
P - wE 5,154 - - 5,154
e — HA 12 - - 12
5,166 - - 5,166
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32. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) EE&E (4)

Vg PEEZEE (8D
AHEE S (8D

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) 0]

(i)

During the years ended 31 December, 2023 and 2022, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’'s investment properties were revalued by
independent valuers as at 31%' December, 2023 and 2022.

Investment properties in Hong Kong were valued at HK$5,094
million (2022: HK$5,154 million) as at 31%' December, 2023 by an
independent valuer, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, Chartered Surveyors, who has among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The valuation has
been incorporated in the financial statements as at 31 December,
2023 and it was performed on an open market value basis. Details
of valuation techniques are described below:

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement of properties

Valuation techniques

Investment properties

REYEE

Direct comparison approach

Investment properties not under construction

The fair value of investment properties is determined by adoption of
the Income Capitalisation Approach whereby the existing rental
income of all lettable units of the property are capitalised for their
respective unexpired terms of contractual tenancies whilst vacant
units are assumed to be let at their respective market rents as at the
valuation date. Upon expiry of the existing tenancies, each unit is
assumed to be let at its market rent as at the valuation date, which
in turn capitalised at the market yield as expected by investors for
each type of property. Due consideration has been given to
expectations of the renewals of Government lease upon its expiry.
The summation of the capitalised value of the term income for the
leased portion, the capitalised value of the reversion income as
appropriately deferred for the leased portion and the capitalised
value for the vacant portion provides the market value of the

property.

The market rentals of all lettable units are made (a) by reference to
the rentals fetched in the property and/or (b) by reference to the
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yields achieved in analysed
market sales transactions and the market expectation from property
investors. This expected return reflects implicitly the quality of the
investment, the expectation of the potential for future rental growth
and capital appreciation, operating costs, risk factor and the like.

As a supporting approach to the Income Capitalisation Approach,
the Direct Comparison Approach is also adopted as a check for the
valuation. Comparable sales transactions of similar properties in the
locality are collected and analysed each in terms of a price per
square footage. The collected comparables are then adjusted to
take account of the discrepancies between the property and
comparables in terms of time, location, age, building quality and the
like.

20234z 2022512 4 31 H I REN » I8 4k
FOEE S W& < Tl RIS TRRA S = AEEA
B - AR EAVEURE SRR e IR
SAEAE 57 4 [ 35 A AR

Y2023 5 20224F12 31 H » FrA AEEHIIE
Y I (E AT (E -

2202351231 H » B EYENIMhE KB
50.94{% 7T (20224 : 51548 ) © %EY)
S B I 06 ELAT — R R R AT 35— KT B A
H > HEEEFEASMEE G LE R HE
VIISE T FTAE 3L B SRS AT A By A (B DA AR
TG EERERE - WESTA20235E12H31H 2k
A - EEFEAEEL T

R = 4 E N HE B

Unobservable input

BB T ABRERASE
Income capitalisation Expected market rental
approach THIAT S

W AR A

Capitalisation rate
JE{EES

Premium (discount) on
quality of the buildings
BFRZRREE (D

HHFEROA

FEIEAF P HIIREY) 5

"BV AP EERE RO A B AR
HI7E AR R B 2 e A H
S IR ZSHAH L PRFCGE IR - 122 B R A ARG
EEAE R hEHsHE > RS
HHEME B GEERRER - P
JeE B2 Al TRUSUBURF 2 RH &Y A PR & i 1% AT 484 -
FHES o IR 2 B8 IR E ~ A IR A R oy
ZER UL AR R E K 2 By 2 B RE 2 S8R
TR TS EE -

FrAE ORI TISHE Z 5 H R (@Q2FH Y%
PRV FE 2 e B(b) 2B AT A A 2 S E 1)
¥ - Rz EERZESESATSHELSE
ZIal R FE I A B T I TR © R TR R
EVE MBS T E R ~ IRAGE S /AT
BAERES) ~ BRI s A -

FRUC A JFIESN - IR RN B LR BUA DU B il
1B - MEMSAT AT EE BRI P12 Z B S 5 Er i 2
Bt DEtEE P HREE - EdlEZEE
WA RRIEY) 5% K AT EE A R 2 R o W
[~ fLE - G - BB R A



32. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) EE&E (4)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i)
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Vg PEEZEE (8D

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement of properties (i)

(continued)

The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the market
rental and negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair

value measurements are as follows:

Investment properties — Commercial —
Hong Kong

At 15t January

Transfer from bank premises to
investment properties

Transfer from investment properties to
bank premises

Revaluation deficit
At 315 December

Investment properties — Commercial —

BFRA A EH LR

AR = E A HEENIE (8
R SE I S (BB T 35 R <2 I A P o e e B

FNZEFE RN PEERE 2 REETHN
T

Others

At 15t January
Revaluation deficit
Exchange adjustments
At 315 December

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised in the
line item “valuation losses on investment properties” on the face of

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R E T R E T
B - ¥ - &5
W1A1H 5,154 4,978
T A &Y% 24 493
FHfEE Y S A THE - (139)
E=RhT s (84) (178)
7®12H31H 5,094 5,154
BeawE - s - Hi
P1F1H 12 14
HiliEsiE 2 (1)
VR S0 B 1 (1)
#®12H31H 11 12
BHEYENAFEEFABEEGSWGR L2

the consolidated income statement.

All the losses recognised in the income statement for the year arise
from the properties held at the end of the reporting period.

The net book value of bank premises and investment properties

comprises:

Freeholds
Held outside Hong Kong
Leaseholds

Held in Hong Kong
On long lease (over 50
years)
On medium-term lease
(10 - 50 years)

Held outside Hong Kong
On long lease (over 50
years)
On medium-term lease
(10 - 50 years)
On short-term lease
(below 10 years)

FEEEYEETE T -

TTHE A B SR AR I P HE B4 -

FRA TS P R W s 3R Z RS 1R I R B 7 &
HIERSZEPAYE SN

2023 2022
Investment Bank Investment Bank
properties premises properties premises
g CUIE S 1ThE g CUIE S 1ThE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT
KA ERE
EFALIMNIE 11 610 12 606
FEAEHE
EE&
FHAFELY (B04LL 1) 3,952 1,611 4,003 1,620
FRIAfE4Y (102 504F) 1,142 1,113 1,151 1,163
EFALIMNIE
FHAFELY (B04LL |) - 12 - 13
FRIAfE4Y (102 504F) - 2,210 - 2,363
FEFATEAY (104ELAT) - 10 - 10
5,105 5,566 5,166 5,775




32. FIXED ASSETS (continued) EE&E (%)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement of properties (i)

(continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period from 1 to 5 years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date at which time all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Rental income from investment properties held for use under
operating leases amounted to HK$129 million in 2023 (2022:

HK$133 million).

The total future minimum lease payments of investment properties
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

Within one year

After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years
After three years but within four years
After four years but within five years
After five years

33. OTHER ASSETS HAtrgie

Accrued interest

Customer liabilities under acceptances
Other accounts

Gross carrying amount before

impairment allowances

Less: Impairment allowances (Note

43(a)(ix))

Assets held for sale

LEIA
VEDRZE2FER
2E DB EIEN
BEDBEAEN
AFED B ESEN
SELIR

JESHHIE

EREF AR

HAARTA
AR (2 B A (B4

TR RAEAER (ATaA3(a)(ix))

FrAMEL BEE

Vg PEEZEE (8D
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AR = E A HEENIE (8

AEEDEEHEPAE LAY - HEFE
J01aE H 1A £ 545 - IS H 1% T A A4 (E A
KA - FTATHAYIEA EiRe A TS -

PRER > DB E P e Em Y% 2 i
B A RN 1.29(% T (20224 : BHEFL.33(%

JL) -

LI ] g 402 FH E 1 R YR B PR Y R 2R

A BB B (aRaREian T -

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
105 104

55 38

25 14

3

6 -

204 159

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
4,200 3,637
26,771 27,796
7,776 8,094
38,747 39,427
(292) (219)
38,455 39,208

15 27

38,470 39,235
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34. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

35.

EERERRR UM A PRENSREH

Deposits and balances of banks TRV R 45 B
Deposits from customers (Note 36) B (hE736)
Certificates of deposits issued CRITIEREE

Debt securities issued CRITEESE S

Financial liabilities above have been designated at FVTPL when the
Group holds related derivatives at FVTPL, and designation therefore
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

The amount of change, during the year and cumulatively, in the fair
value of financial liabilities designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of these liabilities and recognised in other
comprehensive income is set out below.

PLH1H&S 6

Balance at 1% January
Recognised in other comprehensive

income during the year (Note 42(h)) (Hfz#a2(h) )
Deferred tax (Note 42(h)) IRIERIE (HfzEa2(h) )
Balance at 31% December P12H31H 458

There was no transfer of cumulative gain or loss within equity due to
de-recognition of liabilities designated at FVTPL during the year (2022:
Nil).

The change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk on
financial liabilities is calculated using the difference between the fair
value of the financial liabilities at the reporting date and the present
value computed with adjusted asset swap spread.

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at FVTPL was
HK$120 million lower than the contractual amount due at maturity
(2022: HK$428 million lower).

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEHEIT
3,199 4,545

199 -

9,415 19,001

688 811
13,501 24,357

EAEERA 15 E Ry i i 18 5 DU A P BB Y HH BE
PIETH - Dl EERh A SHHEE fy il as DU oy
SAEE - T % A6 A UM bR S R D & E S R A 1
e

R RS > N RYUREE Ryl iR DAY
SPAEE Y <2 i 3 (R (B (B S ) e A L 2 T Ui 2
RNMERRHIE > MZEERBENZEAENER
Je s o

SRR M A U s R TSR A 2

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
15 (46)

(13) 73
2 (12)

4 15

£ (20224 © ) WORFIEE Rl BiE DU
SPEER B AR MERE - TRRA I Rt B 5
TBAER LR R

TR AR 2R A A EE R A EEZEIER
B RS H% e A EA R A T E ([ B i
UIAE 2 BREIRHTERH

20234 » H57E Ryl i iE s DU BN T E E SR A R
WIEE ES M H 2 &S EE ¥ 120
(20224 @ {R#E#K4.28(F7T) -

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION iRk NIIETEH

(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for
the year

Provisional profits tax paid EATEEFIER

Balance of profits tax provision relating
to prior years

TEEHBLIMIHA

Taxation outside Hong Kong

LA AR

DA RERIS AR e (e e

(a) BEEAFERNAERER

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
482 486
(217) (260)
265 226
891 772
446 254
1,602 1,252




35.

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(b)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:
BRIERITRE

At 1% January, 2023 /4202315 1H

Ch d)/credited
(Charged)icredited  »<aepy (3)

statement (Note ./ fEA

17(a)) (H7z17(a) )
woq BEEN (G285
(Charged)/credited e
to reserves (N
(Notes 42(b), (g) 42(b) ~ (@) &
and (h)) (h))
Exchange and
other

adjustments DEE 2, e A 3
At 31% December,
2023 1202312 H31H

Deferred tax arising from:
BIERIRE

At 1% January, 2022 /4202215 1H

Ch d)/credited
(Charged)/credited ooy (28

statement (Note ./ fFA

17(a)) (HfzEL7(@) )
: N (Z84)
(Charged)/credited e
to reserves (N
(Notes 42(b), (g)  42(0) * (9) Z
and (h)) (h))

Reversal due to .
disposal of I AT
subsidiaries 4[]

Exchange and
other
adjustments P 58 R EL A 3

At 31% December,

2022 12022412 H31H

AN =

IR T 7 e A ey

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) BRI HENAITERR (4)
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MR PR EERE, (&
{5 AVALRRER Y AR Z BB

2023
Revaluation
Depreciation of financial
allowances Impairment assets at
in excess of losseson  FVOCI
related  Revaluation financial {ZEAAHANS:
depreciation of assets [z DASZHE Tax
AT properties BREE A HEESR losses Others Total
HIHTEE R YIS EL PERIERI=ES HHEE iZki=] HoAl “aEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BMEEETT  BNEE T BNEET ANEET ANEET BNEET sNEET
(354) (113) 1,904 15 16 155 1,623
(27) - 2 - (13) (41) (79)
- 2 . (134) . 2 (130)
- - (43) - - ®3) (46)
(381) 111 1,863 (119) 3 113 1,368
2022
Revaluation
Depreciation of financial
allowances Impairment assets at
in excess of losseson  FVOCI
related  Revaluation financial A H A
depreciation of assets [z DASZHE Tax
AT properties BRMEE A HEESR losses Others Total
HIHTEE R YIS ELL PERIERI=ES HEE Tk HoAr “aEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BMEEETT  BNEE T BNEET BNEET ANEET BNEET sNEET
(339) (109) 1,515 (282) 303 214 1,302
(15) ; 494 - @72) 33) 174
; @ ; 294 . 12) 278
- - - @ - @ (@)
} } (105) 4 (15) 13) (129)
(354) (113) 1,904 15 16 155 1,623




35.

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognised on
the statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on
the statement of financial position

B P

A

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$109 million (2022: HK$101 million) as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. Under the current tax legislation, the expiry dates of the tax
losses were as follows:

Expiring within 5 years R HFEREHA
No expiry date fEFHIH
36. Deposits from customers ZF1E=R
Measured at amortised cost PR A ST =

(©
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INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) FARARNEHENAIERR (4)

HEREHA A IO R A AR AR T

HEREHA A IO R A AR AR T

(b) RIEFRIEEE K AERED ()
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEHEIT
1,836 1,849
(468) (226)
1,368 1,623

RIERIR AR &

FH Y TRE R A A5 38 FH A RS T e T
FY FE SR8 A LU A BLES 18 > AR B R
R REHIR RN 10908 T (20224 « #H§1.01
BIT) RIRIERRIAEE - RIEHRFIR AR
ZERBVEHIHOT

i 78 A i AR RS DU WL SAE

Designated at FVTPL (Note 34) (Hfat34)
37. OTHER LIABILITIES A&

Accrued interest payable JESHERFIE

Acceptance draft payable JRE (ST G0 A

Impairment allowances on financial
guarantee contracts issued and loan
commitments issued (Note 43(a)(ix))

TRERER (HE43(a)(x) )
THE F

HMHRIE ()

Lease Liabilities
Other accounts (Note)

Note: Include contract liabilities of HK$2,162 million (2022:
HK$2,476 million) from contracts with customers under
HKFRS 15.

EE T HE R R EBRTHERURIEZ

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
47 41

62 60

109 101

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
628,399 648,093
199 -
628,598 648,093
2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
5,265 4,155
26,771 27,796
415 318

852 774
14,009 16,756
47,312 49,799

 EEH] (BB AR BAS ST S
FIE [FEHIE21.62 5T (202247 ¢ #2476 (F
L) e



38. LOAN CAPITAL f&E&&A

Subordinated notes/Loss absorbing notes,
at amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments

USD500 million fixed rate subordinated
notes due 22" April, 2032

USD600 million fixed rate subordinated
notes due 29" May, 2030

USD250 million fixed rate loss absorbing
notes due 7" July, 2028

USD500 million fixed rate loss absorbing
notes due 15" March, 2027

Page 93

Subordinated notes, at amortised cost
without hedging

RMB1,500 million fixed rate subordinated

notes due 25" April, 2029 (5)

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to its debt securities during the years ended 31
December, 2023 and 2022.

@

@

©)

)

Loan capital with face value of US$500 million (equivalent to
HK$3,906 million) and carrying amount of HK$3,750 million (2022:
HK$3,691 million) represents subordinated notes carrying a coupon
rate of 4.875% p.a. qualifying as Tier 2 capital and meeting the loss-
absorbing capacity requirements issued on 22™ April, 2022 by the
Bank. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, will
mature on 22™ April, 2032 and are callable on 22" April, 2027. The
notes are under fair value hedge accounting and the hedge
ineffectiveness of HK$0.6 million loss was recorded in 2023.

Loan capital with face value of US$600 million (equivalent to
HK$4,687 million) and carrying amount of HK$4,727 million (2022:
HK$4,665 million) represents subordinated notes carrying a coupon
of 4% p.a. qualifying as Tier 2 capital and meeting the loss-
absorbing capacity requirements issued on 29" May, 2020 by the
Bank. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, will
mature on 29" May, 2030 and are callable on 29" May, 2025. The
notes are under fair value hedge accounting and the hedge
ineffectiveness of HK$17.7 million loss was recorded in 2023.

Loan capital with face value of US$250 million (equivalent to
HK$1,953 million) and carrying amount of HK$1,899 million (2022:
HK$1,876 million) represents non-preferred loss-absorbing
capacity notes carrying a coupon rate of 5.125% p.a. and meeting
the loss-absorbing capacity requirements issued on 7 July, 2022
by the Bank. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, will mature on 7" July, 2028 and are callable on 7" July,
2027. The notes are under fair value hedge accounting and
insignificant hedge ineffectiveness was recorded in 2023.

Loan capital with face value of US$500 million (equivalent to
HK$3,906 million) and carrying amount of HK$3,942 million
represents non-preferred loss-absorbing capacity notes carrying a
coupon rate of 6.75% p.a. and meeting the loss-absorbing capacity
requirements issued on 15" March, 2023 by the Bank. The notes
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, will mature on 15"
March, 2027 and are callable on 15" March, 2026. The notes are
under fair value hedge accounting and the hedge ineffectiveness of
HK$4.8 million loss was recorded in 2023.

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EE T B EE T
FHHESE AR R S AN SR
IR TIRRAVR IR RIL
e
1£20324F4 H 22 H FIHHAYE B
1) SEFETTRETE 1) 3,750 3,691
1£20304F5 H 29 H FIHHAYE B
) 6lEETTIREERE ) 4,727 4,665
1£20284£7 A7 H EIHANY E &
©) 25EETTRWEEREE (3) 1,899 1,876
1£2027F3 H 15 H FIHAVE B
@) S{E TR RS TR @) 3,942 -
FHES RS AR R GRS %
1£20294£4 [ 25 H | HIRYE &,
NERHEEISEITRE R (5) 1,649 1,695
15,967 11,927

#2023 ;2022412 4 31 H [EEE PN A S
FEAT 2 (58 75 00 AR e AR R R Y A i

17

@

@

©)

)

ZEHI{E 5 EFEIL HERARSE 39.06 &iT)

KRB AR 37.50 (€T (7t 20224 12 H
31 H : &% 36.91 (BiT) WEEER 25
BHATTY 2022 4 4 A 22 HETHEE
4.875% > WETiE By 4R ER R FFERBEETE
e 12 BRINREERE - ZEEBNEAT
b AR 2032 4F 4 A 22 HEFER R AR
20274 4 A 22 HIEFE - {F 20234F » HERA
N (A B BT A T SRS 0 SO R 4y
TR 60 &L -

SEHE 6 {857 (HEERENE 46.87 (BiT)

FOREEAENS 47.27 [T (5t 2022 £ 12 H
31 H : ¥ 46.65 (f0) HEEEA - 2
HATTHY 2020 4 5 7 29 HE#{THE 4%

A FRE B — B A ST & RS TRRE 1.2 %
RIVIRMESE - BRI i > 1
HHY 2030 48 5 H 29 HEIHI R ATt 2025 £
5 F 29 HE[E - £ 2023 4 > RERFIHE
B AT SR A5 Y s e 0 R R
W 1,770 EjT -

ERE{E2.5E T (HERAERE19.53(FIT)
T BE EIE ##518.99(& 51 (jA20224£12 F 31
H @ &#18.76(5 70 ) MEEEXR » Bi5HEAE
A 202247 H 7T H (T4 8.5.125% » K FF
AR R AE ) 2 BRIV IEE e R UL ES TR RE
NER - ZEFEEZBERBA L W7
202847 H7HE(HH R v 2202747 5 7THIE
[|] o £20234 - A EES A
T SRS SERCE BT 4y S TR R EE K -

=HESEFE T (FHERBEE39.06(87C) K
SR A 39.42{8 T I BB A » EHsHA
fTHr20234E3 H 15 H 174 E.6.75% » K TF
SRR AR 0 2 BRIV IR B e R UL ES TR RE
TR - ZEZEBERBACAH L - WHR
202743 F 15H FH K 7] 72 202643 H 15 H
UE[E] o 1£20234F » RERAAFEEE TS

i&ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ@ﬁi&%ﬁﬂ%B%fé‘ﬂéi%“ég%o%
5 o



38. LOAN CAPITAL (CONTINUED) f&&&4 (%)

(5) Loan capital with face value of RMB1,500 million (equivalent to
HK$1,650 million) and carrying amount of HK$1,649 million (2022:
HK$1,695 million) represents subordinated notes carrying a coupon
of 4.94% p.a. issued on 25" April, 2019 by the Bank’s subsidiary,
The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. The notes will mature on
25™ April, 2029 and are callable on 25™ April, 2024.
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(6) FEHEAREISEIT (HER &N 16.50(
TL) MIREEAENE16.490F 7T (F220224£12
A31H : B¥16.95[ L) MEEEA » 2
5 AT 8S 2 B R e TP 5y 2019424 F 25
H#{THEE4.94% R ME T - % EREF
2202944 F 25 H I HA K 7] j2 202444 F 25
H gl -

39. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS DI BEBEE LIRS

The Bank has adopted Staff Share Option Schemes whereby the Board
of the Bank may at its discretion grant to any employees, including
Executive Director(s) and Co-Chief Executives, of the Group options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Bank. Except as provided otherwise
in the rules of the relevant Scheme(s), share options granted under the
2011 Scheme, 2016 Scheme and 2021 Scheme may be exercised
beginning on the Vesting Date and ending on the fifth anniversary of the
Vesting Date. All options were granted for nil consideration.

(a) Particulars of share options: (a)

(i) Share options granted in years 2015 to 2022:

Date of grant Tranche Vesting period
T HIY i i B 10
04/5/2015 T3 04/5/2015 — 03/5/2018
08/4/2016 T2 08/4/2016 — 07/4/2018
08/4/2016 T3 08/4/2016 — 07/4/2019
07/4/2017 T1 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2018
07/4/2017 T2 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2019
07/4/2017 T3 07/4/2017 — 06/4/2020
10/4/2018 T1 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2019
10/4/2018 T2 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2020
10/4/2018 T3 10/4/2018 — 09/4/2021
19/7/2019 T1 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2020
19/7/2019 T2 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2021
19/7/2019 T3 19/7/2019 — 18/7/2022
07/4/2020 T1 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2021
07/4/2020 T2 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2022
07/4/2020 T3 07/4/2020 — 06/4/2023
13/4/2021 T1 13/4/2021 — 12/4/2022
13/4/2021 T2 13/4/2021 — 12/4/2023
13/4/2021 T3 13/4/2021 — 12/4/2024
12/4/2022 T1 12/4/2022 — 11/4/2023
12/4/2022 T2 12/4/2022 — 11/4/2024
12/4/2022 T3 12/4/2022 — 11/4/2025

(ii) Share options granted in year 2023:

Date of grant Tranche Vesting period
%THY Hor i B 10
12/4/2023 T1 12/4/2023 — 11/4/2024
12/4/2023 T2 12/4/2023 — 11/4/2025
12/4/2023 T3 12/4/2023 — 11/4/2026

ARAITHTERAN R BT B 2 E B 5%
HERREE PAEE Z (TARE > BERTEER
TS TELARE, » DRI A T i i - BRE R
STEIHHI S A RESS - MRE201151#] ~ 20165+
B R 2021 51 B i - 1 SR B 1 TR SR Fo B 28
H B4 257 8 H ISR IR - FrA sl ieiEsg IR
sHERE RS -

TORERERELS ¢

() 1£2015% 2 20224FFTiR THYRRAAE -

Exercise period Exercise price
T7{HEHH per share
ST
HK$

ST
04/5/2018 — 04/5/2023 34.15
08/4/2018 — 08/4/2023 28.45
08/4/2019 — 08/4/2024 28.45
07/4/2018 — 07/4/2023 32.25
07/4/2019 — 07/4/2024 32.25
07/4/2020 — 07/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2019 — 10/4/2024 32.25
10/4/2020 — 10/4/2025 32.25
10/4/2021 — 10/4/2026 32.25
19/7/2020 — 19/7/2025 22.45
19/7/2021 — 19/7/2026 22.45
19/7/2022 — 19/7/2027 22.45
07/4/2021 — 07/4/2026 16.58
07/4/2022 — 07/4/2027 16.58
07/4/2023 — 07/4/2028 16.58
13/4/2022 — 13/4/2027 17.08
13/4/2023 — 13/4/2028 17.08
13/4/2024 — 13/4/2029 17.08
12/4/2023 — 12/4/2028 12.17
12/4/2024 — 12/4/2029 12.17
12/4/2025 — 12/4/2030 12.17

(i) FE2023EEFTHZ T HYTEMEAE |

Exercise period Exercise price
T7{HEHH per share
EFRATEME
HK$
BT
12/4/2024 — 12/4/2029 10.08
12/4/2025 — 12/4/2030 10.08

12/4/2026 — 12/4/2031 10.08
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39. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) PARs{7 BEBEL RIS (4)

(b)

(©

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b)
options are as follows:

SRR H RO E TR AT

2023 2022
W eighted W eighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
ik S of options ik S of options
17{HME AR HEH E 17{H(E PR HEH E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
T B T B
Outstanding at the beginning of )
the year FERIEEER 21.08 47 26.57 36
Exercised during the year FERTTE - - - -
Granted during the year ERRT 10.08 12 12.17 16
Lapsed during the year FERER 30.81 ) 32.04 (5)
Outstanding at the end of the year - R&HER 17.37 52 21.08 47
Exercisable at the end of the year AR A LT{H 22.36 28 27.24 27

There were no share options exercised during the years 2023 and
2022.

The options outstanding at 315 December, 2023 had an exercise
price from HK$10.08 to HK$32.25 (2022: from HK$12.17 to
HK$34.15) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
4.09 years (2022: 3.91 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions (c)

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a trinomial lattice model. The contractual
life of the option is used as an input into this model.

FEtEHAHEE

Fair value at measurement date

- Tranche 1 - Ehorl
- Tranche 2 - Hhsr2
- Tranche 3 - Hh533
Share price at measurement date REtEHIKE
Exercise price 1T
Expected volatility THET IR
Option life T
- Tranche 1 - Ehsrl
- Tranche 2 - Hhsr2
- Tranche 3 - Hh533
Expected dividends THETH R

Risk-free interest rate (based on Hong
Kong Government Bonds)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility and the
expected dividends are based on historical dividends prior to grant
date. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

J2 20234 5 20225 N FERRERE G T(E

JR2023512H31H - RITHERRHAERITT (£ H
A 10.087C £ AR 322571 (20224 © BB
121724341550 ) -~ RARIER G EIFHA Z A0fE
TR 4.004 (20224 ¢ 3914E) -

TORERER B (A Rk

SRR TSR A R L T Y
ORISR - $T AN 55 A T R =R
TR A - SR M £ OEE R B (R
HyS 8 -

EREAR (RBEEBBUFES)

2023 2022
HK$#&%1.887¢ HK$##51.657T
HK$#&%1.887¢ HK$##51.507T
HK$#&%1.807¢ HK$##51.307T

HK$##10.0877  HK$:#E#512.1775¢
HK$##410.0877  HK$:#&#512.175¢
26.97% 25.12%

6 yearsif: 6 yearsif:

7 yearstf 7 yearstf:

8 yearstE 8 yearstE

9.64%-12.95%

2.88%

16.06%-18.69%

2.67%-2.69%

TR IR AR A M R AR 341 T H A
BHTEATIEE. - B A BERAVBI rfEE KT8
AN TEERMEET -

SOBABA TR IR R © SZIRFS IR IR
AR T H SRS A HEE - T a0RfE
ST DAL SRR o
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40. SHARE CAPITAL A

2023 2022
No. of shares No. of shares
R ¥ H HK$ Mn R ¥ H HK$ Mn
Million HEH Million HEH
HE HETT HE HETT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully 3 =
paid: TLETT KRGS i A
At 1% January ®1H1H 2,680 41,856 2,923 41,645
Shares issued in lieu of dividend DAIRGARE TR 6 59 19 211
Share repurchased and cancelled B EIREFIGESH (36) - (262) -
At 315 December *12H31H 2,650 41,915 2,680 41,856
Share buy-back B 53 [ i

In 2023, 35,940,800 shares were repurchased on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration (excluding expenses) of HK$366 million and
35,797,200 shares were cancelled (including 686,200 shares
repurchased in 2022), representing 1.34% and 1.34% of the ordinary
shares in issue at the beginning of the year, respectively. The remaining
829,800 shares repurchased in 2023 were cancelled on 8" January,
2024.

In 2022, the Bank repurchased 246,510,173 shares of the Bank by share
buy-back deed with Elliot Investment Management'’s affiliate entities at a

1F 2023 & > RITEA AT AEARE CREiER
) A&HE 3.66 (RILEIR% 35,940,800 A% A {3l 5T £4
35,797,200 REfkfy (HrpafE 2022 F[EllE >
686,200 HER%(7) - 43 AL B L85 17355 i B Ay
1.34%71 1.34% - 2023 E[A(f&HIFIER 829,800 fk
RETS 2024 4 1 A 8 H#fsEdH -

20224 » A {THiEliot Investment Management
Z BT & 2 S a8 a8 R 0y O] B T sk 0 B I AR AT

consideration of HK$2,904 million, and 15,744,800 shares on the Stock
Exchange at a consideration of HK$134 million. As at 31 December,
2022, the total number of shares repurchased and cancelled were
262,254,973 and 261,568,773 respectively, representing 8.97% and
8.95% of the ordinary shares in issue at the beginning of the year.

246,510,173/t 1y > AR R B HE29.04(8 7T » &
J7 Bt 52 i [B] g 15,744,800 8% B {7y - AR (E R 3 ¥
1.34(8 7T - B E20224E 12 31 H L L - [ A
s B 0 48 oy Bl By 262,254,973 Jt Al
261,568,773 > {554 4] 2517 A L Y8.97%
#18.95% -

Below table shows the details of the shares repurchased and cancelled
during 2023.

TG, 2023 4EC EMRIEES Ry 2 SE -

Highest price Lowest price  Average price

Number per share per share per share Aggregate
Month of shares (SEEER) (SEEER) EHEHY  consideration
A e 44 e EAS A fEfES SE(ER HRE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ Mn
A& A& s RNEET
Share repurchased:  T.EIFEHE
On-market share
buy-back B ElE
- February 2023 - 2023724 2,932,400 11.24 10.50 10.86 32
- April 2023 - 20234 3,991,200 10.50 9.88 10.16 41
- May 2023 - 202345 6,884,000 10.72 9.58 10.18 70
- June 2023 - 202346 4,032,600 10.56 9.77 10.17 41
- July 2023 - 2023#7H 3,906,800 12.20 10.38 11.28 44
- August 2023 - 202348 1,494,400 11.34 10.92 11.14 17
- September 2023 - 2023%F9H 259,400 11.42 11.18 11.33 3
- October 2023 - 2023#10A 4,754,600 10.34 9.23 9.66 46
- November 2023 - 2023%11A 4,455,400 9.92 9.01 9.46 42
- December 2023 - 2023%12f 3,230,000 9.72 9.09 9.39 30
- Settled - B4EE 2,919,400 27
- Not yet settled - REREAR
at year end GEE 310,600 3
35,940,800 366
Share cancelled EEE D 35,797,200



40.

41.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) B4 (45)

Staff Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to the approved Staff Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”),
options to purchase ordinary shares in the Bank were granted to eligible
employees. Except as provided otherwise in the rules of the relevant
Scheme(s), share options granted under 2011 Scheme, 2016 Scheme
and 2021 Scheme will be exercisable during the period beginning on the
Vesting Date and ending on the fifth anniversary of the Vesting Date.

There were no options exercised and shares issued under the Schemes
during the years 2023 and 2022.

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ZE4MN A T E

Additional Tier 1 capital securities IR EARTE

USD650 million undated non- o B
cumulative subordinated capital 6.5(FRTTLIREN HIE R A E
securities 6] BRI

USD650 million undated non- o B
cumulative subordinated capital 6.5(FRTTIRE HIF R A E
securities ) BRI

(1) On 19" September, 2019, the Bank issued Additional Tier 1 capital
securities with a face value of US$650 million (equivalent to
HK$5,069 million net of related issuance costs). The Additional Tier 1
capital securities are undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
securities and bear a 5.875% per annum coupon until the first call
date on 19" September, 2024. The coupon will be reset every five
years, if the Additional Tier 1 capital securities are not redeemed, to
a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury
rate plus 4.257% per annum. The coupon payments may be
cancelled at the sole discretion of the Bank. The Additional Tier 1
capital securities will be written down if a non-viability event occurs
and is continuing. They rank higher than ordinary shares in the event
of a winding-up, and meet the loss-absorbing capacity requirement.

The first scheduled coupon payment date was 19" March, 2020 and
the coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to
cancel coupon payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the
terms and conditions of the Additional Tier 1 capital securities) and
the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless
the next scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the Additional Tier 1 capital securities will be written
off up to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA
notifies the Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA, the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no written off of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding Additional
Tier 1 capital securities from 19" September, 2024 or any subsequent
coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the terms
and conditions.
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B O AN R SRR ERTE ( T5H8, ) &
Wt T & ET& R B AT AR THY S MR -
PRAEARISTERVRAIS ARHUESD - iR 2011 5f
H - 2016 5181 & 2021 51 HI P THIRE YT
SUIPR B o i 1 Bl 2 Bl 1 B956 5 B4R -

7 2023 4 2022 4 » A5 S HET T ALIRIE (T2
BRI T B 7 -

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEEIT BEEHEIT

@) 5,069 5,069
%) 5,021 5,021
10,090 10,090

(1) 220194 9 H 19 H » A{T#{THIfE 6.5 {§357C

(HIBRE RS TR 1% EME 1 50.69 (BT) 4
ISR EAR T B - N —WER T BT
HAHIE R BB EEART E KR 5.875%F 2
o HFE 2024 £ 9 A 19 HIVE—RELH -
WZHEIN— BB AR T HAR WD > BREEE
TSN S I AR AR E S R INE R
4.257% 7 [EE MR EHEE - AT HITRE
TEEHUH A - IR —EE AR EE G
Wi G FRiE  ZHEIN—BERTHE M
B o BB —4E AR T BAT B4 R BRI b
WA H BN R AR IERE T 2 E
;}‘g o

F-REIREH 202053 H19H - FE4E)K
R o KATH BT RERGIUESZAHE
(IR B ATHESN— SR E ARG 7 Bl A1 R
FREER ) RFERA A RET » HE > BRIET
R BB E H A AT AREEMIRERE
TR -

W8 S5 AT AR R AT AR S 88 41—
WEAT B Z A HEEEECE MMk
EE BN EE BIEGEREE LS
WP — AR LR Z A2 s -

H120244E9 H 19 H SR ME ST H - AT
AT EE SRR LU B TR BN S EA TR Z
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41. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) ZESMEATE (45)

@

On 21 October, 2020, the Bank issued Additional Tier 1 capital
securities with a face value of US$650 million (equivalent to
HK$5,021 million net of related issuance costs). The Additional Tier
1 capital securities are undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
securities and bear a 5.825% per annum coupon until the first call
date on 21% October, 2025. The coupon will be reset every five
years, if the Additional Tier 1 capital securities are not redeemed, to
a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury
rate plus 5.527% per annum. The coupon payments may be
cancelled at the sole discretion of the Bank. The Additional Tier 1
capital securities will be written down if a non-viability event occurs
and is continuing. They rank higher than ordinary shares in the event
of a winding-up, and meet the loss-absorbing capacity requirement.

The first scheduled coupon payment date was 21st April, 2021 and
the coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right
to cancel coupon payment (subject to the requirement as set out in
the terms and conditions of the Additional Tier 1 capital securities)
and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the
Bank is stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders
unless the next scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the Additional Tier 1 capital securities will be written
off up to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the
HKMA notifies the Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA, the Bank
would become non-viable if there is no written off of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding Additional
Tier 1 capital securities from 21 October, 2025 or any subsequent
coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the
terms and conditions.

42. RESERVES £

(@

(b)
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(2) 1220204 10 A 21 H » A{TE{TIEIE 6.5 (F3=

Tt (FUBRARASE TR R SEME NS 50.21 {25T)
BN EARTH - ZHI—RERTHZE
FIHIHIE RRBREE A T H K 5.825%F 5
#2 HFE 20254 10 H 21 HIE—RELH -
WZHEIN— BB AR T HAR WD > BREEE
TSN S I AR AR E S R INE R
5.527% 7 [EE MR EHEE - AT HITHRE
TERIUH A - IR —EE AR EE G
Wi & FRiE  ZEIN—BERTEE TR
B o MEBIN—4E AR T BAT 84 IR BRI b
WA A BN R A RIS IERE T 2 E
;}‘g o

F-RBEIRE H B2021F4H 21H - F44F
TR — K o ATHBTRERGIUE AR
CRIRFR SATEIN— A A TR ATEAR RIS 5
FRENER ) MBS RET - B2 > BRIET
RMBHEBE H S » AT ARREEMIREKE
TR -

W8 5 B RIAT U8 R AT A S 885 —
WEA TR Z AR EEEACE » KT
EE RN RRESERLFEREREHN &
WP —RE R LR Z R s -

FH20254E10 A 21 H sk LR EAAIES A H > A&
OIS RO FTAE AR TR 24568
{BZEZE S R R AHRIFT AR -

The Group The Bank
£H RIT
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT B EETT B EETT BEEETT
General reserve (a) —MfEM
At 1% January ®1H1H 13,658 13,658 13,472 13,472
Transferred from property ,
revaluation reserve on &R E Y
disposals i - - - -
At 31% December 12H31H 13,658 13,658 13,472 13,472
Revaluation reserve on bank  (b) {ThEEfLEEFH
premises
At 1% January ®1H1H 2,255 1,905 1,895 1,899
Recognition of deferred tax Eﬁﬁyi EALFH »
assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AfD)
(Note 35(hb)) (#72135(b) ) 2 4) 2 4
Revaluation surplus on bank P
premises transferred to (7&%%{5&@%@?)\
investment properties BB
(Note 32) (Hz32) 13 354 13 -
At 31% December 12H31H 2,270 2,255 1,910 1,895




42. RESERVES (CONTINUED) {# (48)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

()

Statutory reserves

At 15t January

Transfer to retained profits
At 31% December

Capital reserve

At 15t January

Transfer to retained profits
At 31% December

Exchange revaluation
reserve

At 15t January
Exchange adjustments
At 31% December

Capital reserve — staff share
options issued

At 15t January

Forfeited options transferred
to retained profits

Additions (Note 13)
At 315 December

Fair value reserve

At 15t January

Changes in fair value of
securities

Reversal upon disposal

Recognition of deferred tax
(liabilities)/assets
(Note 35(b))

At 315 December

(©

(d)

(e)

®

()

TR
FLIALH
PN kDTl
#12H31H

&N
JiiDERAE
AR
127 31H

bE £ B R O
JiiDERAE

b f2 R
127 31H

AR R-E 8T
& HaBh

JiiDERAE

EFEH TR A
Rl

W (H7A13)

127 31H

D EERR

JiiDERAE

T HEE

J> B IR ]

BRI AL ASIE
(AfE) /&
(H77#35(b) )

127 31H
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The Group The Bank
£H FRIT

2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT B EETT BEEETT BEEETT
5,138 5,273 - -
@ (135) - -
5,136 5,138 - -
895 895 - -
895 895 - -
(1,822) 1,058 (125) 127
(723) (2,880) 223 (252)
(2,545) (1,822) 98 (125)
150 152 150 152
(35) (24) (35) (24)
24 22 24 22
139 150 139 150
510 1,925 360 1,763
880 1,722) 897 (1,545)
82 13 121 (153)
(134) 294 (148) 295
1,338 510 1,230 360




42. RESERVES (CONTINUED) {# (48)

(h)

@

@

(k)

Liability credit reserve

At 15t January

Changes in fair value arising
from changes in own
credit risk (Note 34)

Recognition of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities)
(Notes 34 and 35(b))

At 315 December

Other reserves
At 15t January

Transfer to retained profits

Share of changes in equity
of associates and joint

ventures
At 315 December

Retained profits

At 15t January

Net profit for the year

Transfer from capital reserve
- staff share options

issued

Transfer from statutory

reserve

Transfer from other reserves

Share buy-back

Redemption of Additional
Tier 1 capital instruments

Distribution/Dividends

(Note 18)

- Interim dividend

- Second interim dividend
in respect of prior years

- Special dividend
- Additional Tier 1 capital

instruments
At 315 December

Total reserves

Q)

@

(k)

RAEE R
JiiERAE
HEEEEIE
AWAHEE
g (A
34)
HERR IR AL ASIE
AE/ (A
(2134 R
35(b))
#12H31H

HAL A
JiiDERAE
AR
JE(ERRE A E] R
BEEFEMED
Hy )
#12H31H

el

JiiDERAE
FEFEAN ]
BEEARGH
-ERTREA
licd

BEEERH
58 HA AR
ey [l

LI G ZIN

TH
Pap/ 0= d5Y
(f2#18)
- PR
- EEREE R
RREELiE3S)
-HERIE
- BN EEA
IH
127 31H

A
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The Group The Bank
£H AT

2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEEHE T A ETT AEEEHETT A E T
15 (46) 15 (46)

(13) 73 (13) 73
2 (12) 2 (12)

4 15 4 15

(33) (82) - -

- (5) - -

51 54 - -

18 (33) - -
33,365 35,395 26,059 28,292
4,118 4,359 4,692 4,296
35 24 35 24

2 135 - -

- 5 - -

(367) (3,051) (367) (3,051)

- (47) - (47)

(957) (430) (957) (430)
(455) (1,023) (455) (1,023)

- (1,294) - (1,294)

(596) (708) (596) (708)
35,145 33,365 28,411 26,059
56,058 54,131 45,264 41,826




42. RESERVES (CONTINUED) {# (48)

General reserve was set up from the transfer of retained earnings and the
realised revaluation surplus on disposal of properties.

Revaluation reserve on bank premises and exchange revaluation reserve
have been set up and are dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the revaluation of bank premises and foreign
currency translation.

Statutory reserves are set up to satisfy the statutory requirements of
certain overseas subsidiaries and associates mainly for the purpose of
covering unidentified potential losses on risk assets in addition to those
recognised under the prevailing accounting requirements in their
jurisdictions.

Capital reserve represents the capitalisation of subsidiaries’, associates’
and joint ventures’ reserves.

Capital reserve — staff share options issued comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Bank recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share based payment in Note 2(X)(iv).

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value
of FVOCI securities held until the securities are derecognised and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in Note 2(h).

Liability credit reserve includes the cumulative changes in the fair value
of the financial liabilities designated at FVTPL that are attributable to
changes in the credit risk of these liabilities other than those recognised
in profit or loss.

Other reserves represent share of changes in equity of associates in
respect of investment revaluation reserve and revaluation reserve of bank
premises.

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes by
earmarking amounts in respect of losses which the Bank will or may incur
on loans and advances and investments in addition to impairment losses
recognised. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly through
retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA. As at 31%
December, 2023, the effect of this requirement is to restrict the amount of
reserves which can be distributed by the Bank to shareholders by
HK$2,138 million (2022: HK$1,742 million).

At 31% December, 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity holders of the Bank was HK$37,462 million (2022:
HK$34,698 million). After the end of the reporting period the directors
declared a second interim dividend of HK$0.18 per ordinary share (2022:
HK$0.17 per share), amounting to HK$477 million (2022: HK$456
million). The dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT T ERges

This section presents information on the Group’s management of principal
risks.

The Group has established a risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the HKMA and other
regulators. This framework is built around a structure that enables the
Board and Senior Management to discharge their risk management-
related responsibilities with appropriate delegation and checks and
balances. These responsibilities include defining risk appetite in
accordance with the Group’s business strategies and objectives,
formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those strategies, and
establishing procedures and limits for the approval, control, monitoring,
and remedy of risks.

The Risk Committee stands at the highest level of the Group’s risk
governance structure under the Board. It consists of five independent non-
executive directors and two non-executive directors and is chaired by one
of the independent non-executive directors. The Risk Committee provides
direct oversight over the formulation of the Group’s risk appetite, and sets
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to its
financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions, and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Committee also ensures that the Group’ s risk appetite is
reflected in the policies and procedures that Senior Management adopt to
execute their business functions. Through the Group’ s management
committees, including Crisis Management Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Management
Committee, and Operational Risk Management Committee — and with
overall co-ordination by the Risk Management Division — the Risk
Committee regularly reviews the Group’ s risk management framework
and ensures that all important risk-related tasks are performed according
to established policies with appropriate resources.

The Crisis Management Committee, Risk Management Committee, Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee, and Operational
Risk Management Committee comprise the Senior Management, the
Group Chief Risk Officer and where appropriate senior executives from
relevant areas.

The Group has implemented an Enterprise Risk Management framework
to identify and manage potential risks in a holistic and effective manner.
The ERM framework assists the Group to achieve this, and reinforces the
“Three Lines of Defence” risk management model.

The Group has adopted the “Three Lines of Defence” risk management
structure to ensure that roles and responsibilities in regard to risk
management within the Group are clearly defined. The “Three Lines of
Defence” model is summarised as follows:-

e The first line of defence comprises the Risk Owners, who are heads
of business units or supporting units of the Bank Group, together with
staff under their management. They are primarily responsible for the
day-to-day risk management of their units, including establishing and
executing specific risk control mechanisms and detailed procedures.

e The second line of defence consists of the Risk Controllers who are
designated staff responsible for setting out a risk management
governance framework, monitoring risks independently and supporting
the management committees in their oversight of risk management for
the Bank Group.

e The third line of defence is the Internal Audit Division, which is
responsible for providing assurance as to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework, including risk governance
arrangements.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

The Group Chief Risk Officer co-ordinates all risk management-related
matters of the Group, works closely with the Risk Controllers on the
formulation of risk management policies and exercises risk oversight at
the Group level through a functional working relationship with all Risk
Controllers and Risk Owners.

The Group faces a variety of risks that could affect its franchise,
operations, and financial conditions. Under the ERM framework, the
principal risks comprise credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, reputation risk, strategic risk, legal risk, compliance
risk, and technology risk.

The Group has formulated policies to identify, measure, monitor, control,
and report on the various types of risk and, where appropriate, to allocate
adequate capital to cover those risks. The Group’s major risk
management policies and control limits are approved by the Board and
are reviewed and enhanced on a regular basis to cater for market
changes, statutory requirements, and best practice in risk management
processes. The Board has delegated the responsibility for ongoing risk
management to the Risk Committee and the management committees.
Significant risk management-related issues must be reported to the
Board, which oversees risk management, through the Risk Committee.
Moreover, on a daily basis, the Group Chief Risk Officer is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s risk management issues, which include, but
are not limited to, the risk management infrastructure, strategies,
appetites, culture, and resources.

Stress testing is an integral part of the Group’s risk management. The
Group regularly performs stress tests on the principal risks, where
appropriate, to assess the potential impact of stressed business
conditions (including hypothetical situations such as a significant
economic downturn in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong) on the
Group's financial positions, in particular, capital adequacy, profitability,
and liquidity. Whenever necessary, a prompt management response will
be developed and executed to mitigate potential impacts.

(@) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower or counterparty
failing to meet its obligations.

The Credit Committee is responsible for managing all credit risk-
related issues of the Group, while the Credit Risk Management
Department under the Risk Management Division of the Group is
responsible for monitoring activities relating to credit risk. The
Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and
carrying out credit assessment and monitoring of asset quality.
Credit risk control limits are set for different levels. Risk, return, and
market situation are considered when setting all limits. Active limit
monitoring is undertaken.

In evaluating the credit risk associated with an individual customer
or counterparty, financial strength and repayment ability are always
the primary considerations. Credit risk may be mitigated by
obtaining collateral from the customer or counterparty.

The Group has established policies, procedures, and rating
systems to identify, measure, monitor, control, and report on credit
risk. In this connection, guidelines for management of credit risk
have been laid down in the Group’s Credit Risk Management
Manual. These guidelines stipulate delegated lending authorities,
credit underwriting criteria, credit monitoring processes, an internal
rating structure, credit recovery procedures and a provisioning
policy. They are reviewed and enhanced on an ongoing basis to
cater for market changes, statutory requirements, and best practice
in risk management processes.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

The Group’s credit risk management for the major types of credit risk
is depicted as follows:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v

Corporate and financial institutions credit risk

The Group has laid down policies and procedures to evaluate
the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty or
transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate and
bank customers, the Group has different internal rating systems
that incorporate different risk factors (e.g. region of operation,
corporate size) and are applied to each counterparty. For
exposure classified as Specialised Lending in particular,
supervisory slotting criteria are adopted. To monitor credit
concentration risk, the Group has preset limits for exposures to
individual industries and for borrowers and groups of
borrowers. The Group also has a review process to ensure that
the level of review and approval is proper and will depend on
the size of the facility and rating of the credit.

The Group undertakes on-going credit analysis and monitoring
at several levels. The policies are designed to promote early
detection of counterparty, industry or product exposures that
require special monitoring. The overall portfolio risk as well as
individual impaired loans and potential impaired loans are
monitored on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Group's retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous and small value transactions in each retail loan
category. The design of the internal rating system and
formulation of credit policies are primarily based on customers’
background, credit behaviours and the loss experience of the
loan portfolios. The Group monitors its own and industry
experience to determine and periodically revise product terms
and desired customer profiles.

Credit risk of treasury transactions

The credit risk of the Group's treasury transactions is managed
in the same way as the Group manages its corporate and
financial institutions credit risk. The Group applies an internal
rating system to its counterparties and sets individual
counterparty limits.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. These
transactions are subject to the same credit application, portfolio
maintenance and collateral requirements as for customers
applying for loans.

Concentrations of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
relation to the Group’s total exposures. The Group’s credit
portfolio is diversified along geographic, industry and product
sectors. For analysis of loans and advances to customers by
industry sectors and geographical areas, please refer to Notes
27(b) and 27(c) respectively.

The Group monitors its credit concentration risk by adopting
appropriate risk control measures, such as setting limits on
exposures to different industries and loan portfolios.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

(Vi)

(vii)

Maximum exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period without taking into consideration of any collateral held
or other credit enhancements is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance. A summary

of the maximum exposure is as follows:

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with and advances to

banks
Trade bills
Trading assets
Derivative assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities
Other assets

Financial guarantees contracts

Loan commitments

Credit quality analysis

Credit quality of loans and advances

The following tables set out information about the credit quality
of loans and advances to customers. Unless specifically

indicated, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying

amounts.

Loans and advances to

customers at amortised cost

B R AT BIE PR B

Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1154 &8
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 1617 4% FRERE
- Grade 18: Substandard
- 184 Tk
- Grade 19: Doubtful
- 194 R
- Grade 20: Loss
- 204k kiR
Total gross carrying amount
R E{E XA
Impairment allowances
JREER
Carrying amount
RTE &

Market value of collateral held
against impaired loans and
advances to customers

TRAER P ER R B T
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(@) (EEEREE (8)
(V) =R
AR5 HAGE o H AR AT B A o] R L B A
FEEEANTSEEERE - BT —HTD K
B A e Jak L 2B 1Y e b A M SR = 1Y
IRIAE - s BT
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT
P AT SR THVSE T 44,486 53,114
TESRITHNAF RN R Bk 43,601 60,203
H 5 373 529
X5 E 2,764 1,275
TTHETHEHERE 9,056 11,092
G V&0 526,984 542,394
e G 165,527 145,289
Hfth& 38,218 38,974
WISIEIREE) 13,570 14,032
ERURIE 360,382 338,673
1,205,051 1,205,575
(vii) EEEZO
B RBEHIEEEZE
TREBYN SRR BN EEE RN - FREF
RIFEEAE N > RASANT B EE R IRE (HA44E -
2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12BN IHEER BINAKEINY | (EEF BN Total
A Ak A Ak A Ak g
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
A&l MRS A&l MRS A&l MRS A&l MRS
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
ESET | CEIET | EISEETT | EIEETT | EIEET | R EET | R EET | R EET
493,730 1,748| 14,060 50| - - 507,790 1,798
- - 9,987 55| - - 9,987 55
- - - - 6,711 120 6,711 120
- - - - 1,918| 99 1,918| 99
- - - - 5,705 230 5,705 230
493,730 1,748| 24,047| 105| 14,334 449 532,111] 2,302
(900) (4) (691) ) (3,536) (163) (5,127) (174)
492,830 1,744 23,356 98| 10,798| 286 526,984 2,128

7,041
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERESEE (4)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (8)

(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (vii)y EEEZSM (&)

2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEER RINENHIN Y [EER RIVELIHIN 2 T Total
THHE Sk THHE Sk [ESEiEES okl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | CENEEDT | BN EEDT | BT | BN e | BN EEDT | B e | B EET
Loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost
HERS AT B R PR EK
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1154 &% 508,308 1,534 11,543 51 - - 519,851 1,585
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 1617 4% FRERE - - 16,018| 95| - - 16,018 95|
- Grade 18: Substandard
- 184 Tk - - - - 9,498 96| 9,498 96
- Grade 19: Doubtful
- 198k R - - - - 2,756 97| 2,756 97
- Grade 20: Loss
- 204k kiR - - - - 891] 30 891 30
Total gross carrying amount
MRAMEAEER 508,308 1,534 27,561 146 13,145| 223 549,014 1,903
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (1,084) (5) (1,018) (8) (4,518) (123) (6,620) (136)
Carrying amount
IREE 507,224 1,529 26,543 138| 8,627, 100 542,394 1,767,

Market value of collateral held
against impaired loans and
advances to customers

BB P SRR R A A T 5,901

Collateral includes any tangible security that carries a fair
market value and is readily marketable. This includes (but is
not limited to) cash and deposits, stocks and bonds, mortgages
over properties and charges over other fixed assets such as
plant and equipment. Where collateral values are greater than
gross loans and advances to customers, only the amount of
collateral up to the gross loans and advances is included.

Aty EAE (T B PR R mT R HH & YA
AR - B B (HATREY) B
FAFRK~ B2 ~ YISk A E E &
FEQIEEM hesseffs 2450 © IS EESNE
JF R R BRI AR AR B SR R
TRUEERRHEAR 8 o

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

The following tables set out the credit analysis for financial
assets other than loans and advances to customers, measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI. Unless specifically indicated, for
financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross
carrying amounts/fair value. For loan commitment and financial
guarantee contracts, the amounts in the table represent the
amounts committed or guaranteed, respectively.

BRERRFHS M B EN G R E

TR PR B s BRSPS P A Rt
A A = T U e DLS A B (ER T B R
BWEEDHT - BREFRITEHES > BiEml & E
ME » RN EHERREEESE N PE
B - SERURIE K BIE R EAIMNS - R8N
FN B8R T 1 Ry A B ORAY 288 -
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEHE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (vii)y EEEZSM (&)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREHR BT EENEEEE (&)

advances (continued)

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12{HHNZ JHEERRBNEOHNZ | FERRNGOHNZ Total
TS EEE THHEEEE TS EEE skl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
B | MEEFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHRIE

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AN E DT | BN EET [ B EE T | DR EETT | BN E ST | BN E ST | B EETT | R EET

Trade bills measured at
amortised cost

HEER AT BNE AR
- Grades 1-15: Pass

- 1154 &8 250 - 1 - - - 251] -
Total gross carrying amount
R E{E XA 250 - 1 - - - 251 -
Impairment allowances
JREER - - - - - - - -
Carrying amount
RTE & 250 - 1 - - - 251 -

2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12{EHNZ JHEERBNEAHNZ | FEARNGOHNZ Total
THHE EEE THHE EEE THHE EEE ekl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
B | TEEFIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| HESHFIE

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
ANE DT | BN EET [ B EE T | DR EETT | BN E ST | BN E ST | B EE T | R EET

Trade bills measured at
amortised cost

HEER A BNE AR
- Grades 1-15: Pass

- 1-154%: &g 41 - - - - - 41 -
Total gross carrying amount
MRTEI{E 495 41 - - - - - 41 -
Impairment allowances
RN - - - - - - - -
Carrying amount
RTE & 41] - - - - - 41 -
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEHE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (vii)y EEEZSM (&)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREHR BT EENEEEE (&)

advances (continued)

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12{HHNZ JHEERRNEAHNZ | FERRNGOHNZ Total
THHEEEE THHEEEE THHEEEE skl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
B | TEEFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
ANE DT | BN EET [ BN EE T | DR EETT | BN E ST | BN E ST | B EE T | R EET

Trade bills measured at FVOCI
HORBH AR E e DB AEE
B ENEERE

- Grades 1-15: Pass

- 1158k &t 122 - - - - - 122] -
Total carrying amount at fair value
WRTEE 483 — $2 A F

HE 122 - - - - - 122 -
Impairment allowances
JREER - - - - - - - -
2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12{EHNZ JHEERRBNEOHNZ | FEARNGOHNZ Total
THHEEEE THHEEEE THHEEEE skl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
B | TEEFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AN E DT | BN EET [ B EE T | DR EETT | BN E ST | BN E ST | B EETT | R EET

Trade bills measured at FVOCI

HORBH AR EBEE DB AEE

B ENEEEE

- Grades 1-15: Pass

- 1-154%: &1 480 - 8 - - - 488 -

Total carrying amount at fair value

WRTEE 9% — f2 A F
=G 480 - 8 - - - 488 -

Impairment allowances

RN - - - - - - - -
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERESEE (4)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (viiy EEEZ S (&)

BRERRFBHSM e B ENIERE L ()

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

advances (continued)

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEEFBRNELHING | EEARNENHINZ Total
THHEEEE THHEEEE THHEEEE okl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| HESHFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | B E T | BN ETT | BT | BN EETT | B EEDT | B EETT | B EET
Placements with and advances
to banks
TESRITHI TR K
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1154 - &% 43,693 164 - - - - 43,693 164
Total gross carrying amount
WRTEI{E 495 43,693 164 - - - - 43,693 164
Impairment allowances
JREER (2) - - - - - (2) -
Carrying amount
RTE & 43,691 164 - - - - 43,691 164
2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEEFRNELHING | EEFRNENHINZ Total
THHEEEE THHEEEE TS EEE gl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| HESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | BEEET | BN ETT | BT | BN EETT | B EsDT | B EETT | B EET
Placements with and advances
to banks
TESRITHI AR B
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1154 - &% 60,204 122 - - - - 60,204 122
Total gross carrying amount
MRTEI{E 495 60,204 122 - - - - 60,204 122
Impairment allowances
JREER (1) - - - - - (1) -
Carrying amount
RTE & 60,203 122 - - - - 60,203 122
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERESEE (4)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (viiy EEEZ S (&)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

BRERRFBHSM e B ENIERE L ()

advances (continued)

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
LR2EANZ  |IHEER RGN EER RIVELIHINZ Total
THHE ek THHE ek THHE ek ekl
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
A EETT A EETT A EETT A EETT
Loan commitments
BRORIE
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1-154% : &g 355,118 4,843 - 359,961
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 16-17 4 - FRERE - 522 - 522
Total #%H 355,118 5,365 - 360,483
Impairment allowances
JRIEZEH (90) (11) - (101)
Financial guarantee contracts
MBRREN
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1-154% : &% 13,110, 8 - 13,118|
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 16-17 4 - FRERE - 136 - 136
- Grade 18: Substandard
- 184 - Tk - - 630 630
Total ¢# 13,110 144 630 13,884
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (22) (11) (281) (314)
2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
R2EANZ  |IHEER RGN EER RIVELIHINZ Total
THHE EHE% THHE EHE% THHE EHE% HaEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
A EETT A EETT A EETT A EETT
Loan commitments
BRORIE
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1-154% : &% 334,520 3,906 - 338,426
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 16-17 4 - FRERE - 373 - 373
Total #i& 334,520 4,279 - 338,799
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (107) (19) - (126)
Financial guarantee contracts
MBEREN
- Grades 1-15: Pass
- 1-154% : &% 12,476 1,058 - 13,534
- Grades 16-17: Special Mention
- 16-17 & - FRERE - 28 - 28
- Grade 18: Substandard
- 184 - Tk - - 662 662
Total & 12,476 1,086 662 14,224
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (14) (4) (174) (192)




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

Page 111

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (viiy EEEZ S (&)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and
advances (continued)

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate and bank lending
risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties with
individual counterparty limits set.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of
investment in debt securities analysed by designation of
external credit assessment institution, Moody's Investor
Services, or equivalent, is as follows:

BRERRFBHSM e B ENIERE L ()

AR GNEERERERHTTE > BAEHEH
HAb 3R R RAT RS A 7 A — B bR 4R 2
PR (A T AREER T -

FRERE G R o RSN (5 Rt AR iR - 2
HMREE R - SO E BB EVRER RS - FTIEE
ZEGE BN EEER AT

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8HNZ JHEERRNEOHNY | EERRNEGOHNZ Total
THHAE ek THHAE ek THHAE ek okl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| HESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| HESHFIE K| FESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | CENEEDT | BN EEDT | BT | B e | BN EEDT | B e | B EE T
Debt investment securities
measured at amortised cost
R AT BN EBRE
=
Aaa
Aaa - - - - - - - -
Aal to Aa3
Aal#FAa3 3,252 2 - - - - 3,252 2
Alto A3
ALZEA3 2,244 49| - - - - 2,244 49
Baal to Baa3
Baal%Baa3 1,886 8 - - - - 1,886 8
Below Baa3
Baa3ll 650 6 172 1 682 29| 1,504 36|
Unrated
FEETAR 2,395 27| 207 6 374 16 2,976 49
Total gross carrying amount
MRAMEAEER 10,427 92| 379 7 1,056 45| 11,862 144
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (19) - (8) - (645) (45) (672) (45)
Carrying amount
MRIAIE 10,408] 92| 371 7 411 - 11,190 99
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FEFRMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (&)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (vii)y EEEZSM (&)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREFHRBISNTEHEENEEEZE (&)

advances (continued)

2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEEF RGNS | EEFRNENHINZ Total
THHE EHE% THHE EHE% THHE EHE% HaEH
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE K| MESHFIE K| MESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | BN E T | BN ETT | BIEEETT | BN EETT | B EEDT | B EETT | B EET
Debt investment securities
measured at amortised cost
R A BN EBRE
Eez
Aaa
Aaa - - - - - - - -
Aal to Aa3
Aal#FAa3 3,210 1 - - - - 3,210 1
Alto A3
A1ZEA3 4,068 72| - - - - 4,068 72|
Baal to Baa3
Baal%Baa3 2,248 18| - - - - 2,248 18|
Below Baa3
Baa3ll 538 7 405 4 193] 2 1,136 13
Unrated
SR 3,584 48| 368 8 253 5 4,205 61
Total gross carrying amount
MRAMEAER 13,648] 146 773 12 446 7 14,867 165]
Impairment allowances
JRIEZE (66) (1) (98) 2) (241) ) (405) (10)
Carrying amount
MRIAIE 13,582 145 675 10 205 - 14,462 155]
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEHE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (viiy EEEZ S (&)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREHR BT EENEEEE (&)

advances (continued)

2023
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEEF RGNS | EEFRNENHINZ Total
THHE ek THHE Sk THHE ek okl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| HESHFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | B E T | BN ETT | BT | BN EETT | B EEDT | B EETT | B EET
Debt investment securities
measured at FVOCI
FoOEBRHE AR ERZE L
AP EEER
EEREES
Aaa
Aaa 9,057 3 - - - - 9,057, 3
Aal to Aa3
AalZzAa3 30,720 131] - - - - 30,720 131]
Alto A3
ALEA3 66,383 848 - - - - 66,383 848|
Baal to Baa3
BaalZ%Baa3 42,922 473 - - - - 42,922 473
Below Baa3
Baa3ll 76| - 315 3 14 4 405 7
Unrated
FEETAR 2,243 43| 531 9 - - 2,774 52
Total carrying amount at fair value
SO T 1 4 — e A PR 151,401 1,498 846 12 14 4 152,261 1,514
where impairment allowances
included
AR ZEH (98) (1) (14) - (48) (4) (160) (5)
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FEFRMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEHE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (viiy EEEZ S (&)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREFHR BB EN EREZE ()

advances (continued)

2022
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired
12(8H Nz JHEEF RGNS | EEFRNENHINZ Total
THHE ek THHE Sk THHE ek okl
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest Principal interest
K| HESHFIE K| FESHRIE K| FESHFIE K| FESHFIE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
Al EETT | B E T | BN ETT | BT | BN EETT | B EEDT | B EETT | B EET
Debt investment securities
measured at FVOCI
FoOEBRHE AR ERZE L
A PEESER
EEREES
Aaa
Aaa 7,305 10 - - - - 7,305 10
Aal to Aa3
AalZFAa3 21,855 37| - - - - 21,855 37|
Alto A3
A1ZEA3 56,412 798 - - - - 56,412 798
Baal to Baa3
Baal#Baa3 37,906 419 803 9 - - 38,709 428
Below Baa3
Baa3ll 233 2 228 3 - - 461 5
Unrated
fETaR 2,815 37 - - - - 2,815 37
Total carrying amount at fair value
R TAI (B 48EE — F N (e fE 126,526 1,303 1,031 12 - - 127,557 1,315
where impairment allowances
included
AR ZEH (214) 2) (41) - - - (255) 2




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

advances (continued)

The following table sets out the credit analysis for non-trading
debt investment securities measured at FVTPL.

Non-trading debt investment
securities measured at FVTPL

Aaa

Aal to Aa3
Alto A3
Baal to Baa3
Below Baa3
Unrated

Total carrying amount at fair value

The following table sets out the credit analysis for trading debt

investment securities.

Trading debt investment securities
measured at FVTPL

Aaa

Aal to Aa3
Alto A3
Baal to Baa3
Below Baa3
Unrated

Total carrying amount at fair value

() EEEREHR (%)

(vii) EEERS (8
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BRERRFBHSM e B ENIERE S ()

TR Fm i i DL S THE E R R IR
R AR EH AR EE I -

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT

B s AR E

FHEAFER S ARBEHEERS
Aaa - -
AalZFAa3 - -
Al1ZEA3 - 192
BaalZBaa3 2,076 2,963
Baa3ll | - _
fESTAR - 115
WRTAME A EH — 1% A EE 2,076 3,270
TREIIEL S HREH R ED FIES T
B -

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT

B AR E

SRR BHRAEBR AR S

Aaa - -
AalZzAa3 - 99
A1ZEA3 2,764 1,176
BaalZBaa3 - -
Baa3ll | - _
SRR - -
WRTAME A EH — 1% A EE 2,764 1,275
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) fEEEBEE (8)
(vii) Credit quality analysis (continued) (vii) EEEZESM (E)
Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and BREHR BT EENEEEE (&)

advances (continued)

The following table shows the credit quality of the NEREBYIETAETEEEL GELAZHTE
counterparties to which there were exposures arising from EEESAT -
derivative asset transactions.
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT BEEETT
Derivative assets ETEEE
Aal to Aa3 Aal%Aa3 6,438 8,317
Alto A3 ALEA3 989 1,183
Baal to Baa3 Baal#Baa3 698 612
Below Baa3 Baa3lL | - R
Unrated frERTa 931 980
Total carrying amount at fair value — FRIEI{EAEEE — %A FEE 9,056 11,092
Cash and balances with banks B2 RAFHRTTH 4577
At 31 December, 2023, the Group held cash and balances 22023412 H31H » AEHEFEHR S KIEIR
with banks of HK$45,904 million (2022: HK$54,581 million), 1THY ST By AR5 459.04 (% J1. (20224F + A&k
of which 96% (2022: 97%) of cash and balances with banks 54581570 © ELA LG IR A T
counterparties that are rated at investment grade, based on 4% H196% ( 20224F 97‘%> (3 4 RAE

Moody’s Investors Service, or equivalent ratings.

AT G THIE R I E SR -



Page 117

43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FHEREEEEE (44)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)

(viii) Details of key areas in measurement of ECLs (viii) "TEHAE &R ) (EE T X R

The Group adopts a forward-looking “expected credit loss”
model for measuring and recognising impairment loss to meet
the requirement of HKFRS 9.

The impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are complex and
require management judgements, estimates and assumptions,
particularly in the following areas, which are discussed in detail
below:

- Assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition; and

- Incorporating forward-looking information into the
measurement of ECLs.

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are Probability of
default (PD); Loss given default (LGD); and Exposure at
default (EAD).

The Group has established a framework to determine whether
the credit risk on a particular financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition (see Note 2(h)(vii)). The
framework aligns with the Group’s internal credit risk
management process.

Credit risk grades

For majority of the Group’s portfolios, the Group assigns each
exposure to a credit risk grade that is determined according to
the predicted level of the risk of default. Credit risk grades are
defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are
indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on
the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

The table below provides the 12-month Probability of default
(“PD") range for each credit risk grade of retail and non-retail
portfolios. The table also provides an indicative mapping of
how the Group’s internal credit risk grades relate to PD and,
for the non-retail portfolio, to external credit ratings of Standard
& Poor’s.

FEE RGN —E BATIEMED T HEBESE
& BAIDUE R AMERD (7 A8 5 e i 4
HIl) HOBRERATIRE -

(CEBM B EAE]) SRRV EMERE
FEVED B 1 LA ~ SRR
FrAIZIEL T Eetlt ZhR

- PG EREENEERRG S ERHR
YERFIHREE ¢ ke

- BOmiEMER DUEEETHEEE
25 e

TR EHEL 5 BN i AR e
#%(PD) » i 7 4H % % (LGD) R & % I &
f(EAD) -

FEE TG E L — 2R E ENE
SR e S B da AR R T R 0 (EESRIT
FE2(h)(vi))) o REARARELA S E Y Py D E SR
REHEFE

(5 HmBR 24

HRAERRZBERES > FEEBE—
118 {5 65 JoU g A Y AR 2 2 &0 g ) P T G S
—{E{E SRRk - {5 R S R
B IREEENE BN AKERE - BLNA
ES SN RN = e AN 2R

TREMHTEENEEEREUENEEE
PR T4 12118 H 2 5 SRR - 54
Biglt T ARBIFREERAGHINENER
JuE iz S5 B LA I8 R 9 S NS (5 R AR TR
He% -

Internal Credit risk Remarks on default risk 12-month PD range External Rating
grade BARBEAHRS 12 H PD&EIE Benchmark
P bS5 AR SMEREER
1-3 Minimal to Low risk 0.0000% t0%20.0857% AAA toZA-
T N AR JE
4-8 Moderate risk 0.0857% t0%20.4290% BBB+ toxBBB-
R
9-11 Substantial risk 0.4290% t0%21.6500% BB+ to% BB-
M8 = L
12-15 High risk 1.6500% t0%28.3531% B+ to%B-
o
16-17 Very High risk 8.3531% to£100% CCC+to%C
TR = g
18-20 Default 100% D
E#L

For the remaining portfolios without credit risk grade
assignment, references of peer bank PD estimates of similar
portfolios and the long-run average default rate of the portfolios
are used.

Hiver M2AEMHEBRES I EEH
& KMERSLEEEEHEITIRMTER
AR 2 E N EHE AN RIS E

B -



Page 118

43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)
(viii) Detalils of key areas in measurement of ECLs (continued) (vii) TTHEHEEEE  MER EEZ R
(4#)

Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of
the term structure of PD for exposures. The Group also collects
historical performance and default information about portfolios
of credit risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and
by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk
grading. For some portfolios with no internal data available,
information from external data sources is used. In particular,

T BORRHE PR A

{5 PRI e 257 4P 2 G 28 B AR Y I PR 45 1
B EF A o REEN G EDAEEE DU
& W SR AR AT (5 B b AR YE - DU E h
e FERR N SR DA e £ 5 J b 54 19 R o2 2880
FBEAEE - BN — g A NEEEB IR E
e BN IRNYE S G RET o R

=

Portfolio External data sources

Hae MBI

Debt exposures

15 55\ A A Moody's Investors Service: Annual default study report
Bank exposures B E IR © R S

SRAT RS R P Wind Information Co., Ltd: Debt default report
Sovereign exposures B BRI AR AE  BYESHRSE

TR RE

The Group deploys statistical models to analyse the data
collected and generate estimates of PD of exposures expected
to change as aresult of the passage of time. The estimation of
PD term structure makes use of the annual credit risk grade
transition for the portfolios with credit risk grade assignment.
For the portfolios without credit risk grade assignment and no
credit risk grade transition information available, the PD term
structure estimation is referenced to forecasts of economic
index relevant to the portfolio.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. For
the retail and corporate portfolio with sufficient historical loss
and recovery data, the collateral recovery rates and the LGD
estimates can be derived. For portfolios with insufficient
historical loss and recovery data, either reference to peer bank
LGD estimates of the similar portfolios or external data source
are used for deriving the LGD estimates.

For portfolio with individual assessment of credit risk mitigation
measures, collateral values are projected for different
economic scenarios so as to reflect the LGD estimates under
different economic scenarios. For other portfolios, different
scenario portfolio LGDs are derived by benchmarking to
corresponding LGDs within a long period of historical LGDs.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a
default. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying
amount at the time of default. For lending commitments or
undrawn limit of retail revolving products, the EAD is the
potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract.
For financial guarantees, the EAD represents the amount of
the guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee
becomes payable. The EAD estimates are adopted using the
parameters suggested by BASEL or statistical model based on
historical data.

Significant increase in credit risk

Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result
in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade
when the risk of asset changes. The Group primarily identifies
whether a significant increase in credit risk under HKFRS 9 has
occurred for an exposure by comparing:

AREE A G M AT SRR BdE - 1
FE R T & DRI R SR T 3% 2R LY B T
INRIERTHE - BAE MRS R
& o BT 5 R S5 AR O A LR DA
ST E E SRR GERE - HIVRAER
JoE\ B S5 &k o BC Y 4L & 202 R Y 135 LR
FRERED - B REARBRE G2
BT ELAH S HRR A SRR ST -

WRTFAEEL - BERBEERE I REEAAE
& - WA R A SRR R BRI
BN A A v DS T 5 E]L
HNUE TR ARMEHE - WINE R IRERK
REIE A & - W] DAEE AR T $RTT 45
SHEHYEF AR R E S M SRR 2
L THRRREETE -

TR BT ff (5 b 42 iR ARV A & - T
A [E G 1 SR R (E (> DUSBEARTR
BB S THVELGBRARMAET o BRHMH
& ARBERAEEFEAFRESERE
SC ST A MR 2 B R SR R T A T BT
(SR

B R A E RN S R YRR TR -
< Al AT Y P SR R T LB R Y TR
EAEH - WSO SCE B R E MATR
TEHURE - R R IEE TR & Al
HU R AR 8] » B E R > H R
W R HE 2T 55 HE O B S0 R R O R B
W o BT E ERIE (SRR A BASELE #I 2
BRI R S R AR S

DR A= SR

15 BB o & R 42 B MO AT H R R A2 1
A AT g R 2R R EY (5 B bR ET AR -
T (CEAM B HREAER]) FO%E T - SEEERA]
— R E SRR S B I £ A B
EERGL & -
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FHEREEEEE (44)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)

(viii) Detalils of key areas in measurement of ECLs (continued) (vii) TTHEHEEEE  MER EEZ R

- the credit risk grade at the reporting date; with

- the credit risk grade at the initial recognition of the
exposure.

The Group deems the credit risk of a particular exposure to
have increased significantly since initial recognition if the
current credit risk grade deteriorates by a pre-determined
number of notches. The criteria for determining the number of
notches may vary by portfolio and include a backstop based
on delinquency.

As a backstop, and as required by HKFRS 9, the Group
presumptively considers that a significant increase in credit risk
occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past
due. Also, being Special-mention under HKMA classification is
also an indicator of significant increase in credit risk.

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify significant increases in credit risk by regular review to
confirm that:

- the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before an exposure is in default;

- exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-
month ECL measurement to credit-impaired; and

- there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from
transfers between 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL
measurements.

Incorporating  forward-looking information into the
measurement of ECLs

The Group has identified key drivers of systematic credit risk
for each portfolio of financial assets based on an analysis of
historical data in which relationship between macro-economic
indicators and the systematic credit risk is exhibited.

The Group formulates economic forward looking scenarios for
the view of the future direction of major economic indicators
such as GDP, unemployment rate, property price index,
interest rate and other economic indicators specific to
particular portfolio.

For each portfolio, the key drivers under forward looking
scenarios are applied for estimating the systematic credit risk
component of an obligor’'s Probability of Default (“PD”") used in
calculating ECLs. In addition to PD, relevant macro-economic
indicators are used for projection of the collateral value for
recovery rate estimates used in ECL calculation.

The Group adopts the use of three economic scenarios. In
each region/country where the Group operates, the Group
formulates probability for each scenario and forecast the major
macro-economic indicators to reflect the Group’s forward-
looking view on the future business outcomes in that particular
region/country under each scenario.

(&)
- RERHOEERERREL

- RUIEAER R (E B bR -

WK — B EHVERAT (5 B R T 4R 2 A S
WIaaAYERF YRR Tk i —(E R e e
Hygfr - AEERZEENEEREREE AN
B - AEVEEHE S DURRE A
B AF R » DU R TERY
B -

T (CEAM B REAER]) BOHET - fER—(E
B ARSI B E30H
HYETE R (5 B R A HRE AN - BESh - £
B R BRI HEE T BFy e R R Skt
R EERREE N -

AR A SR A (5 B R b ey iy AR AR Y
AR - B WiteeT DAREDR |

- M EARERE AR b AR E AT RATR A (5 B
JE\b e

- ERRE AT EE 12 ARG
SRAEEELAREE Kk
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Y HA SRR

HNEERELS - ATIEEE R THIG 5
EPSEN SIS R e PN ) H RSN ET
{5 FIER 53 DL R R BT E SR - R
BRI - BN B OB RS R TE
B i (B DA S B SR o P (R SRR
HWifFEIEL -
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LENFEE B o AEERHEETE
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FHEREEEEE (44)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEREE (8)

(viii) Detalils of key areas in measurement of ECLs (continued) (vii) TTHEHEEEEL  ME R EEZ R

Incorporating  forward-looking information into  the
measurement of ECLs (continued)

The forecasts of baseline scenario are based on advice from
the in-house economic experts and considerations of a variety
of actual and forecast information, such as economic data and
forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary
authorities in the regions/countries where the Group operates.
The Group also takes reference from the forecasts by
international agencies and private sector analysts to formulate
an objective assessment, while taking into account domestic
and international economic and political developments, and
changes in local economic policies. Econometric methods
such as autoregressive and linear regression models are
applied as a tool to forecast the variables, like equity and
property prices movements, etc., in the regions/countries
concerned.

The baseline scenario represents the most-likely outcome that
the Group expects. The corresponding probability is reflecting
the confidence of the future uncertainties are being captured in
the baseline scenario forecast.

The other scenarios are an optimistic scenario and a
pessimistic scenario, to capture the less likely, yet possible,
upside and downside divergence from the baseline forecast.
These scenarios and their probabilities represent the Group’s
view that in case the future outcome is outside the expectation
as in the baseline scenario, how likely it would be optimistic
(i.e. unexpectedly good) or pessimistic (i.e. unexpectedly bad)
and how unexpectedly good or unexpectedly bad outcomes
will be, based on economic outlook, potential domestic and
international economic and political risks affecting the
regions/countries the Group has business presence, and the
strength of a region/country’s fundamentals to weather through
crises. Forecasts for these two scenarios are mainly derived
from the historical volatility of the data series, with a wider
divergence from the baseline over time.

The baseline, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios are updated
quarterly to timely reflect a change in the current economic
sentiment locally and internationally.

Baseline Scenario - Hong Kong

The Hong Kong economy continued to recover, driven by
economic reopening and pent-up demand. For the first three
quarters of 2023, Hong Kong's real GDP grew by 2.8% year-
on-year. Solid private consumption and a rebound in inbound
tourism have served as the primary growth engines for the
economic recovery. Meanwhile, global monetary tightening
and rising geopolitical risks have adversely affected
investment sentiment and external demand. The Government
also implemented measures to support the economy, such as
the disbursement consumption vouchers and launching a
series of mega events to encourage household spending and
attract tourists, while overall public spending has gradually
returned to the pre-pandemic trend after the huge Covid-
related budgets in 2021 and 2022.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)
(viii) Detalils of key areas in measurement of ECLs (continued) (vii) TTHEHEEEEL  ME R EEZ R
(4#)

Incorporating  forward-looking information into  the
measurement of ECLs (continued)

Looking ahead, the Hong Kong economy is set to leverage its
solid fundamentals against a challenging external
environment. On one hand, private consumption and inbound
tourism, two major supporting forces for the economy, are
expected to remain resilient to ensure a continued recovery. In
particular, ongoing progress in resuming cross-border and
international transportation capacity is likely to further boost
visitor arrivals to Hong Kong. Besides, the Government's
efforts to attract talent have begun to bear fruit. As of the end
of September, about 60,000 talents have already arrived Hong
Kong, nearly 1.6% of the labour force. The talent inflows would
help relieve the labour market'’s tightness, further boosting the
recovery momentum. On the external front, with global
monetary tightening remaining intact as interest rates are
poised to stay higher for longer, investment and merchandise
trade demand are likely to remain a drag on growth. It is worth
noting that the 2023 Policy Address announced a series of
measures to support the residential property market and rolled
out a comprehensive plan to develop Hong Kong'’s economic
strengths in the “eight centres” as outlined in the 14th
Five-Year Plan. On balance, the Hong Kong economy is
anticipated to continue a steady recovery ahead.

Baseline Scenario - Chinese Mainland

The Chinese Mainland economy has staged a steady recovery
in the post-pandemic period. For the first three quarters of
2023, gross domestic product growth reached 5.2% year-on-
year. Domestic consumption, particularly in the services
sector, took the lead in the recovery. Industrial production and
infrastructure investment expanded steadily. Moreover, the
policy easing measures by the Mainland authorities are gaining
momentum. The policy measures are not only limited to
conventional fiscal and monetary policy, such as reductions of
reserve requirement ratio and policy rates, and support to the
targeted sectors, but also include raising fiscal deficits, and
frontloading local government special bond issuances, etc. In
addition, the enhanced policy mix also covered demand-side
property easing and developers’ funding support as well as
measures to foster capital market developments, improve the
operating environment of private sector, and attract foreign
investment, etc.

Looking ahead, the Chinese Mainland economy will maintain
a more balanced and stable growth, with a continued focus on
high-quality development. In the near-term, there is still room
for stronger policy support to reinforce consumption and
investment, ensuring stability in growth, employment and
prices. In the medium-to-long term, dual-circulation strategy is
upheld as the top economic agenda. Domestic consumption
will be increasingly playing a pivotal role in the economy, with
continued measures to expand middle income consumers.
Innovation and technology will be further developed into a
major growth driver, with a focus in fostering strategic
emerging industries such as advanced manufacturing, next-
generation information technology, biological sciences, new
materials, new energy, artificial intelligence, etc.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZER&EEHE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (&)
(viii) Details of key areas in measurement of ECLs (continued) (viii) TTEHIGEEES ) BE P EEZENF
(&)
Incorporating _ forward-looking __information __into __the H 25 B M k) DR s B TE M (S £ 48 4
measurement of ECLs (continued) () - - —
Forecast of Key Macroeconomic Indicators (3 years average FEFE SR IEETEN (357 (2024 -
(2024 - 2026)) 2026) )
Scenario Macroeconomic Indicator Hong Kong Chinese Mainland
B BEBEER i B Pyt
Optimistic Real GDP (YoY growth) 6.4% 6.6%
SEBE R HEAMAEESE (EFEYE)
Property Price Index (Compounded 5.9% 3.2%

annual growth rate)

FHEMAS IR (BEFENESR)

Unemployment Rate 2.0% 4.9%
3-month Interest Rate 5.5% 4.5%
3{E H A
Baseline Real GDP (YoY growth) 3.3% 5.0%
TG R HEAMAEESE (EFEYE)
Property Price Index (Compounded 2.3% 1.8%

annual growth rate)

FHEMAS IR (BEFENER)

Unemployment Rate 2.8% 5.0%
3-month Interest Rate 4.5% 3.4%
3{E H A
Pessimistic Real GDP (YoY growth) 0.2% 3.3%
EBE R HEAMAEEGE (EFEYE)
Property Price Index (Compounded -1.7% 0.3%

annual growth rate)

FHEMAS IR (BEFENESR)

Unemployment Rate 3.8% 5.1%
3-month Interest Rate 2.5% 2.3%

3l A AR




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

()

Impairment allowances reconciliation

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to
the closing balance of the impairment allowance by type of
financial instrument. The reconciliation is prepared by
comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1%
January and 31%' December at transaction level. Transfers
between different stages of ECL are deemed to occur at the
beginning of the year and therefore amounts transferred net
to zero. The re-measurement of ECL resulting from a change
in ECL stage is reported under the ECL stage in which they
are transferred to.

Explanations of 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-
impaired are included in Note 2.

(@

EEREEH (4)
(ix) JR{E AR
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TN ARFI R < i R AU 3 B B A (A
HISR S R B R GEER IR - 4 BLEIIREY
JiE O E A L LH 2125 31H
EAR BB HEHIRN - THITIE BRI FRE B
Z RIS AR Ry IR A58 2 > i
R o INTHINE SRR B T 5 | 22
HYEE T ST TH G SRR G U H T Ay
FUHESEAPERIA T -

BRR 1218 A N Z FRIBE EHRK ~ B0
TINEERE R EES BAVERERITE2 -

2023
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL FHEER R EEF R
R2fEAANZ ELFINZ ELEINZ Total
THEME B Rk THIEEHRK THHME &L S
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEET BEEET BEEET B EET
Loans and advances
to customers B EERUEK
Balance at 1%t January  #1H1HMV& 8 1,089 1,026 4,641 6,756
Transfer to 12-month 128 H 92 T
ECL EEE% 117 (117) - -
HEIHEEARNE
Transfer to lifetime ECL YN Z TEIEE
not credit-impaired Ei=VS (24) 24 - -
HEEERRNEH
Transfer to lifetime ECL AN Z TEAE SR
credit-impaired * 37) (493) 530 -
New financial assets
originated or S B A 3 4
purchased, assets P .
derecognised, Tﬂfﬁ ’ %ﬁ’%ﬁ
repayments and RORTE KR
further lending HE—HEK 106 232 344 682
Write-offs fis ¥ - - (6,819) (6,819)
Changes in models ith )| (175) (34) - (209)
Net remeasurement of
impairment . . . e
allgwances (including M EEHIEHE
exchange /?%E (@Tﬁyl\@:éﬁ
adjustments) %) (172) 60 5,003 4,891
Balance at 31%
December 12 H 3L H A4 R 904 698 3,699 5,301
Of which: Hep e
For loans and
advances 1o, S
amortised cost JFERR  Fik
(Note 27(a)) (HfzF27(a) ) 900 691 3,536 5,127
For related accrued N N
interest receivable RAAH BRI E WS A1)
(Note 33) B (B/F233) 4 7 163 174
904 698 3,699 5,301
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FHEREEEEE (44)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)

(ix) Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued) (ix) JRiEAEFEIR ()

2022
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL FHEER R EEF B
R2fEAANZ BN Z EHHNZ Total
THEME B Rk THIEEERK THIEEHRK S
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EET B EET B EET B EET
Loans and advances
to customers B EERUEK
Balance at 1% January PLALHNE 670 528 3,231 4,429
Transfer to 12-month 2 12( H N Z A
ECL EEE% 155 (155) - -
HEIHEEARNE
Transfer to lifetime ECL YN Z TEIEE
not credit-impaired Ei=VS 27) 54 27) -
HEEERRNEH
Transfer to lifetime ECL SAANZ TS SR
credit-impaired * (24) (141) 165 -
New financial assets
originated or SEAR SR A W4
purchased, assets e "
derecognised, Tﬂfﬁ X ﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁ
repayments and SR R
further lending HE—EK 350 114 273 737
Write-offs fis ¥ - - (3,095) (3,095)
Net remeasurement of
impairment . . . e
allgwances (including ~ UEAERHTELRT A &
exchange /?%E (@Tﬁyl\@:éﬁ’j
adjustments) %) (35) 626 4,094 4,685
Balance at 31%
December 12 H 3LHAV4 R 1,089 1,026 4,641 6,756
Of which: Hep e
For loans and
advances 1o, S
amortised cost PR
(Note 27(a)) (HfzF27(a) ) 1,084 1,018 4,518 6,620
For related accrued N N
interest receivable RAAHBR E R A1
(Note 33) B (B/7233) 5 8 123 136
1,089 1,026 4,641 6,756

The total contractual amounts of loans and advances to
customers written off during the year ended 31%' December,
2023 and 2022 which are still subject to enforcement activity are

HK$5,513 million and HK$1,067 million respectively.

FERLE 20234 )2 2022412 F 31 H AR FEN E i
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)
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(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEEEE (8)
(ix) Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued) (ix) JRfEEFEIE (8)
2023
Lifetime ECL
not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL 3HEEAR RHVE EEREN
LR2EARZ KN EEHINZ Total
THIESIRE  THEHRES  HEREEEE “arg
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AEEET AEEET A EHET AEEET
Debt investment
securities BEREES
Balance at 1%t January ~ A1H1HAV4EER 283 141 248 672
Transfer to 12-month B 12l H N Z T
ECL EEE% 12 (12) - -
HEIHEERN RS
Transfer to lifetime ECL YN Z TEIEE
not credit-impaired Ei=VS %) 7 - -
HEEERNRNEY
Transfer to lifetime ECL BN THIE SR
credit-impaired * - (99) 99 -
New financial assets
originated or 5 & P
purchased, assets ’Eé?f% )\Zﬁ,ﬁ
derecognised, Tﬁfﬁ ‘ ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
repayments and 573‘!'%% : ?\%W\&
further investment & (16) (10) - (26)
Write-offs 6] - - - _
Net remeasurement of
impairment NP N
allowances (including ’W‘E‘@E%H@E%ﬁ%
exchange FPER (ELFESNE
adjustments) %) (154) (5) 395 236
Balance at 31t
December 12 H31HAY4HER 118 22 742 882
Of which: Hrp:
For debt investment b e AN e [
securities measured E‘JF&E%E{ZEEJT?
at amortised cost HIEBS R R
(Note 28) (Hfz#28) 19 8 645 672
For related accrued " N
interest receivable SRR FE S F]
(Note 33) B (B/F33) - - 45 45
19 8 690 717
R ibi R Rl T}
For debt investment Lzﬁfy\g@%/j:qi
securities measured 15\@5*%9"315\&
at FVOCI EE R 98 14 48 160
For related accrued FhAH A BT 7]
interest receivable B 1 - 4 5
99 14 52 165
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEEREH (E)

TREZEGT IR (45)

(ix) Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued) (ix)

2022
Lifetime ECL
not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL JEEERRD EERREH
LR2EARZ EBRHINZ ERIHINZ Total
THEA(E SR THIA(E SR THIH(E A% “arg
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHET BEEHET AEEHET BEEET
Debt investment
securities BEREES
Balance at 1%t January ~ A1H1HAV4EER 284 47 - 331
Transfer to 12-month 1208 H N 2 T
ECL EEEL - - - -
HEIHEERNRNE
Transfer to lifetime ECL YHIRZ FHAE &
not credit-impaired Ei=VS (11) 11 - -
HEEERNRNEY
Transfer to lifetime ECL WMz TEHIESER
credit-impaired * (5) (13) 18 -
New financial assets
originated or SR A 7 e
purchased, assets o L
derecognised, EA\%“ ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
repayments and P~ R
further investment & 25 21 - 46
Write-offs 6] - - - -
Net remeasurement of . . | e
impairment allowances /% E- = (Y EHTE iE
(including exchange FE (BRI
adjustments) %) (10) 75 230 295
Balance at 31t
December 12 H31HAY4HER 283 141 248 672
Of which: Hrp:
For debt investment b gy g
securities measured BB AT
at amortised cost HI RS R
(Note 28) (Hfz28) 66 98 241 405
For related accrued N N
interest receivable RAAHRR E WS A1)
(Note 33) B (B/E233) 1 2 7 10
67 100 248 415
SOEE A &
For debt investment WE?W%W
securities measured HEETRAVER
at FVOCI EE I 214 41 - 255
For related accrued AR B FE LR 1A
interest receivable B 2 - - 2
216 41 - 257

The impairment allowances of debt investment securities
measured at FVOCI are not separately recognised in the
statement of financial position because they have been
adjusted to the carrying amounts of debt investment securities

measured at FVOCI as their fair values.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

()

Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued)

Others
Balance at 15t January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired
Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

New financial assets
originated or purchased,

assets derecognised and

repayments

Write-offs

Net remeasurement of
impairment allowances
(including exchange
adjustments)

Balance at 315t December

Of which:

For trade bills measured at

FVOCI
For related accrued
interest receivable

For trade bills measured at
amortised cost (Note 25)

For related accrued
interest receivable

For placements with and

advances to banks (Note

24)
For related accrued
interest receivable

For cash and balances
with banks (Note 23)
For related accrued
interest receivable

For loan commitments and

financial guarantee
contracts (Note 37)

For account receivables

and other accounts other

than accrued interest
receivable (Note 33)

oA

PLHLH V%S R

i 121 H A TR
fFEEL
HREIFEET RIEGY
I TEIIE BHEk
HEEER RVEE
I TEIIE BHEk

TR B A L R
HE - oAt ARE R

=Rk
i

TEREH N E TR
JRER (BRSNS )
P12 331 HA4EER

o -
BB 21
Wi AR S
SHREVE SES

LA R USRI S

iSSP
EE (f25)

R R FEUS RIS

BEAESRITHIFRR,
B (Jf724)

LA R USRI S

FEHL B RAESRATHY
&t (H7F23)

LA EH FEUS T IS

FRERRIERIT
EOREY (J237)

RRIEHR R R oAt
HRIA (sl SR
) (H733)

(@

EEREEH (4)
()

TREZEGT IR (45)
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2023
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL JHEERRAY EERRDN
2 ANz EHHINZ EHHINZ Total
THIAE E8% THIAE E48% THIAE E4E% HEEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
A EET A EET A EET B EET
133 23 238 394
12 (12) - -
(1) 1 - -
(18) 2 (11) 27
- - (2 (2
4 8 122 126
122 22 347 491
2 - - 2
2 - - 2
1 - - 1
1 - - 1
112 22 281 415
7 - 66 73




(a) Credit risk management (continued)

Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued)

Others
Balance at 15t January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

New financial assets
originated or purchased,

assets derecognised and

repayments

Write-offs

Net remeasurement of
impairment allowances
(including exchange
adjustments)

Balance at 315t December

Of which:

For trade bills measured
at FVOCI

For related accrued
interest receivable

For trade bills measured

at amortised cost (Note

25)
For related accrued
interest receivable

For placements with and
advances to banks
(Note 24)

For related accrued
interest receivable

For cash and balances
with banks (Note 23)

For related accrued
interest receivable

For loan commitments and

financial guarantee
contracts (Note 37)

For account receivables
and other accounts
other than accrued
interest receivable
(Note 33)

HoAh
PLHLH V%S R
I 121 H N TR
fFEEL
HEIHEER RIVELIH
N2 TEEEE%
HEEER RVEE
I TEIIE BHEk

TR S A L R
B - FoHTELAE
e

TR E T B R
(HFESNERT)
P12 331 HA4EER

o -
BB 21
Wi AR S
SHRIVE SEE

LA R FEUS T IS

BB A ST Y
BOZE (fit25)

LA R FEUS RIS

ESRITHIEROR
2K (H24)

LA EH FEUS T IS

REHLB RAESRATHY
&t (H7F23)

LA R USRI S

BEERORIEF B
REdy (H737)

RIS R HoA R
T (et FLUE R
) (H733)

43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERER (44)
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(a) EERERER (¥)
(ix) JEfEAEHE AR ()
2022
Lifetime ECL
not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired credit-impaired
12-month ECL JHEER RAY EERRN
L2fEAANZ EHNZ BN Total
THIAE E48% THIAE E48% THIAE E48% HEEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
A EET A EET B EET B EET
143 24 85 252
2 (2 - -
(1) (7 8 -
11 3) 68 76
(22) 11 77 66
133 23 238 394
1 - - 1
1 - - 1
2 - - 2
2 - - 2
121 23 174 318
9 - 64 73

The impairment allowances of trade bills measured at FVOCI are
not recognised in the statement of financial position because the
carrying amount of trade bills measured at FVOCI is their fair

value.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERER (44)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

®)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability of
various classes of collateral and determined the corresponding
valuation parameters. The guidelines and collateral valuation
parameters are subject to regular reviews to ensure their
effectiveness over credit risk management.

The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s loans and
advances to customer depends on the type of customers and the
product offered. Types of collateral include residential properties
(in the form of mortgages over property), other properties, aircraft,
other registered securities over assets, cash deposits, standby
letters of credit and guarantees. Collateral generally is not held
over balances and placements with banks, and loans and
advances to banks, except when securities are held as part of sale
and repurchase and securities borrowing activity. The Group
takes possession of collateral through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers during the
course of the recovery of impaired loans and advances. These
repossessed assets are reported in the statement of financial
position within “other assets” (Note 2(t)). If the recovery from the
repossessed assets exceeds the corresponding gross exposure,
the surplus fund is made available either to repay the borrower’s
other secured loans with lower priority or is returned to the
borrower.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and
advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt
securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured
with the exception of asset-based securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets.
However the credit risk may be implicit in the terms or reflected in
the fair value of the corresponding instruments.

The Group's preferred agreement for documenting derivatives
activity is the ISDA Master Agreement which covers the
contractual framework within which dealing activity across a full
range of over-the-counter products is conducted and contractually
binds both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding
transactions covered by an agreement, if either party defaults or
following other pre-agreed termination events. It is also common
for the Group to execute a Credit Support Annex in conjunction
with the ISDA Master Agreement with the counterparty under
which collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
market contingent counterparty risk inherent in the outstanding
position.

For contingent liabilities and commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable (Note 45), the Group will assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line when there is a concern over the credit
quality of the customers. Accordingly, the exposure to significant
credit risk is considered as minimal. For commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable, the Group assesses the necessity of
collateral depending on the type of customer and the product
offered.

(@
®)
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(b) iR EH

(b) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from adverse movements in market
rates and prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices, debt security prices and commodity prices, which
result in potential losses for the Group. The aim in managing market
risk is to reduce the Group's exposure to the volatility inherent in
market factors.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee deals with all
market risk-related issues of the Group. It is also responsible for
conducting a regular review of interest rate trends and deciding the
corresponding future business strategy. Market risk is managed
daily by the Treasury Markets Division of the Group within the limits
approved by the Board or the Asset and Liability Management
Committee. The Market & Liquidity Risk Management Department
under the Risk Management Division of the Group is responsible
for monitoring activities relating to market risk. The Internal Audit
Division performs periodic reviews to ensure that the market risk
management functions are performed effectively.

The use of derivatives for trading and the sale of derivatives to
customers as risk management products are integral parts of the
Group’s business activities. These instruments are also used to
manage the Group’s own exposures to market risk, as part of its
asset and liability management process. The principal derivative
instruments used by the Group are interest rate, foreign exchange,
and equity-related contracts, in the form of both over-the-counter
derivatives and exchange-traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s
derivatives positions have been entered into to meet customer
demand and to manage the risk of these and other trading
positions.

In this connection, the key types of market risk that must be
managed are:

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing (including derivatives), commercial banking
operations, and structural foreign currency exposures. The
Group’s non-structural foreign currency exposures are
denominated in major currencies, particularly USD and RMB.
All foreign currency positions are managed within limits
approved by the Board and the Asset and Liability
Management Committee.

Structural foreign currency positions, which arise mainly from
foreign currency investments in the Group’s branches,
subsidiaries, and associated companies, are excluded from
value-at-risk measurements, as related gains or losses are
taken to reserves. Such foreign currency positions are held
with the intention of hedging any adverse effect, partially or
totally, of exchange rate movements on the capital adequacy
ratio. The Group seeks to match its foreign currency
denominated assets closely with corresponding liabilities in
the same currencies.

The Group had the following net structural positions which
were not less than 10% of the total net structural foreign
currency position at the end of the reporting period:

M5 E R RN TS ERE - PI0FER ~ R - B
SEERE ~ (ETSEEIF (EA8 S s dn (E AR B A F Bl
LYAEEAERE NHRERNER - TSR RE
B E /D T 85 R 2R Y O Bl Ry A R I R AR A JE
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EEAGMREEE S AT RETA AL TS
JRB AT TR 9 I - R R B S A R AR B R
TEAH FEHY AR A FE S e - G m b R E & &
mEREEEGNEEABEEZ S FHUANR
wHHEETHEEE - REEEREEEE T
T35 ROt B e i B 2 R B AR L T S

ABAEYES) - FERZE & HEITEMEL - DIHERT
S\ B RE SRR BT -

ERTETHETEER S RAEFEFHENTAET
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R
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BIERTEEGNEE AREEZR G
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GEMESNER B EEIRA N EEE ST I
J& o EIRI B SR SNE I & - AR
HMIsREFHR N By EEE AR - FTEURET AR R
BRMEP - EAERIEINE R A EZHAY
e A ME R B I A R B A AT e bE R
EELT s A MR - AREEIR
DA EREEBE DA —EBtEN A
{5 PREFAEAE AR

PEREME R H - REEN LT SRR &
TR RGN F R 488 10% ¢

2023 2022
RMB MYR usb RMB MYR usb
NG B ESH NG pictid %ETT
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHET AW EET BEHERT  BNEHERT BNEHET AYEET
Net structural
position MR R 15,297 2,269 (9,111) 15,727 2,335 (9,098)
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) mGERBERE (4)

(i) Interest rate risk in trading book

The Group's trading interest rate positions arise from treasury
and dynamic hedging of retail and commercial banking
activities. Interest rate risk is managed daily by the Treasury
Markets Division of the Group within the limits approved by the
Board or the Asset and Liability Management Committee. The
instruments used to manage interest rate risk include interest
rate swaps and other derivatives. For the interest rate risk
management of the Group’s banking book positions, please
refer to Note 43(e).

(i) Equity risk

The Group’s equity positions arise from equity investment and
dynamic hedging of customer-driven business. Equity risk is
managed daily by the Investment Department within the limits
approved by the Board, Investment Committee, or the Asset
and Liability Management Committee.

Market risk control limits have been set at varying levels according
to the practical requirements of different units. The Board approves
the core control limits and has delegated the authority to set detailed
control limits to the Asset and Liability Management Committee.
Risk, return, and market conditions are considered when setting
limits. Active limit monitoring is carried out.

In this connection, the Asset and Liability Management Committee
monitors the related market risk arising from the risk-taking activities
of the Group to ensure that market risk exposures are within the
Group’s risk tolerance levels. Risk exposures are monitored
frequently to ensure that they are within established control limits.

The Group quantifies the market risk of the underlying trading
portfolio by means of value-at-risk (“VaR”). VaR is a statistical
estimate that measures the potential losses in market value of a
portfolio as a result of unfavourable movements in market rates and
prices, assuming that positions are held unchanged over a certain
horizon time period.

The Group estimates VaR for the Group’s trading portfolio by the
historical simulation approach, where the VaR is calculated by
revaluing the portfolio for each of the market movement scenarios
obtained from the historical observation period. This methodology
uses movements in market rates and prices over a one-day holding
period with a 99% confidence level under a two-year observation
period.

The market value of listed shares, the fair value of private equity
funds and unlisted equities (collectively the “Unlisted Securities”),
are subject to limits and these are managed by the Investment
Department of the Group. The Unlisted Securities are not included
in the VaR for the equity trading position, and are managed through
delegated limits. The limits are subject to regular review by the Asset
and Liability Management Committee.

(i) AR EIFIR
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= HSEIfEE43() -

(i) Hd e

FREE B R O3 HF B2k FL R 4 B 5
B RRET o BRI e E R
REZEGNAEAREEE S FRHAENR
HHEREE T H R

T35 g P2 PR A (R J@ R DA & S 3R Y
HIETE - ERGFEML BRI EEES
HEEZ B G FAERIZERIIRE - e R &
BREE ~ [ I N o H R A
PREFEERL Y -

TELETTH - BFEAMEEE B G AR R A EEE
T\ B P e AL I AHRR T 5 s > PR T4
e 7> A ) J B 2 R P - AR AL
SRR ARMEE DL - DARECR AT S R 8 i L ERY
PEHIIREENA -

A S P J B (2R AR A RE 20 2 4 & B T 35
W o G EE S TR ERIAEET > FIARE R R A
—FER N SRR BT - Al EERR(E
FRETAF B 5 | B Ay (BB RS 1R -

PR B ARG AR R S A A R
18 > FH{EE iR 22 A P R B E T 5 B =
AR AEITERSEL T ERRE - %75
RIBLHEFEH « 99%E (57K DU R B W AF i 22
HARHER T 5 AR B EAR AR B -

TR EIE - AR E R IR RSy (85
IR RS, ) AP EESRAREEREL
HREEH - JE EHRR R IR R EIRAEEE > B
NEEEL SRR B ERESEAN - BEAR
EHZ B BE IR IR -



43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FEFRMEE (4)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Value-at-risk statistics

(b)

bR e ()

Page 132

R\ E&ET
2023
At 31%
December Maximum Minimum Mean
#12H31H i & |
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EHETT B EHETT B EHETT B EHETT
VaR for total trading A oyEE i E b (E
activities ] 7 13 7 9
VaR for foreign L )
exchange trading SNER G AR
positions* N 2 7 1 3
VaR for interest rate FIES Sy
trading positions N 1 3 - 2
VaR for equity trading B 5 G R
positions [N 5 6 4 5
2022
At 31%
December Maximum Minimum Mean
#12H31H = & |
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
T E T TN E T TR E T TR E T
VaR for total trading A oyEE i E b (E
activities ] 11 33 11 19
VaR for foreign o )
exchange trading SNER G AR
positions* N 6 12 5 8
VaR for interest rate FIES Sy
trading positions [N - 5 - 1
VaR for equity trading B 5 G R
positions [N 5 20 5 11

* Including all foreign exchange positions but excluding structural

foreign exchange positions.

¥ EIEATESNEIF B AT i (MBS B -

2023
At 31t
December Maximum Minimum Mean
®12H31H 4] & 1
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHETT BEEHETT BEEHETT BEEHETT
Stressed VaR for total A Gy EBNH 32 R
trading activities F B 4% 16 29 15 22
2022
At 31t
December Maximum Minimum Mean
®12H31H = & 1
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHETT BEEHETT BEEHETT BEEHETT
Stressed VaR for total 2 Gy E BN 32 R
trading activities F B 4% 27 59 24 41

A stressed VaR measure is intended to replicate a VaR calculation
that would be generated on current trading portfolio if the relevant

market factors were experiencing a period of stress.

7 JBR T i AL TS B T S I R A S BRI T
BREGET R AT R S G EAE R E -



43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(©

(d)

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people, systems or from external events.

The objectives of operational risk management are to identify,
measure, assess and monitor the operational risk exposures
associated to the Group; to control and mitigate the exposures by
taking effective measures; to report in a structured, systematic and
consistent manner; and to comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Operational Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the effectiveness of operational risk management of the
Group while the Operational Risk Management Department under
the Risk Management Division of the Group assists the
Management in managing the Group’s operational risk, including
the establishment and review of the operational risk management,
third party risk management and operational resilience policies and
framework; designing the operational risk management tools and
reporting mechanism; assessing, monitoring and reporting the
overall operational risk position to the Management and Risk
Management Committee. All the heads of business units and
support units of the Group are responsible for the day-to-day
operational risk management of their units.

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process
which requires the establishment of policies and control procedures
for all the key activities. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools such as key risk indicators, risk and control self-
assessments, operational risk incident management to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities
and products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate
unforeseeable and significant operational risk incidents. Business
continuity plans are established to support business operations in
the event of an emergency or disaster.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its
obligations as they come due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding (funding liquidity risk); or that the Group cannot
easily liquidate assets quickly without significantly lowering market
prices because of inadequate market depth or market disruptions
(market liquidity risk).

The purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure sufficient
cash flows to meet all financial commitments and to capitalise on
opportunities for business expansion. This includes the Group’s
ability to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand or at
contractual maturity, to repay borrowings as they mature, to make
new loans and investments as opportunities arise and, last but not
least, to comply with all the statutory requirements for liquidity risk
management, including Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR”") and Net
Stable Funding Ratio (“NSFR”).

(©

(d)

Page 133

e E

B R A R EORE ~ N BRI RS e
R o BRSNS S B R SR H e -

o o R A H AR R~ i~ BT
PEBLUARSE A B R B R b SREUA SO it DA
T R R R AR ¢ DURAHE - R Y
JiF B ¢ PUS B ST AHRR B HUE YK -

BEEREEZE G REERENEERRE
AR - T A SR b B R R A B R
e B B W B B A Y R
W o ELFEHIE M E AR b - 5 = AR
BT R EF IR M BCRAE S et B R AR Y
BT AR - 5 - SRR A EEER
Je b B R 72 By DR R A A B E eI - AR
FrA I sk B B £ B A H LAY H % &
b

AEERIL THBINEZERIER  BHFTAER
TEBIET T BUR e B PRI o AN 52 bR I R o L
R~ R BB E HEr il - B R BT
Bt A [ e A R B T R T R DL
B~ B~ BREE RERIVEAE T SRR A B R A A
HYRES - FIRE AR R - FRERANVER
BB R o B SR BT KB AR R Y SRS
H{EEA R EE P R -

R e

SRR AR REEG TR ERRA
o] RE S A AT R A AR (BRErE
W) ¢ AW IEREA KA 0 AEEIE
TR e T S5 AR Y B 0L A8 2 U S 8
AE R (HsmaiempE) -

Bl B B Ry 1 PR AN SR B e TR e YR
R BT A M RYE - M 2R B IRRE
HE o B RS AL E R AR B 4T
IR R FERKER - FE A FOYTRR RE S RN > &
BEERHEENEE - DLRFEAARREM
JE\B B B A EMUE - IR A A LR AR
TE B FEAEL o



Page 134

43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) REMEEREER (4

(d)

The Group reviews the risk profile through regular assessments of
both qualitative and quantitative risk factors to determine its
tolerance of prevailing risk levels against applicable risk appetite
statement for liquidity risk approved annually by the Board. The
Asset and Liability Management Committee is delegated by the
Board to oversee the Group’s liquidity risk management. The Asset
and Liability Management Committee comprises balanced
representation of senior staff from various business units, Treasury,
Risk Management and Finance, who jointly formulate funding
strategies. The Asset and Liability Management Committee sets
the strategy, policy, and limits for managing liquidity risk and the
means for ensuring that such strategy and policy are implemented.
Regular meetings are held to review the compliance status of the
monitoring matrix established and the need for any change in
strategy and policy. Liquidity is managed daily by the Capital
Markets & Liquidity Management Department under the Treasury
Markets Division of the Group within the set limits. The Market &
Liquidity Risk Management Department under the Risk
Management Division of the Group is responsible for monitoring the
activities relating to liquidity risk. The Internal Audit Division
performs periodic reviews to ensure that the liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

The LCR and NSFR statutory requirements are part of the stringent
regulatory regime that covers the liquidity risk management of the
Group. To ensure compliance with the regulatory requirements,
internal targets for LCR and NSFR have been set above regulatory
required levels, after considering the Group's liquidity risk appetite.
In addition, material changes in the LCR and NSFR are reviewed
regularly by the Asset and Liabilty Management Committee
together with proposed mitigation actions to cope with adverse
changes arising from, but not limited to, composition of the deposit
base and remaining tenor to maturity, lending activities with respect
to different maturity tenors, and the Group’s asset and liability mix
strategy. In planning the asset and liability mix strategy, the Group'’s
relevant business units contribute to an assessment of the impact
of asset growth and funding structure on the LCR and NSFR for
review and decision by the Asset and Liability Management
Committee.

As part of Group efforts to manage the LCR and NSFR effectively,
emphasis is placed on strengthening the deposit base by retaining
loyal customers and maintaining customer relationships. The
Group balances funding among retail, small business, and
wholesale funding to avoid concentration in any one source.
Professional markets are accessed through the issuance of
certificates of deposit, medium-term notes, subordinated debt,
money market placement, and other borrowings for the purposes of
providing additional funding, maintaining a presence in local money
markets, and optimising asset and liability maturities.

The Group manages liquidity risk of the branches in Macau, Taiwan
and overseas and significant subsidiary in a holistic approach. The
liquidity risk management policies of the Group are abided by all of
the branches in Macau, Taiwan and overseas and significant
subsidiary, while supplementing their respective local practices and
statutory requirements. Reporting to the Group Chief Risk Officer,
the Risk Management Unit of each of the branches in Macau,
Taiwan and overseas and significant subsidiary reports and
escalates liquidity risk related matter to the liquidity risk
management team at Head Office. The respective local Asset and
Liability Management Committee or respective local authorities are
also established for overseeing liquidity risk in accordance with the
local regulatory requirements and limits approved.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) MR REER (8

(d)

In addition to observing the statutory LCR and NSFR, the Group
has established different liquidity metrics — including but not limited
to the loan-to-deposit ratio, cumulative maturity mismatch ratio,
funding concentration ratio, intra-group exposure threshold, and
cross currency funding ratio — to measure and analyse the Group’s
liquidity risk. The Group maintains sufficient High-quality liquid
assets (“HQLASs") as a liquidity cushion that can be accessed in
times of stress. The HQLAs for fulfilling the LCR consist of cash,
exchange fund bills and notes, high quality government debt
securities and other equivalent liquid marketable assets. The
majority of HQLAs are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Contingent funding sources are maintained to provide strategic
liquidity to meet unexpected and material cash outflows.

Internally, intra-group funding transactions are carried out at arm’s
length and treated in a manner in line with third-party transactions,
with regular monitoring and appropriate control. A majority of the
Group’s liquidity risk arises from the maturity mismatch gap
between the Group's asset and liability portfolios. The Group
manages liquidity risk by conducting regular cash flow analysis and
projections through the use of the Bank’s management information
system so as to facilitate the identification of funding needs arising
from on and off-balance sheet items over a set of time horizons.

The Group also conducts stress-testing regularly to analyse
liquidity risk. Both on and off-balance sheet items and their impact
on cash flow are considered, together with applicable hypothetical
and historical assumptions. The assessment and review of market
liquidity risk are included in the various control processes, including
investment/trading strategy, market risk monitoring, valuation, and
portfolio review. Three stress scenarios — namely an institution-
specific crisis, a general market crisis, and a crisis involving a
combination of the two — are adopted with minimum survival period
defined according to the HKMA's Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2,
“Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”.

With reference to the stress-testing results, the Group identifies
potential vulnerabilities within the Group, establishes internal limits
and formulates a contingency funding plan that sets out the Group’s
strategy for dealing with any liquidity problem and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits in emergency situations.

The contingency funding plan is designed to be pro-active and pre-
emptive, and stipulates the following three stages:

1. The Group utilises early warning indicators, which cover both
qualitative and quantitative measures, and monitors both internal
and external factors. Should there be any early signs of
significant impact on the Group’s liquidity position, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee is informed. The Asset and
Liability Management Committee will consider appropriate
remedial actions and will consider employing crisis management
if the situation warrants.

2. A Crisis Management Committee, which is chaired by the Co-
Chief Executives, is formed to handle the crisis. Strategy and
procedures for obtaining contingency funding, as well as roles
and responsibilities of the parties concerned, are clearly stated.

3. Inthefinal stage, a post-crisis review is carried out to recommend
necessary improvements to avoid incidents of a similar nature in
the future.

An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency funding plan
is subject to regular review in order to accommodate any changes
in the business environment. Any significant changes to the
contingency funding plan are approved by the Board.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(d)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity:

Assets BE

Cash and
balances with  HRERAESRITHY
banks &7

Placements with
and advances to TESRTTHITFRK B
banks K
Trade bills 5
Trading assets X5 IR E
Derivative assets {74 TE&E

Loans and

advances to

customers B ERCEK
Investment

securities ey viea

Investments in

associates and FFEAFREE

joint ventures esita
Fixed assets [ E B
Goodwill and

intangible assetsi % K it A E
Deferred tax

assets IRAER T
Other assets Hoftlr i
Total assets AR

Liabilities j=Ci=4
Deposits and . .
balances of STV R 4

banks i3
Deposits from
customers B FEIER
- Demand
deposits and
current - /ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ?}(&
accounts AR =
- Savings
deposits - FEETEK
- Time, call and
notice - EHARGE A
deposits K
Derivative
liabilities TTETHAMR

Certificates of

deposit issued I TIFRGEE
Current taxation ~ AFFIEH
Debt securities

issued LTS
Deferred tax
liabilities IRIER AR

Other liabilities ~ EAth & i
- Lease liabilites - FHEA(E
- Other accounts - HAHMEIH
Loan capital EEEAR
Total liabilites ~ & fH44%H
Net gap AR

(d) nEptrmbREE ()
B E R A AEIRIERSTHIR 0 A
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2023
3 months 1 year or 5 years
or less less but or less

but over over 3 but over Undated

Repayable Within 1 1 month months 1year Over or overdue
on demand month YEH ML 3(EHLE LELLE Syears  fEAIHIA Total
SIS =24 UEHE 23(EHH 21 254 SHELLE gl Hag
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AlEETT  BEEED T BWEEDT  BIEES T BNEEIT BEEsD T BEsb T BNHET
37,014 12 20 121 - - 8,736 45,903
- 40,883 2,687 121 - - - 43,691
94 62 133 84 - - - 373
- - 66 1,925 773 - 285 3,049
- - - - - - 9,056 9,056
2,460 64,389 47,667 118,973 170,070 115,063 8,362 526,984
- 10,854 18,513 21,090 60,567 54,242 2,004 167,270
- - - - - - 8,384 8,384
- - - - - - 13,493 13,493
- - - - - - 1,852 1,852
- - - - - - 1,836 1,836
23 6,748 12,635 10,463 575 571 7,455 38,470
39,591 122,948 81,721 152,777 231,985 169,876 61,463 860,361
633 9,318 8,777 6,891 - - - 25,619
185,225 125,787 188,736 113,622 15,228 - - 628,598
65,643 - - - - - - 65,643
118,163 - - - - - - 118,163
1,419 125,787 188,736 113,622 15,228 - - 444,792
- - - - - - 4,007 4,007
- 2,783 5,296 8,851 10,688 - - 27,618
- - - 1,602 - - - 1,602
- - 155 306 383 - - 844
- - - - - - 468 468
1,005 7,392 13,936 11,373 1,445 1,317 10,844 47,312
- 27 43 167 389 226 - 852
1,005 7,365 13,893 11,206 1,056 1,091 10,844 46,460
- - - 1,649 14,318 - - 15,967
186,863 145,280 216,900 144,294 42,062 1,317 15,319 752,035

(147,272) (22,332) (135,179) 8,483 189,923 168,559




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(d)

Assets

Cash and
balances with
banks

Placements with

KiE
B RAEIRTIY
e

and advances to TESATHIFERUR

banks £
Trade bills R
Trading assets X5 IR E
Derivative assets {74 TE&E
Loans and

advances to

customers B SRR
Investment

securities ey viea
Investments in

associates and FFEAFREE

joint ventures fesita
Fixed assets & E B

Goodwill and

intangible assets % KA E

Deferred tax
assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits and
balances of
banks
Deposits from
customers
- Demand
deposits and
current
accounts
- Savings
deposits
- Time, call and
notice
deposits
Trading liabilities
Derivative
liabilities
Certificates of
deposit issued
Current taxation
Debt securities
issued
Deferred tax
liabilities
Other liabilities

IRIEBH A
At A
AL
aff

SRATHITFRR R 45
B

B

- TEHIERR
EAGRF

CETHEES

IRFEBIH AT
HAt & 5

- Lease liabilites - FHEA(E

- Other accounts

Loan capital
Total liabilities
Net gap

- HAhIRIE
EEEA
AR
b il

Liquidity risk management (continued)
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(o) ‘REMERERER (8)
2022
3 months 1 year or 5 years
or less less but or less

but over over 3 but over Undated

Repayable Within 1 1 month months 1year Over or overdue
on demand month YEH ML 3(EHLE LELLE Syears  fEAHHIA Total
SIS =Y UEHN #3{HH B1F 54 SHELLE gl k|
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
ElEETT  BEEED T BEEED T BEET T BIEES T BEEEDT BEETT ST
44,156 - - 96 - - 10,327 54,579
- 52,337 7,866 - - - - 60,203
1 147 148 233 - - - 529
1,176 99 - - - 255 1,530
- - - - - - 11,092 11,092
2,594 53,685 38,832 116,096 202,555 121,575 7,057 542,394
- 10,446 10,510 19,043 64,709 40,618 1,681 147,007
- - - - - - 9,061 9,061
- - - - - - 13,476 13,476
- - - - - - 1,870 1,870
- - - - - - 1,849 1,849
27 4,845 7,463 18,286 505 437 7,672 39,235
46,778 122,636 64,918 153,754 267,769 162,630 64,340 882,825
2,263 8,074 9,255 5,886 - - - 25,478
212,727 106,604 160,879 151,421 16,462 - - 648,093
65,899 - - - - - - 65,899
145,107 - - - - - - 145,107
1,721 106,604 160,879 151,421 16,462 - - 437,087
- - - - - - 5 5
- - - - - - 4,145 4,145
- 3,559 12,971 12,244 3,888 - - 32,662
- - - 1,252 - - - 1,252
- - 1,404 672 816 - - 2,892
- - - - - - 226 226
779 5,027 8,261 19,697 1,124 1,541 13,370 49,799
1 24 40 155 347 207 - 774
778 5,003 8,221 19,542 777 1,334 13,370 49,025
- - - - 11,927 - - 11,927
215,769 123,264 192,770 191,172 34,217 1,541 17,746 776,479

(168,991) (628) (127,852) (37,418) 233,552 161,089

As the trading assets and debt instruments measured at FVOCI may
be sold before maturity or deposits from customers may mature
without being withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not
represent expected dates of future cash flows.

EH A5 5 FH AR T e 0 s A e A2 2 A R Bl
DPEER R Z FES TR AT RE R AT & 5
FA7RC] BEAE BT R $f2 A > S &Y H IR
RFEARAIEEIRAVTHET HI -




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The following tables provide an analysis of the undiscounted cashflow
projection of the non-derivative financial liabilities of the Group at the
end of the reporting period based on the dates of their contractual

payment obligations:

Deposits and
balances of
banks

Deposits from
customers
- Demand

deposits and

current

accounts
- Savings

deposits

- Time, call and

notice
deposits
Certificates of

HUTHIFR R
bR

%P
- SEHEA

FAEARR
=

- BB

- EHRGE
HIFFK

deposit issued L1 THEGE
Current taxation ZA<FEFRIH

Debt securities
issued

Loan capital
Other liabilities
- Lease
liabilities
- Other
accounts

Total

STl
%
e
St

- B
- FAH

ki

(d) uEptrmbREE ()
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TNERREIR I S R H SRR TI 2 JET
4 T HBRE BN TE RS R S ER

Z HERS 3
2023
Between
three
Less than months Between
Gross cash three and one one and
Carrying outflow  Repayable months year five years  More than

amount et ondemand fEHeEe 3(EAME ERLE five years Undated
HRIAIE (k| BT 2K U FEUF B SELLE ek e H
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEETT AYEET ANEET BWMHET BYEET BYEE T BNMESET A E T

25,619 26,283 633 18,341 7,309 - - -

628,598 637,171 185,665 319,344 116,501 15,661 - -

65,643 65,737 65,737 - - - - -

118,163 118,335 118,335 - - - - -

444,792 453,099 1,593 319,344 116,501 15,661 - -

27,618 29,053 - 8,248 9,119 11,686 - -

1,602 1,602 - - 1,602 - - -

844 870 - 164 316 390 - -

15,967 18,056 - 182 2,290 15,584 - -

47,312 42,157 587 20,016 9,369 472 869 10,844

852 962 - 78 187 448 249 -

46,460 41,195 587 19,938 9,182 24 620 10,844

747,560 755,192 186,885 366,295 146,506 43,793 869 10,844
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREEEE (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) (d) JREhEEEEE (48)
2022
Between
three
Less than months Between
Gross cash three and one one and
Carrying outflow  Repayable months year five years  More than
Amount et ondemand fEHE:  3EHALE VERLE  five years Undated
HRIAIE | BT 2K U F1FE i SHELLE et e H
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

EEEETT ANEET BEEETT BYEs T BEEET  BRYEST  BEEET BEEET
Deposits and - .
balances of SRATHIERL

banks e 25,478 26,017 2,263 17,510 6,244 - - -
Deposits from
customers BEHER 648,093 655,121 212,946 270,268 155,184 16,723 - -
- Demand . -
deposits and -~ ;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
current SEETN
accounts IR= 65,899 65,978 65,978 - - - - -
- Savings .
deposits - EEK| 145,107 145,174 145,174 - - - - -
-Time, calland -
notice - EH R
deposits HIFERK 437,087 443,969 1,794 270,268 155,184 16,723 - -
Trading liabilities %5 f R & fH 5 5 - - - - - 5
Certificates of ~ T {T{FK
deposit issued 8 32,662 33,270 - 16,727 12,559 3,984 - -
Current taxation ZA<FEFRIH 1,252 1,252 - - 1,252 - - -
Debt securities T TS
issued o 2,892 2,946 - 1,435 690 821 - -
Loan capital HEER 11,927 13,918 - 50 511 13,357 - -
Other liabilities  HAt & 49,799 45,742 540 11,265 18,119 982 1,466 13,370
- Lease
liabilities - HHE A 774 872 1 69 171 398 233 -
- Other o
accounts - HAHRIE 49,025 44,870 539 11,196 17,948 584 1,233 13,370

Total “EE 772,108 778,271 215,749 317,255 194,559 35,867 1,466 13,375




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(d) mBptEREREH (8

Page 140

The following tables summarise the undiscounted cashflows of
the Group by remaining contractual maturity as at 315 December
for derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on net and
gross basis. The Group's derivative financial liabilities that will be
settled on a net basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas
the derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a gross
basis mainly include foreign exchange forwards and futures and
foreign exchange swaps.

T T A S E Y12 A 31 H e S EI H AR
BT AR RS R R T A R A
PrAESMAR - AEEEFEAEER T SMT
HE TSR] > i R R T R
T B SRS NIE S S SN B -

2023
Between
three
Less than months Between
Total cash three and one one and
Carrying outflow Repayable months year five years More than
amount &t on demand SfEHs  3MEAL L VFELE  five years Undated
ST dEgE HMERERK ISy FEUF Lt SERLE MEEEBHEE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT BNES T BNEE T BHET ANEET BYEET BEEET BEEET
Derivative financial liabilities
T4 R A H 4,007 2,675 (10) 1,407 748 705 (175) -
Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a net basis
HOFRIEEGS 2 T 4 SR A
Total net cash
outflow/(inflow)
et CRAD 1,835 15 763 615 617 (175) -
Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a gross basis
RS L 2 1T 4 SR A
Total cash inflow
HEBEIRA (64,063) (9,409)  (47,133) (5,749) (1,772) - -
Total cash outflow
HEBLBIR 64,903 9,384 47,777 5,882 1,860 - -
2022
Between
three
Less than months Between
Total cash three and one one and
Carrying outflow Repayable months year five years More than
amount &Rt on demand SfEHE  3MEAL L VFELLE  five years Undated
S THI(E dEgE HIERERK ISy FEUF EBHFE SERLE MEEEBHEE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEETT BNES T BNEE T BHET ANEET BYEET BEEET BEHET
Derivative financial liabilities
PTEERAEMA 4,145 3,978 37 1,261 1,180 1,172 328 -
Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a net basis
HOFRIEEGS 2 T4 SR A
Total net cash outflow
PR 3,074 6 767 998 1,024 279 -
Derivative financial liabilities
settled on a gross basis
ARG L 2 1T 4 SR A
Total cash inflow
HE SR (51,195) (325)  (33,383) (12,552) (4,782) (153) -
Total cash outflow
HEBLBIR 52,099 356 33,877 12,734 4,930 202 -




43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(d)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
Certificates of Deposit, Debt Securities Issued, and Loan Capital

In 2023, BEA issued fixed rate certificates of deposit and debt
securities with face values of US$1,129 million, CNY10,614 million,
EURS50 million; and zero coupon certificates of deposit and debt
securities with face values of US$488 million, CNY12,900 million,
GBP158 million and EUR403 million. The Group redeemed a
quantity of certificates of deposit and debt securities amounting to
HK$51,198 million equivalent upon maturity.

At the end of December 2023, the face value of the outstanding
certificates of deposit and debt securities issued was equivalent to
HK$28,759 million, with a carrying amount equivalent to HK$28,462
million.

(d)
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REMEERREH (%)
ERTHE - BT EEEAR

20234 > HSHIRITET T EEALL29ERTT - A
FRH5106. 1445 7C B O.SH B CHY E BF s KA ES
B4 DUNEE 488 T - ARBE129(5T -
1.58{F 55 %7 K 4.03 (R BN TTHYZ S A7k 58 b (R aE
77 o AR B B 0 U ] Y 2 SRR R (R
S E ARE511.98(F T -

Jr20235E 12 H ik » B TEI MRS R (RS
FFIEE AR R 287 598 7T - IREE AT ZER
HWE284.62(87C

Maturity Profile of Certificates of Deposit and Debt Securities Issued E&{TERE M EEZSFR

As at 31% December, 2023 j#2023412H31H

(All amounts expressed in millions of dollars of respective currencies) (2855 1HEHHTEZE TR

Total
Face Value Year of Maturity
HEfE FIEIFY
2024 2025 2026
Amount in currencies of issuance
BOSHNER
Floating Rate %8
HKD ¢ 200 - 200 -
USD ZEjT 78 58 20 -
Fixed Rate (Note) & (fft)
USD %70 884 763 121 -
CNY AR 9,055 155 - 8,900
EUR Bt 50 50 - -
Zero Coupon EBE,
USD %70 173 173 - -
CNY AR 6,250 6,250 - -
GBP J&g% 158 158 - -
EUR Bt 100 100 - -
Total Certificates of Deposit and Debt
Securities issued in HKD equivalent
FECHTHEXSRERSS (BEEE) 28,759 17,669 1,302 9,788

Note: Associated interest rate swaps have been arranged in order
to manage interest rate risk arising from long-term certificates
of deposit and debt securities issued, if deemed necessary.

In 2023, BEA issued fixed rate loan capital with a face value of
US$500 million.

At the end of December 2023, the face value of the outstanding loan
capital issued was equivalent to HK$16,102 million, with a carrying
amount equivalent to HK$15,967 million.

et - BB E R T R ER EE 7T
EATFIFINE - L BA I I
A -

20234 - HanfR{TH#AT I HEASEFZTIERE
Koo

[r2023FE 12 H & - ESATHESMIEEE A HEM
F AR 161.020% o - R (E HIAH E R E R
159.67{Z 7T °
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FZEREM&EE (4)

(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) (d) ‘mEMEEREERE (4)

Maturity Profile of Loan Capital
As at 315 December, 2023

(All amounts expressed in millions of dollars of respective
currencies)

EREAHIFH
142023612 31H
(SEBILLE R E# T (5 )

Year of Maturity

BISHEELT
2027 2028 2029 2030 2032
500 250 - 600 500
- - 1,500 - -

Total
Face Value
HEfE
Amount in currencies of issuance
BTG
USD (Note 1, 2,4,5) %7T (ffz#1-2-4-5) 1,850
CNY (Note 3) N (30 1,500
Total Loan Capital issued in HKD equivalent
FECBTEEES CBESEE) 16,102

3,906 1,953 1,650 4,687 3,906

Notes: 1. The US$500 million loan capital that will mature in 2027
is callable on 15" March, 2026.

2. The US$250 million loan capital that will mature in 2028
is callable on 7™ July, 2027.

3. The CNY1,500 million loan capital that will mature in
2029 is callable on 25" April, 2024.

4. The US$600 million loan capital that will mature in 2030
is callable on 29" May, 2025.

5. The US$500 million loan capital that will mature in 2032
is callable on 22™ April, 2027.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk resulting from adverse movements in
interest rates that affect the earnings and economic value of the
Group’s banking book positions. The Asset and Liability
Management Committee is delegated by the Board to oversee the
Group's interest rate risk management, establish the strategy and
policy for managing interest rate risk, and determine the means for
ensuring that such strategies and policies are implemented. Interest
rate risk is managed daily by the Treasury Markets Division of the
Group within the limits approved by the Board or the Asset and
Liability Management Committee. The Market & Liquidity Risk
Management Department under the Risk Management Division of
the Group is responsible for monitoring the activities relating to
interest rate risk. The Internal Audit Division performs periodic
reviews to ensure that the interest rate risk management functions
are implemented effectively.

Interest rate risk primarily results from the timing differences in the
re-pricing of interest rate-sensitive assets, liabilities, and off-
balance sheet items in the banking book. In determining the level
of interest rate risk, assessments are made for the gap risk, basis
risk and option risk. The Group manages the interest rate risk on
the banking book primarily by focusing on re-pricing mismatches.
Gap analysis provides a static view of the maturity and re-pricing
characteristics of the Group’s interest rate-sensitive assets,
liabilities, and off-balance sheet positions. Re-pricing gap position
limits are set to control the Group's interest rate risk.

BifaE < L. JFF2027 EFHINYS (FFE T F B AR

202643 15 /] ajjg)a] -

2. JEF2028 E FYHIHT2.5 (EHE T IFEE AR
FR2027 457 A7 H B4 A -

3. JEFR029FEFHININ RBAS [FIr R E
A 512024 4F4 525 [ B4/ -

4. 72030 E AT (EE T EE AR
202545 /29 [ b fg/e]

5. #2032 EFHIHYS (BE T HFEE AR
2027 £E4 /722 [ G745/ -

(e) FIZREpEH

HZRE b 215 A R E RV SRAT IR ORI R (FE
T “IRRBB” ) 2 EIRFI YR 27 S48 H 5 1 K
SR EEERA A ERT AR ER - BEA
HEHZAGHESGRE AEEEAEED
Fll < b B - BT 17 R ) A B ) SR BB
0 WHIEH R > DATECRENTT A B RIS BLER
o FREREAEEE TS REEEGNE
EAAETEZEgHMENREEEETHEE
B o e I LR R T 69 5 RO B M B
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GEME R - HERA R EE IS A
BT
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(e)

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis in relation to the impact of changes in
interest rates on earnings, in terms of net interest income
(“NIl"), and economic value, in terms of economic value of
equity (“EVE”") is assessed regularly through a number of
hypothetical interest rate shock scenarios prescribed by the
HKMA. EVE represents an assessment of the present value
of expected net cash flows, discounted to reflect market
rates. As fluctuations in interest rates will affect earnings,
they will also affect its net worth. Sensitivity limits are set to
control the Group's interest rate risk exposure under both
earnings and economic value perspectives. The results are
reported to the Asset and Liability Management Committee
on aregular basis.

In order to produce quantitative estimation on IRRBB, the
Group has assumed shock scenarios to interest rate yield
curves which allow changes in economic value and earnings
to be computed with consideration of optionality and
behavioural assumptions. These scenarios are applied to
IRRBB exposures in each currency for which the Group has
material positions.

The prescribed interest rate shock scenarios are provided by
the HKMA in their Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1, Interest
Rate Risk in the Banking Book and generally described as
follows:

1. Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up across all
time buckets

2. Parallel down: A constant parallel shock down across
all time buckets

3. Steepener: Short rates down and long rates up

4. Flattener: Short rates up and long rates down

5. Short rate up: Rates up are greatest at shortest time
bucket and diminish towards current
rates in longer time buckets

6. Shortrate down: Rates down are greatest at shortest
time bucket and diminish towards
current rates in longer time buckets

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed by the Group for
each of the prescribed interest rate shock scenarios for the
annual reporting date at 315 December, 2023, the maximum
adverse impact on EVE and NIl over the next 12 months are
HK$1,839 million (315" December, 2022: HK$1,687 million)
and HK$2,674 million (31 December, 2022: HK$2,927
million) respectively.

Details of the sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk can be
found on the Bank's website accessible through the
“Regulatory Disclosures” link on the home page of the
Bank’s website at www.hkbea.com or at the following direct
link: www.hkbea.com/regulatory_disclosures.
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(h)

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk is the risk of current or potential impact on the
Group’s earnings, capital, reputation, or standing arising from
changes in the environment the Group operates in, adverse
strategic decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack
of responsiveness to industry, economic, or technological changes.

The objective of managing strategic risk is to identify, assess,
monitor, report, and mitigate strategic risk, and to ensure
compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements.

The Group establishes comprehensive policies, manuals, profiles
and reports to set out the management framework as well as
assessment and monitoring tools.

The Group formulates, and adheres to the Strategic Risk
Management Manual, which outlines a systematic approach to the
management of strategic risk, including a framework for strategic
risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and control,
thereby enhancing the level of strategic risk management of the
Group.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing
the management of the Group’s strategic risk.

Legal risk management

Legal risk is the risk of loss arising from unenforceable contracts,
lawsuits, or adverse judgements that may disrupt or otherwise
negatively affect the operations or financial condition of the Group.

The objective of managing legal risk is to identify, assess, monitor
and report on legal risk, and to comply with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.

From time to time, the Group provides training conducted by
qualified internal personnel and/or external lawyers/professionals
to staff members. It also issues reminders to staff members when
necessary. When dealing with legal matters, the Group consults
qualified internal personnel and, when necessary and appropriate,
engages external lawyers with relevant expertise.

The Operational Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group's legal risk.

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that the Group’s reputation is damaged
by one or more events that result in negative publicity about the
business practices, conduct, or financial condition of the Group.
Such negative publicity, whether true or not, may impair public
confidence in the Group and may result in costly litigation, or lead
to a decline in the Group's customer base, business, and/or
revenue.

The objective of managing reputation risk is to identify, assess,
monitor, report, and mitigate reputation risk, and to ensure
compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements.

The Group establishes various policies, guidelines, manuals and
codes to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and to ensure that the Group maintains a high
standard of corporate governance, which in turn helps to safeguard
and enhance the Group’s reputation.
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(h) Reputation risk management (continued)

@

@

The Group formulates, and adheres to the Reputation Risk
Management Manual, which outlines a systematic approach to the
management of reputation risk, including a framework for reputation
risk identification, assessment, mitigation, control, and monitoring,
thereby protecting and enhancing the reputation of the Group. The
Guidelines for Incident Response and Management are established
for swift response to and management of unexpected incidents. The
Media Guidelines are established to ensure effective and consistent
delivery of the Group’s key messages to the media.

The Operational Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group's reputation risk.

Compliance risk management

Compliance risk is the risk of potential losses arising from legal or
regulatory sanctions, fines and penalties, financial losses or
damage to reputation that the Group may suffer as a result of its
failure to comply with laws, regulations, rules, related self-regulatory
organisation standards, and codes of conduct applicable to its
business activities.

The Group establishes various policies, guidelines and manuals to
ensure compliance with all applicable legislation, rules, codes of
conduct, industry standards, and guidelines issued by the relevant
regulatory authorities that govern the Group’s operations. The
Group formulates, and adheres to, the Compliance Risk
Management Manual, which outlines a systematic approach to the
management of compliance risk, including a framework for
compliance risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation
and control, thereby enabling the Group to manage its compliance
risk effectively. Independent regulatory compliance reviews are
conducted on major functions of the Group using a risk-based
approach.

Technology risk management

Technology risk is the risk of loss to the Group due to inadequate or
failed technical processes, people, and/or computing systems, or
unauthorised access or disruption to technology resources, in
particular relating to cyber security and e-banking.

To address increasing cyber security threats, the Group has put in
place adequate security resources and proper control measures
based on a defined risk appetite level. The Group has developed
technology risk related policies and cyber security strategies as well
as comprehensive security awareness programmes to strengthen
cyber security at all levels.

The Group has also established a framework for proper
management of technology risk. The Board and designated
committees at the top level are responsible for overall management
of technology risk for the Group. They lead various working teams
and the “Three Lines of Defence” to address specific areas of
concern.

Comprehensive control policies, standards, guidelines, and
procedures are maintained to ensure that adequate control
measures relating to the security of internet systems and
applications, customer authentication, risk assessment for new
products and services, third-party security and confidentiality,
integrity and availability of information are all in place.
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

(k)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to meet
the regulatory requirements and safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Capital managed by the Group to achieve these objectives includes
ordinary share capital, retained profits, other reserves, and non-
controlling interests after deductions for goodwill and intangible
assets. It also includes subordinated liabilities, impairment
allowances and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as
allowed under Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Steering Group for Capital Management and Recovery and
Resolution Planning is responsible for overseeing issues related to
the capital positions and monitoring the capital adequacy against
all regulatory and internal reference. The capital position is also
reviewed regularly by the Risk Management Committee, Risk
Committee and the Board.

The HKMA supervises the Group on both a consolidated basis and
a solo-consolidated basis and, as such, sets capital requirements
and receives information of capital adequacy on a regular basis for
the Group as a whole. Individual branches in Macau, Taiwan and
overseas and banking subsidiaries are directly regulated by
respective domestic banking supervisors, who set and monitor
their capital adequacy requirements. In certain jurisdictions, non-
banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision
and capital requirements of domestic regulatory authorities.

In implementing current capital requirements the HKMA requires
the Group to maintain a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk-
weighted assets.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the capital
adequacy ratios and there have been no material changes in the
Group'’s policy on the management of capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31%' December, 2023 and 31%
December, 2022 as disclosed are computed on the consolidated
basis of the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as specified by the
HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
year ended 315 December, 2023 and 31% December, 2022 and the
Group's capital ratios are well above the minimum required by the
HKMA.

(k)
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43. PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) FERMER (4)

o

Climate-related risk management

The Group is of the view that there is growing urgency for
immediate climate action in building resilience and to mitigate
potential negative impacts of climate change. The Group
distinguishes climate related risk between physical risk and
transition risk. “Physical risk” refers to the impacts of weather and
climate-related events, which could lead to disruptions to the
business and operations of banks and their clients. “Transition risk”
refers to the risk related to the process of adjustment towards a
low-carbon economy, which can be prompted by policy, legal,
technology and market changes as climate-change mitigation and
adaptation measures are adopted. The Group views climate risk as
a transverse risk that can manifest in the traditional and principal
risk types such as credit, operational and reputation risks, etc. The
impacts can materialise in the business and operational activities
of the Bank.

The Bank’s Board of Directors has established a Board-level ESG
Committee to oversee the Group’s ESG performance. The ESG
Steering Committee (“Steering Committee”) reports directly to the
ESG Committee. The Steering Committee, chaired by the Co-Chief
Executive, is responsible for driving ESG strategy development,
assessing the materiality of existing and emerging ESG topics, and
ESG target setting and performance review, which is then reported
to the ESG Committee. The Group Chief Risk Officer sits on the
ESG Steering Committee and is tasked with managing and
reporting on ESG risks.

Through the HKMA-led Climate Risk Stress Test (“CRST")
exercise, the Group has identified emerging climate risks and
opportunities which may materially affect the Group’s business and
operations. Based on the results from the climate risk and scenario
analysis, the Group is able to determine certain financial and non-
financial impacts of climate change which could manifest in the
major risk categories through impacting of the asset quality (i.e.
borrower repayment ability, collateral quality), valuation of financial
instruments (i.e. market fluctuation), operational resilience (i.e.
operational damage to bank premises and assets and business
disruption) and reputational impact to the Group. The Group has
developed plans to strengthen its strategies and risk governance
framework to ensure its resilience against extreme climate events
and to mitigate the vulnerabilities identified during this CRST
exercise. Due to strong capital buffers built up over past years, the
estimated financial impact from climate change do not create
material capital impact to the Group.

The Group’s climate risk management measures include
supporting customers towards transition to a low carbon economy,
expanding green and sustainable finance products, controlling the
Group's exposure to high climate risk sectors, and the development
of net zero roadmaps for both operational emissions (Scope 1 and
2), as well as financed emissions (Scope 3). The significant climate
risk issues will be reported and escalated to management
committees and the Board through the existing enterprise risk
management organizational structure. To strengthen our climate
risk management capability and assess the operational and
financial impact arising from extreme weather events, the Group
has developed and implemented new risk management tools in
2023, including qualitative and quantitative risk appetite statement
for climate risk and climate risk heatmap, and strengthened ESG
risk assessment to customers and debt securities issuers.
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £l T ERVAEEE

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

(@ DIAPHEESIRE SR TR

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy of
methods:

Level 1 — Quoted market price in an active market for an identical
instrument.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable input. This
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices
in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are
valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required
to reflect differences between the instruments.
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) &Rt TEAAFEE (48)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(@ DIAPEEFIRERH T (8

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded
in active markets are based on quoted market prices or
counterparty quotations. For all other financial instruments the
Group determines fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow
models and various market recognised option pricing models.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-
free and benchmark interest rates, equity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates, index prices, historical or implied volatilities and
correlations. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a
fair value measurement that reflects the price of the financial
instrument that would be received to sell the asset or paid to
transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the reporting date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for
determining the fair value of common and simpler financial
instruments, like interest rate and currency swaps that use only
observable market data and require little management judgement
and estimation. Observable prices and model inputs are usually
available in the market for listed debt and equity securities,
exchange traded derivatives and simple over-the-counter
derivatives like interest rate swaps. Availability of observable
market prices and model inputs reduces the need for management
judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty
associated with determination of fair values. Availability of
observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the
products and markets and is prone to changes based on specific
events and general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Group uses valuation models,
which usually are developed from recognised valuation
methodologies. Some or all of the significant inputs into these
models may not be observable in the market, and are derived from
market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions.
Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs
require a higher degree of management judgement and estimation
in determination of fair value. Management judgement and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate
valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash
flows on the financial instrument being valued, determination of
probability of counterparty default and prepayments and selection
of appropriate discount rates.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. This framework includes a
valuation control function, namely Financial Instruments Valuation
Group (“FIVG”), which comprises control units independent of front
office management. Procedures for price verification have been
established. Any pricing models to be used would be subject to a
rigorous validation and approval process.
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Rt T ERAFEEE (48)

(@

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair

(@ DIAPEEFIRERH T (8
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TRIBS TSR - AP EES RN LL

value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value AN EESENSR T B A\ P EENEE
hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised: =
2023 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 B =R Yaxg R B B=ER Yaxg
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BIEHETT  BRIWEET  BREETT  BWEET  BREST  BRESET  BWHET  BEEET
Recurring
fair value ERSEAPE
measurement EE%
Assets BE
YO - fmis
Trade Bills — Measured L4 HIL T LA
at FVOCI W AR (R & - 122 122 - 488 488
Trading assets R IR ERE 285 2,764 3,049 354 1,176 1,530
Derivative assets PTETHERE 12 9,044 9,056 200 10,892 11,092
Investment securites &5
- Mandatorily
measured at - TR AR DA
FVTPL WA PR AR & 2,327 533 2,860 3,417 732 4,149
- F A H A 4 T UL
- Measured at LA LA
FvOCI B 35,922 116,339 959 153,220 24,654 102,903 839 128,396
36,219 130,596 1,492 168,307 25,208 118,876 1571 145,655
Liabilities &%
Trading liabilities X5 iR EE - - 5 - 5
Derivative liabilies 772 TH &1 4,007 4,007 99 4,046 4,145
HE Ry il iR DU
Financial liabilities AR AR
designated at FVTPL Ef& 13,501 13,501 - 24,357 24,357
17,508 17,508 104 28,403 28,507

During the years ended 315 December, 2023 and 2022, there were
no significant transfers of financial instruments between Level 1
and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the

end of the reporting period in which they occur.

% -

20234 202212 {31 H 1L Z FEN > %
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Rt T ERAFEEE (48)

(@

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Information about significant unobservable inputs in Level 3

valuations

Unlisted debt securities, equity
securities and investment
funds

JE B B R

Valuation technique

iR

Counterparty quote
REHFRE

Net asset value
HEEFE

Discounted cash flow
model

BB T

Market-comparable
approach

T AT EIEEA

(@ DIAPEEFIRERH T (8

Significant unobservable input(s) Range

TR BEHSE R
N/A N/A
A A
N/A N/A
A A
Discount rate 13.4%

RS (2022 4. : 12.2%)

20%
(2022 £ 1 20%)

Marketability discount
el

Earnings multiple 14.38 — 36.36

BRI

EV/EBIT
SEEE S ATFE

18.26 — 26.75

50%
(2022 4 50%)

Marketability discount
e A
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BRE=SSEN A TR EESHER

(2022 £ : 20.51 — 27.66)

(2022 £ : 21.61 — 27.78)

The fair values of unlisted equity instruments mandatorily
measured at FVTPL or measured at FVOCI are estimated using
the discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, or with reference to
multiples of comparable listed companies, adjusted for a
marketability discount to reflect the fact that the shares are not
actively traded. An increase in the ratio/investee’s financial position
and results in isolation will result in favourable movement in the fair
values, while an increase in discount rate/marketability discount in
isolation will result in unfavourable movement. The fair value of the
unlisted investment funds are estimated by using the net asset
valuations (“NAV”) provided by the managers of the funds.

Valuation of financial instruments in Level 3 are subject to the same
valuation control framework as described above and reviewed
regularly by FIVG.
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Rt T ERAFEEE (48)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(@ DIAPEEFIRERH T (8

(1) Valuation of financial instruments with significant (1) EEHEATEZE ERSEeR T EEE

unobservable inputs

Movements in the recognised fair values of instruments with
significant unobservable inputs were as follows:

CYIRRIE & AR TR 2 EHZS BT A
HAVEEZEEHOT

2023 2022
Investment Investment Investment Investment
securities securities securities securities
mandatorily measured at mandatorily measured at
measured at FVOCI measured at FVOCI
FVTPL A2 FVTPL i H A2
sEEE ARG ARSI sRflEmEELs S DAR
DU AEEE AVEERE . DRIAHERE AFEERE
Ep=tNEEa—Givesd HiEER R sPEORES S Efa=cies
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT BEEETT BEETT BEETT
Assets BE
At 1t January W1H1H 732 839 808 712
Additions/Purchases who WA 8 - 31 -
Disposals/Settlements e EE (208) - 27) -
Changes in fair value B N
recognised in the income INHEEEBIHEERIL
statement FE 1 - (80) -
Changes in fair value . N
recognised in the other AN PEEEEETTE
comprehensive income leTiltien - 120 - 127
At 315t December P12H31HFEN 533 959 732 839
Total gains for the year PR R
included in FVOCI fair Eﬁ%g‘%gﬁ?%
value reserve of the other A A
comprehensive income Eat A s
for assets held at the end PR E R 25
of the reporting period FEN WLz S8R - 120 - 127
Total gains/(losses) for the ARG H A
year included in the BRI CE AL
noome semeni otz
the reporti ) ML EE SR T
porting period -
recorded in net results /E‘E@?%%LQEZEEE@
from other financial Wz~ (ES5HED Wias
instruments at FVTPL “EE 1 - (80) -
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Rt T ERAFEEE (48)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) (@ MAPEEFHRNVERTE (4
(2) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to (2) AAMEZE EHREEREHESEH TS
reasonably possible alternative assumptions FERER P A S
2023
Effect recorded in profit or loss Effect recorded directly in equity
HiFCH NG E 2P IEREEwe Nt S nlld
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
A (RFD) A (RFD)
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BT BT BT BT

Financial assets AR
Investment securities ﬁ%ﬁ%@%@ﬁ?%?
mandatorily measured ~ PRAFE{ERRT

at FVTPL REHE 45 (45) - .
i Rliealiem
Investment securities DARZBR A PE(ERT

measured at FVOCI BEIHYETE S - - 80 (80)

45 (45) 80 (80)

2022
Effect recorded in profit or loss Effect recorded directly in equity
EIFSHINEG B RTINS Sl 7
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
HH] CRFD HH] CRFD
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BT BT BT BT

Financial assets EREE
Investment securities -ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@?%ﬁﬁ?%?
mandatorily measured ~ PAFE{ERET

at FVTPL & 61 (61) - -
o A At S T g
Investment securities LARZB AP ERT
measured at FVOCI B EE S - - 70 (70)
61 (61) 70 (70)
The fair values of financial instruments are in certain FEETHERT @ st T BN EER
circumstances, measured using valuation models that FERHEERS > EEA RS IEREE
incorporate assumptions that are not supported by prices from FEIE T B E Fiaf sz i s 5 [ & » JRIE
observable current market transactions in the same instrument {{W’E’Eﬁﬁﬁjﬁgﬂ’ﬂﬁi%ﬁ]ﬁ% R J:%%EE?T:Q}I

and are not based on observable market data. The table above - et e A JRAPVINIEN
shows the sensitivity of fair values due to parallel movement of fE0fE =~ BURLFE - BITE% A 22 S8 PTAR AT R

plus or minus 10 per cent in reasonably possible alternative ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@iﬂ@fb ~ 1 10% Y {5 {8 #9117 82
assumptions. -
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44. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Rt T ERAFEEE (48)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value (b)  DLASE(E B LISNFIBER S8k T B /A (EH

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

@

(i)

(iii)

(V)

The fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with
no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on
demand at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of variable rate financial instruments is
assumed to be approximated by their carrying amounts and,
in the case of loans and unquoted debt securities, does not,
therefore, reflect changes in their credit quality, as the impact
of credit risk is recognised separately by deducting the
amount of the impairment allowances from both the carrying
amount and fair value.

The fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market rates
offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining
gross fair values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately by deducting the amount of the impairment loss
and allowances from both the carrying amount and fair value.

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December, 2023 and 2022.

AREERA NYIDEMERERBCE - DEEW T

h TR PEE

=1

BF

@

(i)

(iii)

(V)
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RHEE -

DLBE S5 Rl A ABR B IE B BRI # BT 24
SHEME - Y EE R SR AT R
Y H RIS A A R - DA 5 A AR R Ry
JisfhEt o PR EY (5 B &2 BUE AR
T (BRI P (AR TPfF DR (4t < DR PR 12 4
ST LIRERS  AERE A HEE SR > &
FELARNSHERNERRANS ST g
TLUHBE -

BV EIE R A HEE > BU2FE
FHE RIS 6 2~ 58 5 BBl Fl 2w LS
R E AR E RIS H5
ZEIM AT I8 ] Ut SR 38 & R
FRERBULAVER - BUEIR AR ER Z1E
U T SRR AT RE R il 5T ER IR
B > 3lf A5 & o HOT 4 vl S A B et DA
ENFEE -

AR5 [ DA i A R B ol AR ABR 19 <8 b T HL AR TE
B BLEA2023512 H31H K& 20224 F H 2 /A
EEGHERESR -



45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES HE&ERMIMNIEE

(@

(b)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments and the
aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with
reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of
capital adequacy ratio.

(@
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ENAA FURYE

W

S LB REA AR LR R REN RIS T &
IR SR (R R S R S
WA T T

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EHETT BWEEETT
Contingent liabilities B S=
Direct credit substitutes EREEE R 3,522 4,220
Transaction-related contingencies 15 B R SR TE H 3,927 3,846
Trade-related contingencies H1%8 B A RS RTE H 7,741 6,143
15,190 14,209
Commitments HRYE
Commitments that are unconditionally PRI TOM T RS i
cancellable without prior notice HIFJRYE 332,203 303,920
Other commitments with an original
maturity HArEERREHIH
-upto 1 year - VEELAT 2,531 2,229
- over 1 year -1 E 25,168 32,043
359,902 338,192
Total ek 375,092 352,401
Credit risk-weighted amounts EEE RIS 17,458 23,651

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with
the Capital Rules. Contingent liabilities and commitments are
credit-related instruments which include acceptances, letters of
credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The
contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the
contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. Since a
significant portion of guarantees and commitments is expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total of the contract amounts
does not represent expected future cash flows.

Derivatives
(i) Notional amount of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends
on the value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

(b)

EEREIE RS (BEARA) 55 - 2R
EEOREEAIEEAMN LR - GER R
EEIVRRER - EHE - ERENRERIHA -
ENBERIEE S OSSR PR
RS R\ Y S B o H S THIUHE PR FOR (K
RER Iy S GEARGKIRIATA Y - &4 HR
REFIARAHE 2R -

PTETHE
() CTELENAESHE

T4 THEEH — RS HE A A B 3
EEREEENMBEL -



(b) Derivatives (continued)

(b)

(i) Notional amount of derivatives (continued)

The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
significant type of derivative of the Group:

Exchange rate contracts
Interest rate contracts
Equity contracts

Exchange rate contracts
Interest rate contracts
Equity contracts

45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) &E&EEDSMIER (8)

PTETHE (8

() TTAETENREREEH (F)

EEEIENTE T B E 2RI 048 S50
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3/
2023
Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments
designated at
fair value Others,
through profit including
Qualifying or loss held for
for hedge HrimimiEas DA trading
accounting  SZHRASEEE HAl > B1E
FrEH R TEBES FEELS Total
=R S gl JaEkzis HHEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT
EREY - 2,932 311,977 314,909
LES=S) 115,455 8,171 195,198 318,824
R &4 - - 6,245 6,245
115,455 11,103 513,420 639,978
2022
Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments
designated at
fair value Others,
through profit including
Qualifying or loss held for
for hedge HrimimiEas DA trading
accounting  SZHRASEEE HAl > B5E
FrEH eRTEBES FEELS Total
=R S gl JaEhzis HHEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT
EREY - 4,163 288,758 292,921
ES=) 113,222 19,685 186,718 319,625
R &4 - - 4,774 4,774
113,222 23,848 480,250 617,320

Derivatives arise from futures, forward, swap and option
transactions undertaken by the Group in the foreign exchange,
interest rate and equity markets. The notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting period; they do not represent amounts

at risk.

PTAET BE R ASEEAEINE - FIHR RS

GETHE - B - B RMER S ME
4 o BT RN R E RSN RH
AR FERAIL B AR AERFTRZ E S

Y48 -



Page 157

45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) &E&EEDSMIER (8)

(b) Derivatives (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(b) #TETE (8
Fair value of derivatives (i) TTEIEZAFEE
2023 2022
Fair value Fair value
AEEE AEEE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HiE HfE HiE HfE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT BEEEIT
Exchange rate contracts FEZEL] 1,650 1,733 1,781 1,749
Interest rate contracts FIZREL] 7,307 2,169 9,220 2,297
Equity contracts R &4 99 105 91 99
9,056 4,007 11,092 4,145

Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value hedge principally consists of
interest rate swaps that are used to protect against
changes in the fair value of fixed rate long-term financial
instruments due to movements in market interest rates.

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to changes in the fair values of certain fixed rate financial
assets and financial liabilities in respect of a benchmark
interest rate. Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate
swaps are matched to specific issuances of fixed rate
financial liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest
rate swaps are matched to fixed rate financial assets with
terms that closely align with the critical terms of the
hedged item.

(iii) st

A ESEN AR TR apiy

Y 5 P R T sy -
FIR DI E BB B M TR /A T R
BFIRBBTIEE -

ARG LUH AR s o 10 B R A R
<l 2 55 DR R A R R 2B TR
EY R S DASZ A Bl U A R
&S SE B R B (AR SE ST HC $ A
ST ERZR,/UHUE B FR 45 & 4 AL E
BREERE » HAsE v b IE HAvEe
SRR 2L -
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45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) &EE&EEDSMIER (4)
TTAETE (&)

(i) gt (8D

(b) Derivatives (continued)

(b)

(i) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s approach to managing market risk, including
interest rate risk, is discussed in Note 43(b). Interest rate risk
to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed
rate financial assets and financial liabilities, whose fair value
fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark
interest rates because the changes in fair value of a fixed rate
financial asset and financial liability are significantly influenced
by changes in the benchmark interest rate. Hedge accounting
is applied where economic hedge relationships meet the hedge
accounting criteria.

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures
to changes in interest rates, the Group also exposes itself to
credit risk of the derivative counterparty, which is not offset by
the hedged item. The Group minimises counterparty credit risk
in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with
high-quality counterparties and requiring the counterparties to
post collateral (see Note 43(a)(x)).

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the
Group determines whether an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument exists based on
an evaluation of the qualitative characteristics of these items
and the hedged risk that is supported by quantitative analysis.
The Group considers whether the critical terms of the hedged
item and hedging instrument closely align when assessing the
presence of an economic relationship. The Group evaluates
whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks. The Group further
supports this qualitative assessment by using cumulative dollar
offset method or regression analysis to assess whether the
hedging instrument is expected to be and has been highly
effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged
item.

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par
amount of the hedged item and the notional amount of the
interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Under
the Group policy, in order to conclude that a hedge relationship
is effective, all of the following criteria should be met.

- The regression co-efficient (R squared), which measures
the correlation between the variables in the regression, is
at least 0.8.

- The slope of the regression line is within a 0.8-1.25 range.

- The confidence level of the slope is at least 95%.

In these hedge the main sources of

ineffectiveness are:

relationships,

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit
risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to
the change in interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the
hedged item.

IR E R A HEEET (8D

AEEEHE NSRRI JTE - AR
SRR 43(0) o ANGEEIER BT G THIF
RERRAKE TS SREEL AR HA
A AR AR I B o NS
BN R AR A EE SR 2 EE AR
BEEHE T AEEE AR REE
PRI R ER o W EstEANFFE T
BT AR SR 4 -

A 8 (5 P 20T 2 < il T L S O R S Y L
W AEETRHBETTAE TAERGHTHES
JeRg > Tt SV T AR T R - A
FEHEBHSERERGHTETRS - BX
R G TR o BRCTAE T H S
FHERERE (GERHIEE 43(@)(%)

TERRM AP EEE G AR REERE
W B AN TR A E MERHE RS RIS
R m g SEAEHYE M7 - DAKEE g b
HH T TR Z MRS FELRR G - &
ARG ST B (VA AERY - S
IR H R TRABRRIEE 8 - A
S BTl o BRI TR A PEE
e A S DL b S AL - ARSI PR A Rt
B EARSA Sl st B T RZE & TR
W R IR H A RO S IE H Y AP E
B D RPE MR -

A S A A S R P T A I (B S E R
TR YR R & 4 4 R R E
MR o IRBEAEEECR - AREITEGRE
LT TR IR

- O (| B o 8 R R A B PR (B B (A B
(RJ5) 20508
- [BERERAVRLARAE 0.8-1.25 FHEY -

- RERIVEFKPED Ry 959
FEEEEEIPRA (T o S (B E R

E

- XA T HALEEE S5 MR AR
HIE RNV E RS2 BER BE S WA A R 8
PRI E AP EES &

- I B LA A AR B R TE H AR H 2 2
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45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) BE&fERMAMNIRE (%)

(b) Derivatives (continued)
(i) Hedge accounting (continued)
Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (continued)
At 315 December, 2023 and 2022, the Group held the

following interest rate swaps as hedging instruments in
fair value hedges of interest risk:

(b) PTAETE (8D
(iii) $rdErEt (g
IR E R A HEEET (8D

20234 f:20224E12 H 31 H - AEEFH
BUF A st 5 49 78 B MR L B 2 P (E (B

Risk category
Interest rate risk

Hedge of debt securities
investment

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of loans and
advances

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of subordinated
notes issued

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of deposits from
customers

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Risk category
Interest rate risk

Hedge of debt securities
investment

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of loans and
advances

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of subordinated
notes issued

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of deposits from
customers

Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

Hedge of repo
Nominal amount (HK$ Mn)
Average fixed interest rate

JE\f A
HRE

PR
BHESH CERTTEIT)
%

P BT R B
BHESH CERTETT)
%

L RS
LHEPE CERERIT)
AR

i PP
LHEPE CERERIT)
TAEERE

JE\f A A
HRE

ISR
£FLME CERERT)
TAEERE

PSR AL
SFHHE CEERT)
THEEFIE

PR ST
BESH CERTTEIT)
%

P PR
BESH CERTTEIT)
%

S E
£FELME CEIRERIT)
TAEERE

EHPIIERP T A -
2023
Maturity
FHIH
Less than More than
1 year 1-5 years 5 years
DAL 1-54F E2NS
6,832 40,841 51,483
2.21% 1.54% 1.47%
124 698 27
2.76% 1.19% 2.59%
- 14,452 -
- 3.98% -
998 - -
4.04% - -
2022
Maturity
FHAH
Less than More than
1 year 1-5 years 5 years
DAL 1-5 4 E2N
9,953 39,974 44,403
2.33% 1.33% 1.33%
125 869 27
2.78% 1.54% 2.59%
- 5,852 -
- 2.72% -
9,631 - -
3.67% - -
2,388 - -
4.72% - -



45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) BE&fERMAMNIRE (%)

(b) Derivatives (continued)

(iii)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging

(b)

PIETHE ()

(i) HHEE ()
IR E R A HEEET (8D

instruments and hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

Interest rate risk

GRS

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of debt
securities investment

FlAs — $PESES
fitas

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of loans and
advances

FllA s — S SRR

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of subordinated
notes issued

Flsi — $PEETR

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of deposits from
customers

RIS — B SRR

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of repo
FllAs — EHd

Interest rate risk

EAES

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of debt
securities investment

Flsi — $PESES
fitas

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of loans and
advances

FllAs — S EROR R

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of subordinated
notes issued

Fls — $PEETR

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of deposits from
customers

Flsi — $PESER

Interest rate swaps —
hedge of repo

FllAs — EHd o

Nominal
amount
HFEH
HK$ Mn
BEEHET

99,156

849

14,452

998

Nominal
amount
HFEH
HK$ Mn
BEEHET

94,330

1,021

5,852

9,631

2,388

Carrying amount

Assets
HiE

HK$ Mn
BEEHET

5,689

42

29

VRIAHE

Liabilities
Faff

HK$ Mn
AR ETT

(412)

(402)

()

Carrying amount

Assets
HiE

HK$ Mn
BEEHET

7,311

65

VRIEHE

Liabilities
Faff

HK$ Mn
AR ET

(113)

(299)

(37

1)

2023

Line item in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
where the hedging
instrument is included
BEHPTENGE
Wk R E

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
T HREE
(&fH)

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
T HREE/
(&afH)

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
PTETHEAE/

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
PHETHREE/
(&afH)

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
T HREE/
(&fH)

2022

Line item in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
where the hedging
instrument is included
BEHTTENGE

WBsIRRAVEE 5t

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
PTETHEEE/

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
T HREE
(&fH)

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
T HREE/
(&fH)

Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
PHETHREE
(&fH)
Derivative assets/
(liabilities)
PTETHEAEE/
(&fH)

SHRARAE

B

Change in fair
value used for

calculating hedge

ineffectiveness
AR ERHLL
Y

HK$ Mn
BEEHET

(1,860)

(24)

147

28

Change in fair
value used for

calculating hedge

Hiry
HK$ Mn
AR EET

Sk

8,958

72

(255)

(29)

4)

Ineffectiveness
recognised in
profit or loss
BRI TR
SRR
HK$ Mn
BEEHET

76

()

(23)

(23)

Ineffectiveness
recognised in
profit or loss

R RN
SRR
HK$ Mn
BEEHET

172

()

23
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5 IE R TR S R AR T

Line item in
consolidated
income statement
that includes hedge
ineffectiveness

BE R Y
GreasRAIHE

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkiin i
(k518) 4

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibinaiig
(k518) 24

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibin i
(k518) 4

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibin i
(k518) 4

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkiin Rl
(k518) 4

Line item in
consolidated
income statement
that includes hedge
ineffectiveness

BE R Y
GreasRAIHE

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibinriig
(k518) 4

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkiin i
(k518) 24

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibin i
(k518) 4

Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibinriig
(k518) 4
Net hedging
profit/(loss)
forkibieriig
(k518) 4



45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) &EE&EEDSMIER (4)

(b) Derivatives (continued)

(i) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items

were as follows:

Debt securities
investment

B HE

Loans and advances

BRI R

Subordinated notes

issued
C#TREREE
Deposits from
customers
HETK
Repo
Eilit

Debt securities
investment

HEBHHRE

Loans and advances

EERETK

Subordinated notes

issued
CHTREREE
Deposits from
customers
HETK
Repo
Eilit

Carrying amount

S THI(E
Assets Liabilities
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AlEEHET BEEHET
92,652 -
845 -
- 14,318
- 997

Carrying amount

S THI(E
Assets Liabilities
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AlEEHET BEHET
85,306 -
1,028 -
- 5,567
- 9,604
- 2,361

Accumulated amount
of fair value hedge
adjustments included
in the carrying
amount of the
hedged item
BB E R
T EAY R A TEE
Eapdiekd

Liabilities
A

HK$ Mn
BEEHET

Assets
HE

HK$ Mn
BN EETT

(4,449) -

(40) -

- (88)

Accumulated amount
of fair value hedge
adjustments included
in the carrying
amount of the
hedged item
BB E R
T ERY R A TEE
Eapdiekd

Liabilities
A

HK$ Mn
BEEHET

Assets
B

HK$ Mn
TS
(7,683) -

(62) -

- (257)

- @7

- @7

(b)

PIETHE (8

(iii) $rErEt (g
FIRE R A EEE ()
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57 R T IH H B0 T

2023

Line item in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position
where the
hedged item is
included

AEHEHIEE

HIERE TSR

FHIHH

Investment
securities

ieven

Loans and
advances to
customers

% P R B

Loan capital

BEEA

Deposits from
customers

HEK

Deposits and
balances of
banks

HUTHIR R
LHER

2022

Line item in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position
where the
hedged item is
included

AEHEIEE

HIERE TSR

FHIHH

Investment
securities
Loans and
advances to
customers
& P BB
Loan capital

BEEA

Deposits from
customers

HEK

Deposits and
balances of
banks

HUTHIFR R
LHER

Change in value
used for
calculating hedge
ineffectiveness
ATRIAEBILL
TR
HK$ Mn

BEEHET

1,936

22

(170)

(26)

@7

Change in value
used for
calculating hedge
ineffectiveness
AN HEEEE LG
TR
HK$ Mn

BEEHET

(8,786)

(68)

259

27

27

Accumulated amount of
fair value hedge
adjustments remaining in
the statement of financial
position for any hedged
items that have ceased to
be adjusted for hedging
gains and losses
BERMBIRIRAITEL
AERRE S R RS 1R
BT E Z BEt A FE
(B ER R AR

HK$ Mn

BEEHET

Accumulated amount of
fair value hedge
adjustments remaining in
the statement of financial
position for any hedged
items that have ceased to
be adjusted for hedging
gains and losses
BERMBIRRAITL
bR R RS 1R
BT E Z BET A E
(BB EREE AR

HK$ Mn

BEEHET
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45. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (CONTINUED) &EE&EEDSMIER (4)

(c) Capital commitments (c) EAKIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 315 December and not 5312 H 31 H & (HME X R AE RS 75 825 TR R B 4
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: WIS ARIENT :

2023 2022

HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

B EETT BEEETT

Expenditure authorised and contracted for EAZAEZ T E L 484 452

Expenditure authorised but not contracted for EAZAE T HEARZEL 90 138

574 590

(d) Leases committed but not yet commenced

At 315 December, 2023 and 2022, the total future cash outflows to
which the Group (as a lessee) is exposed that are not reflected in

(d) EREETREBIHE

220234 )2 20224212 4 31H - AHEFEE R A
P B (B A0 oA S Bl P A 8 B3 A TP YRR

the measurement of lease liabilities are as follows: LB

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R EE T R EE T

Properties LUES
Within one year THEDA 2
After one year but within five years LEREBFER 20
After five years S5 Dlig - 6
9 28

Equipment Bdi
Within one year THEDA - -
After one year but within five years LEREBFER - -
Total lease committed but not yet commenced ERIE(EHTREIIGHIIH E444H 9 28

(e) Contingencies (e) =AHFHE

The Group receives legal claims against it arising in the normal
courses of business. The Group considers none of these matters as
material. Where appropriate the Group recognises provisions for
liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of economic resources
embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a
reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

AEEEE R B BEPELERRE - K
EERHEEEREAER - FEEFELT > K
SRR AT RE R H AU F s Rt Ak H o] DA &
EAE AT Sl IR AR S (A -

46. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EfiSRIEERSHERE

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with same counterparties. Netting agreements provide
that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty will be terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled
on a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding transactions
with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.

AR LA B T S TP R A AR HE U
BEERE - EHEEGEF > RBFHEET
# o TR E T2 LS G IL R A
DIUSHEEGE R - BREA BRI > FrABE T2
58 SRS H RAEM B IR R T VB EE
BT G I -

TRIURZARGY ~ BRSO 2 F S Rk
FAHAT R R A T HE L -



46. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) Efi&RIEENRSHERE (8)

2023

Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
W R ERER PR R

Effects of offsetting in the consolidated Amounts not set off in the consolidated statement of

statement of financial position financial position
TEAF G BRI AR 3 2 5 8 VAR SR E BRI R RS S0

Net amounts
presented in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position Non-cash
Gross Amounts FEFEABHIRIL Financial collateral Cash
amounts offset FHFI7RZ  instruments JEHE  collateral
R o e o FEE SRTHE B B
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEET BEEET BEEET BREsET BREET BREET
Financial assets
ERIERE
Derivative assets
T HEEE 7,672 - 7,672 (2,094) - (2,821)
Placements with and
advances to
banks
- under reverse
repos,
securities
borrowing and
similar
agreements
with banks
TESRATHIFERR B B
- BLRATHYRZ [
[BIi§E ~ e
A B AT A 4,932 - 4,932 - (4,828) (104)
Loans and advances
to customers
- under reverse
repos,
securities
borrowing and
similar
agreements
with non-banks
& P RO B
- BLESRATHY R 1)
[BIi§E ~ e
A B AT A 11,940 - 11,940 - (11,546) (394)
Other assets
HAth & 2,381 (2,124) 257 - - -

Net
amounts
A

HK$ Mn
AEEETT

2,757

257

Amounts not
subject to
enforceable
netting
arrangements
8=
W2 RS
HZ e &
HK$ Mn
EEEETT

1,384

Page 163

Total amounts
“EEH

HK$ Mn
BEEETT

9,056

4,932

11,940

257

Total 48%H 26,925 (2,124) 24,801 (2,094) (16,374) (3,319)

3,014

1,384

26,185
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46. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) Efi&RIEENRSHERE (84)

Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements

W R BE R ) 2 RS

Effects of offsetting in the consolidated
statement of financial position
TEAF G BRI AR 3 2 s 8
Net amounts
presented in the

e

R

e &8

Amounts not set off in the consolidated statement of
financial position

WAEAESR S BSIRIU R RN 2 288

Amounts not

consolidated subject to
statement of enforceable
financial netting
position Non-cash arrangements
Gross Amounts TREREFSIRNR Financial collateral Cash Net R EAHE
amounts offset FHFIRZ  instruments JEHE  collateral amounts X127 4H4E Total amounts
R e | AR SRMIAE B B HE Rz e “EEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEET BEEET AEEET BEEsET BREET BREsET BBasEx  B¥asET BaET
Financial liabilities
EREE
Derivative liabilities
TTAETHAR 2,781 - 2,781 (2,094) - (65) 622 1,226 4,007
Deposits and
balances of banks
- under repos,
securities
lending and
similar
agreements
with banks
HATHIRR R 458
- BASRATHY B
AR
i 5,250 - 5,250 - (4,246) (1,004) - - 5,250
Other liabilities
Hoth & 2,124 (2,124) - - - - - - -
Total 48%H 10,155 (2,124) 8,031 (2,094) (4,246) (1,069) 622 1,226 9,257
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46. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) Efi&RIEENRSHERE (8)

2022
Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
W R ERER PR R
Effects of offsetting in the consolidated Amounts not set off in the consolidated statement of

statement of financial position financial position
RSO IR IR 2 8 MRAE SRS AR R S ~ 8
Net amounts
presented in the Amounts not
consolidated subject to
statement of enforceable
financial netting
position Non-cash arrangements
Gross Amounts TREREFESIRNR Financial collateral Cash Net R EAHE
amounts offset FHFI7RZ  instruments JEHE  collateral amounts X127 4H4E Total amounts
R o e o FEE SMIAE B B HE Rz “EEH
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEET BEEET BEEET BEEsET BREET BRE&ET BasErx  BBasET BEaET
Financial assets
ERIERE
Derivative assets
T HEEE 9,985 - 9,985 (2,298) - (5,264) 2,423 1,107 11,092
Placements with and
advances to
banks
- under reverse
repos,
securities
borrowing and
similar
agreements
with banks
TESRATHIFERR B B
- BLRATHYRZ [
B ~ R
A B AT A 3,498 - 3,498 - (3,232 (12) 255 - 3,498
Other assets
HAth & 431 (396) 35 - - - 35 - 35

Total 48%H 13,914 (396) 13,518 (2,298) (3,232) (5,275) 2,713 1,107 14,625
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46. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) Efi&RIEENRSHERE (84)

Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
W R IERER PR R S

Effects of offsetting in the consolidated
statement of financial position
TEAF G BRI AR 3 2 s 8
Net amounts
presented in the
consolidated
statement of

financial

position

Gross  Amounts PEREMEHIRIL
amounts offset FKHFIRZ
YeEE R S FeE
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BEEETT BEEET BEETT
Financial liabilities
EREE
Derivative liabilities
T THAM 3,404 - 3,404
Deposits and
balances of banks
- under repos,
securities
lending and
similar
agreements
with banks
HRATHIRR R 48
- BASRATHYIEIE -
F SR
Iriipk 2,953 - 2,953
Deposits from
customers
- under repos,
securities
lending and
similar
agreements
with non-banks
HEETK
- BRESRA TR
~ REIFE TR
THATRR# 283 - 283
Other liabilities
Hoth & 396 (396) -

Amounts not set off in the consolidated statement of
financial position

WARAESR S BSIRIU R RN 2 280

Amounts not

subject to

enforceable

netting

Non-cash arrangements

Financial  collateral Cash Net R REER
instruments JEHE  collateral amounts X127 4H4E Total amounts
e T H M RS HE R e “EEA
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

AEET BEET BNEET BEET BNEET  BMEET

(2,298) - (109) 997 741 4,145

- (2,900) (53) - - 2,953

- (283) - - - 283

Total 48%H 7,036 (396) 6,640

(2,298) (3,183) (162) 997 741 7,381
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47. NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #&HR&REFRN

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) HHENFFRBFSIEE
(i) Components of cash and cash equivalents in the () HF&EEHESRERANIS R ETE HAY4H RS
consolidated cash flow statement s
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT BEEETT
Cash and balances with banks with .
original maturity within three Jﬁﬁﬂﬁ@%%ﬁ DA 2 334 JeAE
months RITHIES T 37,014 44,158
Placements with and advances to . .y
banks with original maturity within ~ FRASARR R 3(E S EARLESRT T 17
three months TR B 39,552 60,091
Treasury bills with original maturity
within three months JE AR Ry 308 A LA B (5 25 14,394 6,107
Certificates of deposit held with . )
original maturity within three JFAHIRR By 3ME H LA Z R HITF
months B/ Eic 516 226
Debt securities with original maturity
within three months JRAHARR £ 3(E H LN RIS 5527 658 1,567
92,134 112,149
(i) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of (i)  HEREMEIRRATEIR
financial position
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEETT BEEETT
Cash and balances with banks 3
(Note 23) & RATHTINGS 7 (47723 45,903 54,579
Placements with and advances to 3
banks (Note 24) TESRATHI R R BR (HEF24 ) 43,691 60,203
Treasury bills, certificates of deposit
held and debt securities Bl ~ FEA s KRB 55
- trading assets (Note 26) - XEH®RERE (f17726) 2,764 1,275
- investment securities (Note 28) - B&HF (i28) 165,527 145,289
168,291 146,564

Amounts shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position 4R A BN TRy &80 257,885 261,346
Less: Amounts with an original
maturity of beyond three

months W TRAHARR £ 38 H DA R4 (156,861) (138,774)
Cash balance with central bank L ) .

subject to regulatory ZHVETR AR P JSRATHYE 5

restriction 517 (8,890) (10,423)

Cash and cash equivalents in the TEST S e B RIS R FFH
consolidated cash flow statement &IEH 92,134 112,149
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47. NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED) #F&B&SREBERNT (4)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

(b) JHE R EEE AR A L R

RS EE RSB E L B A B B
EERERIFR e BY) - FEMEEEES AR
EEAEENG SRR ER N B LR &S
FE R B S A SR AR T AR Y B

Debt Interest rate Interest rate

securities swaps held swaps held to

issued to hedge hedge

accrued Loan capital borrowings borrowings

Debt interest accrued (assets) liabilities

securities payable interest SHEE SAIE

issued T payable Lease EEP R EEP R
BT Loan capital fE5E5 & Kz liabilities st st Total
HsES HEEAR FEEHAE FEHAE HEaH &4 (EE) RNt Han
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn

BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET BIEHET

At 1% January, 2023
#2023 1H1H 2,892 11,927 14
Changes from financing cash

flows
RERE R SR
Issue of loan capital
BITHEEEA - 3,893 -
Redemption of debt securities

issued
Wl E S TR (2,090) - -
Interest paid on loan capital
TAHEEEAFIE - - -
Interest paid on debt securities

issued
TN EBERME - - (58)
Payment of lease liabilities

B AR - - -

159 774 - 307 16,073

- - - - 3,893

. - . - (2,090)

(873) - - - (873)

- (274) - - (274)

Total changes from financing
cash flows
A BT & T S B (2,090) 3,893 (58)

(873) (274) - - 598

Exchange adjustments
DRSO B 10 (34) -
Changes in fair value
APAEEES) 32 - -
Revaluation under hedge

accounting
e HEERS - 170 -
Interest expenses
FIESZH - 11 51
Increase in lease liabilities from

entering into new leases

during the year
SEFENETILET S | EUH E A

bl - - -

949 29 - - 1,040

Total other changes
HAth By aaEH 42 147 51

949 352 (29) 95 1,607

At 315t December, 2023
#2023 12H31H 844 15,967 7

235 852 (29) 402 18,278




47. NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

(continued)

At 1%t January, 2022
#R20224E1H1H

Changes from financing cash flows
RERE SR SRS

Issue of debt securities

BATHSES

Issue of loan capital

BITHEEEAR

Redemption of debt securities issued
[ B[St es

Interest paid on loan capital
TAHEEEAFIE

Interest paid on debt securities issued
TN EHTEBEERME

Payment of lease liabilities

B AR

SEHERERNE (4)

REREEIELNARZHIRE (8D

Interest rate
swaps held to
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Total changes from financing cash flows

B B R R B

Exchange adjustments

PEE SO %

Changes in fair value

IR EEEE)

Revaluation under hedge accounting

e HEERS

Interest expenses

FIESEH

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year

RN IHTE RS B S A S in

Total other changes

HoAt ) AE

At 315t December, 2022
FA20224E12H 31H

Debt securities he_dge
issued accrued Loan capital borrowings
Debt interest accrued liabilities
securities payable interest SFHE
issued T payable EPERREY
C#1T  Loan capital v e EEEAZ  Lease liabilites Flj g Total
s EEHA FERTFIE JEETFIE THE A EESIi ksl
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT R ETT
5,847 6,488 95 79 884 2 13,395
388 - - - - - 388
- 5,793 - - - - 5,793
(3,061) . . . . . (3,061)
. . . (374) . . (374)
. . (161) . . . (161)
- - - - (302) - (302)
(2,673) 5,793 (161) (374) (302) - 2,283
(239) (103) . . 1) . (383)
(44) . . . . 6 (38)
. (257) . . . 299 42
1 6 80 454 28 - 569
- - - - 205 - 205
(282) (354) 80 454 192 305 395
2,892 11,927 14 159 774 307 16,073




48. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY fEfEiE#f e

The following assets have been pledged as collateral for own liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.
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JRER AR - DU EEL R EA S A

fh e

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
AR E T R E T
Secured liabilities A 5,250 3,236
Assets pledged: EH&ZE:
On-balance sheet HEAERA
Investment securities Eite —ti-ed
- EEiBEA S E S
- measured at FVOCI DA EEE = 5,071 2,999
- measured at amortised cost - R E - 461
5,071 3,460
Off-balance sheet HEAERI
Repledged collateral received S P A 392 -
5,463 3,460
The following balances with banks have been pledged as collateral for DU HR &G EAEE R EE RTE TEFR
securities borrowings and margin deposits of derivatives. e RS, o
2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
R E T R E T
Cash collateral for borrowed securities e A E RS 497 24
Margin accounts for open futures and FATEBILIE R BHAGEIN
forward contracts FFRIRF 3,671 3,125
4,168 3,149

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and
customary to standard lending and securities borrowing and lending
activities.

ﬁt%sc%Zf ST TR

CE B U E W Geeai)

49. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED WITH DIRECTORS #55 J S s i B e By 555K

The aggregate of loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected
with directors disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

R (ARG 383Dk (~FE] (HiEE
FEM TR A BT > AMTHERH
HEARETRE . SN T

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
B EETT BEEETT
Aggregate amount of relevant loans
outstanding at 31%' December AR SRR 12 A 31 H Y45 R 4855
By the Bank EHSRAT e 867 1,613
By subsidiaries EH B S A EfE - -
867 1,613
The maximum aggregate amount of relevant
loans outstanding during the year L I BE SRR 2 B e 45 R SR
By the Bank FHERAT1E bﬁ 1,712 2,465
By subsidiaries EH B S A EfE - -
1,712 2,465

As at 31%" December, 2023 and 2022, there was no interest due but
unpaid and the impairment allowance made against these loans as
required under HKFRS 9 were insignificant.

#420234£12 4 31 H K 20224£12 F 31H » 34 A i
RENFE - HBZETE (BB REE
ALY SBOSRFRIEH Z I EE R RN AN -



50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS PBEBtALHIEAR S

(@) Key management personnel remuneration (a
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in Note
20 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note
21, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits fd AR B 1EF
Post-employment benefits & R AER
Equity compensation benefits R fy e B R Al

(b) The Group maintains certain retirement benefit schemes for its (b)
staff as per Note 2(x)(iii). In 2023, the total amount of contributions
the Group made to the schemes was HK$219 million (2022:

HK$204 million).

The Group enters into a number of transactions with the Group’s
related parties, including its associates, shareholders with
significant influence, and key management personnel and their
close family members and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The transactions include accepting deposits
from and extending credit facilities to them. All interest rates in
connection with the deposits taken and credit facilities extended
are under terms and conditions normally applicable to customers
of comparable standing.

The interest received from and interest paid to the Group's related
parties for the year, outstanding balances of amounts due from and
due to at the year end, and maximum outstanding balance of
amounts due from and due to them during the year are aggregated
as follows:

Key management
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EXesiNSE

AEE TEEHANSHH - EREENE200
P da S 7 AT E S AR SR 21 P Tl B =
TARITE s R |20 T

2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BT E T A E T
164 169
7 8
23 23
194 200

AEE R EBARIE FRIRRERTE - LER
FFEE2() i EE - FR20234E N > AL HZF
By B AR B R BN 2.09(8 0T (20224 ¢ ¥
2.04850) -

FEEBELERR A LETEHELS - ZFEANLE
BB ANE  FEAFEN R ~ REETH
ANBHEHEZHE - 2T AN LAEd=EA
HREENNAFE - REXHUREZZENL
Tl B MR ER - FATFERRESENHN
R IR IE T —RAHE KB FRIFRRK -

FREN - ARG ERERE R A £ AT S (T A
B0 RAREE RN 8 S e R R Bk A HI K
TH o R AT R A L B s R R R B T A
B BRI T

Shareholders with

personnel Associates significant influence
TEEHEAE =g BEREES 2R
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn HK$ Mn
BEEHETT BYEHET BYEHEI BWEHET A¥ogErT  ABNEET
Interest income FEUZA 41 40 73 76 12 -
Interest expense  FESZH 96 26 1 - - -
Amounts due from BABEATHYREL 815 1,763 1,374 1,335 422 120
Amounts dueto  KEABEA LK
B 2,180 3,075 209 34 5 1
Maximum R
amounts due ol P Nemib s
from Rk 1,681 2,636 1,988 2,219 1,316 8,054
Maximum U NS
amounts due to =R 5,273 6,599 789 438 212 43
Committed \
facilities to ST EERE 1,293 876 1,755 2,244 59 -



51. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS R nfitEstal

The Bank has adopted Staff Share Option Schemes whereby the Board of
the Bank may at its discretion grant to any employees of the Group,
including Executive Director and Co-Chief Executives, options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of the Bank. All options were granted for nil
consideration.

(a) Particulars of share options (a)

Date of grant

Vesting period

T HY B s
04/5/2015(T3) 04/5/2015 - 03/5/2018
08/4/2016(T2) 08/4/2016 - 07/4/2018
08/4/2016(T3) 08/4/2016 - 07/4/2019
07/4/2017(T1) 07/4/2017 - 06/4/2018
07/4/2017(T2) 07/4/2017 - 06/4/2019
07/4/2017(T3) 07/4/2017 - 06/4/2020
10/4/2018(T1) 10/4/2018 - 09/4/2019
10/4/2018(T2) 10/4/2018 - 09/4/2020
10/4/2018(T3) 10/4/2018 - 09/4/2021
19/7/2019(T1) 19/7/2019 - 18/7/2020
19/7/2019(T2) 19/7/2019 - 18/7/2021
19/7/2019(T3) 19/7/2019 - 18/7/2022
07/4/2020(T1) 07/4/2020 - 06/4/2021
07/4/2020(T2) 07/4/2020 - 06/4/2022
07/4/2020(T3) 07/4/2020 - 06/4/2023
13/4/2021(T1) 13/4/2021 - 12/4/2022
13/4/2021(T2) 13/4/2021 - 12/4/2023
13/4/2021(T3) 13/4/2021 - 12/4/2024
12/4/2022(T1) 12/4/2022 - 11/4/2023
12/4/2022(T2) 12/4/2022 - 11/4/2024
12/4/2022(T3) 12/4/2022 - 11/4/2025
12/4/2023(T1) 12/4/2023 - 11/4/2024
12/4/2023(T2) 12/4/2023 - 11/4/2025

12/4/2023(T3)

12/4/2023 - 11/4/2026
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FATFERANA R B S AR T B R S & TR 3%
R T AEE (M ER - GfERITESER
TRRETT U - DISRREA T i e 07 - BT et

PecttEr g DL HE RO A

TORERERES

Exercise period

]

04/5/2018 - 04/5/2023
08/4/2018 - 08/4/2023
08/4/2019 - 08/4/2024
07/4/2018 - 07/4/2023
07/4/2019 - 07/4/2024
07/4/2020 - 07/4/2025
10/4/2019 - 10/4/2024
10/4/2020 - 10/4/2025
10/4/2021 - 10/4/2026
19/7/2020 - 19/7/2025
19/7/2021 - 19/7/2026
19/7/2022 - 19/7/2027
07/4/2021 - 07/4/2026
07/4/2022 - 07/4/2027
07/4/2023 - 07/4/2028
13/4/2022 - 13/4/2027
13/4/2023 - 13/4/2028
13/4/2024 - 13/4/2029
12/4/2023 - 12/4/2028
12/4/2024 - 12/4/2029
12/4/2025 - 12/4/2030
12/4/2024 - 12/4/2029
12/4/2025 - 12/4/2030
12/4/2026 - 12/4/2031

Exercise price
per share
FERITEE
HK$HEH T

34.15
28.45
28.45
32.25
32.25
32.25
32.25
32.25
32.25
22.45
22.45
22.45
16.58
16.58
16.58
17.08
17.08
17.08
12.17
12.17
12.17
10.08
10.08
10.08
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51. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED) R:r#iEstEl (&)

(b) Movement of share options during the year (b) FERNTIHENE > )
2023 Number of share options E R HEs H
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1/1/2023 at 31/12/2023
Exercise price 220234 220234
Date of grant ~ Tranche per share 1H1H Granted Exercised Lapsed 12H31H
T HM By FRATEE LENEYEY (S BT R AT
HK$ T
04/5/2015 T3 34.15 1,955,746 - - 1,955,746 -
08/4/2016 T2 28.45 1,946,000 - - 1,946,000 -
08/4/2016 T3 28.45 2,046,500 - - 50,000 1,996,500
07/4/2017 T1 32.25 2,080,000 - - 2,080,000 -
07/4/2017 T2 32.25 2,080,000 - - 50,000 2,030,000
07/4/2017 T3 32.25 1,563,000 - - 50,000 1,513,000
10/4/2018 T1 32.25 2,125,000 - - 50,000 2,075,000
10/4/2018 T2 32.25 1,613,500 - - 50,000 1,563,500
10/4/2018 T3 32.25 1,623,000 - - 50,000 1,573,000
19/7/2019 T1 22.45 1,493,500 - - 50,000 1,443,500
19/7/2019 T2 22.45 1,493,500 - - 50,000 1,443,500
19/7/2019 T3 22.45 1,550,500 - - 100,000 1,450,500
07/4/2020 T1 16.58 1,728,165 - - 50,000 1,678,165
07/4/2020 T2 16.58 1,785,328 - - 100,000 1,685,328
07/4/2020 T3 16.58 1,818,336 - - - 1,818,336
13/4/2021 T1 17.08 1,443,797 - - 100,000 1,343,797
13/4/2021 T2 17.08 1,443,906 - - - 1,443,906
13/4/2021 T3 17.08 1,448,850 - - - 1,448,850
12/4/2022 T1 12.17 5,353,820 - - - 5,353,820
12/4/2022 T2 12.17 5,347,653 - - - 5,347,653
12/4/2022 T3 12.17 5,417,117 - - - 5,417,117
12/4/2023 T1 10.08 - 3,906,879 - - 3,906,879
12/4/2023 T2 10.08 - 3,906,877 - - 3,906,877
12/4/2023 T3 10.08 - 3,911,167 - - 3,911,167

Total #8%3 47,357,218 11,724,923 - 6,731,746 52,350,395
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51. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED) R:n#ifEstEl (&)

(b) Movement of share options during the year (continued) (b) FERNIHEE EE) (8)
2022 Number of share options E R HEs H
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1/1/2022 at 31/12/2022
Exercise price [1+20224F 120224
Date of grant ~ Tranche  per share 1H1H Granted Exercised Lapsed 12A31H
RTEN WS SR METE  CRT ERET =T S AT
HK$ T
02/5/2014 T3 32.50 1,903,500 - - 1,903,500 -
04/5/2015 T2 34.15 1,980,000 - - 1,980,000 -
04/5/2015 T3 34.15 1,955,746 - - - 1,955,746
08/4/2016 T1 28.45 1,064,000 - - 1,064,000 -
08/4/2016 T2 28.45 1,946,000 - - - 1,946,000
08/4/2016 T3 28.45 2,046,500 - - - 2,046,500
07/4/2017 T1 32.25 2,080,000 - - - 2,080,000
07/4/2017 T2 32.25 2,080,000 - - - 2,080,000
07/4/2017 T3 32.25 1,563,000 - - - 1,563,000
10/4/2018 T1 32.25 2,125,000 - - - 2,125,000
10/4/2018 T2 32.25 1,613,500 - - - 1,613,500
10/4/2018 T3 32.25 1,673,000 - - 50,000 1,623,000
19/7/2019 T1 22.45 1,493,500 - - - 1,493,500
19/7/2019 T2 22.45 1,543,500 - - 50,000 1,493,500
19/7/2019 T3 22.45 1,550,500 - - - 1,550,500
07/4/2020 T1 16.58 1,778,165 - - 50,000 1,728,165
07/4/2020 T2 16.58 1,785,328 - - - 1,785,328
07/4/2020 T3 16.58 1,818,336 - - - 1,818,336
13/4/2021 T1 17.08 1,443,797 - - - 1,443,797
13/4/2021 T2 17.08 1,443,906 - - - 1,443,906
13/4/2021 T3 17.08 1,448,850 - - - 1,448,850
12/4/2022 T1 12.17 - 5,353,820 - - 5,353,820
12/4/2022 T2 12.17 - 5,347,653 - - 5,347,653
12/4/2022 T3 12.17 - 5,417,117 - - 5,417,117
Total 4848 36,336,128 16,118,590 - 5,097,500 47,357,218

(c) There were no share option forfeited and cancelled during the year (c) #;%£2023%12H31H k2202212 H31H (-4
ended 31% December, 2023 and 2022. FE NS R S S S Y ST



52. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  #rsfist s Sl

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management
has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

(@

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 31, 39 and 44 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value
of share options granted and fair values of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

@

(i)

(iii)

Impairment losses

Note 43(a)(viii): impairment of financial instruments
involves determining inputs into the ECL measurement
model, including incorporation of forward-looking
information.

Note 30: impairment testing of investments in associates
involves significant judgement in determining the value in
use, and in particular estimating the present values of cash
flows expected to arise from continuing to hold the
investment.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial
instruments is included in Note 2. The fair value of the
financial instruments is mainly based on the quoted market
price on a recognised stock exchange or a price quoted
from a broker/dealer for non-exchanged traded financial
instruments. For all other financial instruments, the Group
determines fair values using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value and
discounted cash flow models and various market
recognised pricing models. Some or all of the significant
inputs into these models may not be observable in the
market and are derived from market prices or rates or are
estimated based on assumptions. Valuation models that
employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher
degree of management judgement and estimation in
determination of fair value. Management estimation are
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model, assumptions and inputs to be used.

Provisions for tax uncertainties

The Group makes provisions for tax uncertainties by either
estimating the most likely amount, which is the single most
likely amount in a range of possible outcomes, or the
expected value in a range of possible outcomes. The
estimate could be different from the actual results of
resolution. Any increase or decrease in the provision would
affect profit or loss in future years.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) &stfhst RHllr (49)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's (b) AEEEFE MGt B A

accounting policies

Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s AEEERGAERNE TEEG T H B

accounting policies are described below: g

() Classification of financial assets () sm&EESH
Note 2(h)(i)): assessment of the business model within FFEE2(n) (i) © FEALRA & ERY RS
which the assets are held and assessment of whether the B4 RE E NN E B AR E RS K
contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI on the RELERRIIF B ] -
principal amount outstanding.

(i) Measurement of ECL (i) FEHIEEELETE
Note 43(a)(viii): establishing the criteria for determining TffsE43(a)(vii)) : 5T AEAEDURE SR
whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased I (Z SR b 75 EL ¥ e e S 4% A 1
significantly ~ since initial recognition, determining B G5 773 DU A Bt S T
methodology for incorporating forward-looking information S L L T TR ) S Y HE S
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to ;%i%&mE‘H&LEEiU\J#ﬁ’HE{Dg
measure ECL. =

(i) Recognition of deferred tax assets (i) BRIEFRIEEE 2 HERL

The Group recognises deferred tax assets only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Estimates
and judgements are applied in determining the amount of
future taxable profits and the probability that such future
taxable profits are available in the foreseeable future to
support recognition of the deferred tax assets. The Group
uses all readily available information, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and operating costs, in determining
future taxable profits. Changes in these estimates could
significantly affect the timing of deferred tax asset
recognition and the amount of asset recognised.

JRAEARAC ] BE A BRI A1 LA SR AE
MIARENEL T » AEEA MERIEER
HETE o 1 EARANERI G Y 280 R
FLOTREMERY - JRflET R FIEE T R R 2R
AR NE R A T 5 SR RS IR A AR
HEE - AEFEEARAEANER > &
FEARYE S B e AT SR 2 R AR 52
LRI ET - DA E AR AR FERRA 6 7
IEEE it AR By o] RE ST AR AR TH & AT
B ] By B A RO A A B -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES [LEEF

Certain 2022 comparative figures have been restated to conform to
current year's presentation. Please refer to Note 22 for the effect of
restatement.

T 2022 N T CER AT EAFENZE
W7 - FH2 RS2 P E R -
NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD {B/EEESAIER & kS R H i r st

After the end of the reporting period, the directors declared a second
interim dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note 18(a).

HEHEP R R H R BRSSP R A - 5F
B EAEM T 18(a) fEHEEE -
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55. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER, 2023

EBZE 2023512/ 31H (M ERTEATHE MAREBHVER] - FrEFR TR £V TEYE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments to standards and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December, 2023 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

HERFVBHE ZSEMAY - FEGTIAETH

T ZIREET ROg AR 5 (B F TR RN EE

2023412 31 H (L 5T & i AR R - Rt A e

IR IL S Bk - e s A R AR 2 B3 TRIRT
AR -

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

AR A DR RE 422

15t January, 2024

(CEEM B EAER]) $L65F (B3] M BRI PHIMEBE 2024£E1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current 15t January, 2024
Liabilities with Covenants 2024£1H1H

CRBGHER) FLRAEST RBRIFFTEIEEIT T K W EZE2IE I B A

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance Arrangements

15t January, 2024

(BRGHEA) B9 (CERMBMEREA) BTRZAEET A E L 2024F1H1H

Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability
(EHEGETAERN) B219F (BT = o AR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards are expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

15t January, 2025
202541 1H
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